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ARDS AND NORTH DOWN BOROUGH COUNCIL

15 September 2022
Dear Sir/Madam
You are hereby invited to attend a meeting of the Audit Committee of the Ards and
North Down Borough Council which will be held by Zoom on THURSDAY, 22
September 2022 commencing at 7.00pm.

Yours faithfully

Stephen Reid
Chief Executive
Ards and North Down Borough Council

AGENDA
Apologies
Chairman’s Remarks

Declarations of Interest

ol O

Matters Arising from Previous Meetings
a) Committee Minutes from June 2022 (attached)
b) Follow-up Actions (attached)

5. Performance Improvement
a) 2022/23 Progress report to 30 June 2022 (attached)

6. External Audit
a) Draft Report to Those Charged with Governance (attached)
b) Audited Financial Statements for 2021/22 (attached)

7. Internal Audit
a) Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23 (attached)
i.  Service Review - Strategic Capital Development (attached)
ii. Planning for new ways of working in post Covid environment

8. Corporate Governance
a) Corporate Risk Register (attached)

9. Any Other Notified Business



ITEMS 10 - 13 **IN CONFIDENCE***

10.Single Tender Actions Update (attached)

11. Fraud, Whistleblowing and Data-protection matters (verbal update)

12.Internal Audit Contract Tender (attached)

13. Meeting with NI Audit Office & Internal Audit Service in the absence of

Management

MEMBERSHIP OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (11 MEMBERS)

Back to Agenda

Alderman Armstrong-Cotter

Councillor Gilmour (Chairman)

Alderman Wilson

Councillor McAlpine

Councillor Irwin

Councillor McClean

Councillor Greer

Councillor Thompson

Mr P Cummings




Back to Agenda

ARDS AND NORTH DOWN BOROUGH COUNCIL

A meeting of the Audit Committee was held virtually via Zoom on Monday 27 June
2022 at 7.00pm.

PRESENT:-
In the Chair: Councillor Gilmour
Alderman: Armstrong-Cotter
Councillors: Greer
Irwin (7.30 pm)
McAlpine
McClean

Independent Member: Mr T McGonigal

In Attendance: ASM - C Hagan
Deloitte — C McDermott
NIAO - A Allen

Officers: Chief Executive (S Reid), Director of Finance and Performance

(S Christie), Head of Finance (S Grieve) and Democratic
Services Officer (H Loebnau)

1. APOLOGIES

The Chairman, Councillor Gilmour, sought apologies at this stage and those were
noted from Councillor Thompson. Apologies were also noted for David Kinsella,
Deloitte, and Members were informed that Camille McDermott would present the
internal audit report in his absence.

NOTED.

2. CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting including the internal and external
auditors to the Committee from the Northern Ireland Audit Office, ASM and Deloitte.

NOTED.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Chairman asked for any Declarations of Interest at this stage and none were
made.

NOTED.
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4, MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

(@) Audit Committee Minutes from March 2022 (Appendix I)

PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED:- Copy of the above minutes.

AGREED TO RECOMMEND, on the proposal of Alderman Armstrong-Cotter,
seconded by Councillor Greer, that the minutes be noted.

(b) Follow Up Register (Appendix II)

PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED:- Report from the Director of Finance and Performance
detailing that in line with best practice, the purpose of the report was to make the
Audit Committee aware of the status of outstanding recommendations or any
outstanding actions from the previous Audit Committee meetings.

There was one item from the previous committee which had been completed.
RECOMMENDED that the Committee notes the report.

AGREED TO RECOMMEND, on the proposal of Councillor Greer, seconded by
Alderman Armstrong-Cotter, that the recommendation be adopted.

5. INTERNAL AUDIT

(a) Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23 (Appendix Ill)

PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED:- Audit Committee Progress Report, Ards and North
Down Borough Council.

RECOMMENDED that the report be noted.

C McDermott spoke as the internal auditor explaining that progress had been set out
against the new annual internal audit plan, starting off the 22/23 year. It would be
noticed that both the audits for Q1 were underway and progressing well. For Q2
terms of reference had been agreed or planning meetings scheduled for this week.
She added that Q3/Q4 finance dates would be agreed for finance and waste
management and planning would commence later for Q3/Q4 and a date had been
set for the Q3 audit. She was happy to take questions from Members on progress.

Mr McGonigal referred to Q4 and there was no date set to look at cyber security. In
response it was explained that would be discussed at the planning meeting when the
cyber team and the business technology team met in September after the summer
holidays. She gave assurance that it would be completed before the end of the
financial year.

AGREED TO RECOMMEND, on the proposal of Alderman Armstrong-Cotter,
seconded by Councillor Greer, that the recommendation be adopted.
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6. PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT

(a) 2021/22 Performance Improvement Progress Report to 31 March 2022
(Appendix V)

PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED:- Report from the Director of Finance and Performance
detailing that the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 Part 12 put in place
a new framework to support continuous improvement in the delivery of Council
services. The Council was required each year to determine its priorities for
improvement which were aligned to the Community Plan and Corporate Objectives
and to publish those in the format of an Improvement Plan.

In the 2020/21 year the requirement to publish a Performance Improvement Plan
was set aside and for the 2021/22 year the publication date was extended to
September.

The Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) for 2021/22, identified 5 improvement
objectives with a corresponding 33 measures including 7 Statutory Indicators and 6
self-imposed indicators, all were included in the Council’'s Service Plans and were
monitored and reported on quarterly through each Service's respective Standing
Committee.

It should be noted that this report reflected performance of the PIP only and was not
necessarily representative of the overall performance of the organisation.

The following table gave an assessment of the status across all measures in the PIP
for Quarter 4.

Performance Assessment Key

The key outlined below provided definitions for the three Red, Amber, Green (RAG)
status levels which had been chosen to measure progress.

RAG Status | Definition
. Target/standard, actions and measures are of
concern and are mostly falling short of plan
_\) Target/standard, actions and measures are mostly
' on track, but some are falling short of plan
Target/standard, actions and measures are on track
2 Rescheduled/no progress owing to impact of Covid

We will grow the economy and create jobs
We will improve the cleanliness of the streets :
in our borough by targeting littering and dog 1 2
fouling incidents
P We will improve recycling rates from = 1 1
Household Recycling Centres (HRCs)

b db i
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LIFE »  We will support our businesses and residents
to protect and improve their health and 1 - - 2
wellbeing
EXCELLENCE |» We will use technology to drive change ; 2 2
STATUTORY P Municipal Waste
INDICATORS P Economic Development 5 2 =
P Planning
SELF- P Resident Satisfaction = s = 1
IMPOSED P Prompt Payment of Invoices i - - 3
INDICATORS P Average number of working days lost per
employee = - - !
P % staff attendance - = 1 =
OVERALL | 2 5 14 12

Detailed information on progress against each of the measures could be found in
and appendix to the report. Information on the Council's performance against the
PIP 2021/2022 could also be found on the Council’'s website following ratification of
the report.

RECOMMENDED that the report is noted.

Councillor Greer made an observation in relation to the high tonnage that the
Council was sending to landfill and she was aware that the Director of Environment
was discussing that with party groups along with potential solutions to that problem.
She asked when further information would be brought back to the Environment
Committee. The Chief Executive reported that consultations would take place over
the coming weeks with a view to bringing back a report to the Environment
Committee in September.

AGREED TO RECOMMEND, on the proposal of Alderman Armstrong-Cotter,
seconded by Councillor Greer, that the recommendation be adopted.

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(a) Annual Statements of Assurance

PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED:- Report from Director of Organisational Development
and Administration detailing that in accordance with the Council's Risk Management
Strategy, Heads of Service were required to provide Statements of Assurance.
Assurance Statements comprised 4 main sections to be completed by each Head of
Service following consultation with each of their Service Units. Period of this report,
1 October 2021 - 31 March 2022. One statement for remained outstanding.

Findings

General - Identification of Risk, Monitoring and Control measures

No key issues had been declared as not having appropriate internal controls in
place. All Services had confirmed that any risks identified had appropriate internal
controls and any further actions taken, or to be taken, to adequately mitigate or
resolve the risk had been identified.
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Brexit and COVID 19 Pandemic Impacts

The impacts of both those issues had been previously reported. Actual and potential
impacts, primarily financial and demands affecting staff, and/or service delivery, were
reported across the Statements of Assurance.

Section 1 — Strategic and Operational Risk Management

Services reported appropriate controls were currently in place and had identified
satisfactory actions to review, monitor, control, mitigate and resolve issues, where
appropriate.

The Waste and Cleansing Service had reported that a significant financial liability
risk remained if the bidding process for the Residual Waste Treatment project was
collapsed by the client (arc21). Planning permission was recently refused by the DFI
Minister and legal advice was currently being sought on whether to challenge the
validity of the decision. All of that had significant implications for the future of arc21,
in terms of delivering infrastructure for member councils.

The Leisure Service had reported that the current insourcing exercise being
undertaken for North Down Leisure was greatly adding to the workload of the
management team. Additional leisure and human resourcing staff had been
recruited along with the retention of specialist consultancy services to assist in that
process.

Section 2 — Internal Control
Generally, there were no key issues arising to cause significant concern or requiring
immediate action.

Progress on Audit findings was reported to the Committee separately, although they
were reflected in the Assurance Statements. Services had recorded progress and
plans to complete outstanding audit actions. Outstanding audit recommendations for
four services were noted here.

The Communications and Marketing Service unit had two outstanding Priority 2
findings and one outstanding Priority 3 finding related to the Social Media Audit
conducted in 2021, and those were being addressed.

Strategic Transformation and Performance had three Priority 1 findings, two Priority
2 findings and four Priority 3 findings raised by the Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery Audit and the Business Technology Audit, all those findings were being
progressed through an action plan.

Community and Culture Service had two priority 2 findings related to improving the
documentation for PCSP grant claims with regards to when a non-standard
approach to grant claims was appropriate and to ensure that management approval
was documented for variations in grant claim timetables. In addition, the Service
also had 8 priority 3 findings outstanding to be implemented.

Finance Service had recorded one outstanding Priority 1 Audit finding relating to the

provision of an Asset Management Policy, in addition there were seven Priority 2
findings and two Priority 3 findings which had not been able to be progressed due to

5
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the Covid-19 response and a lack of staff resources to influence policy review and
development. In addition to those there were four Priority 2 recommendations and
seven Priority 3 findings, progress and plans for completion of those were recorded.

Finance Service had also noted the absence of new Finance polices as a factor
contributing to Internal Control risk. A business case had been submitted for
additional staffing to progress those policies.

Section 3 — Governance

Administration had reported that complaints monitoring had revealed that information
was not always being appropriately captured and that, despite formal procedures
being in place, officers did not meet the expected standards in terms of response
times and responsibilities. An action plan was in place to address that with the
increased roll-out of the Te-Care software.

Assets and Property Services had reported that due to the recent high volatility in
fuel prices a “deemed contract” was set up with suppliers in a collective action by
councils to secure supply and attempt to achieve a price certainty as far as was
practical. Significant overspend was expected, officers would continue to report to
Council on that and explore options. In addition, due to unexpected market
conditions the sale of electricity from the wind turbine in Balloo Wood Bangor was
extended beyond the tender period, the tender would be revised.

The Service had also reported that due to the pandemic several vehicles were hired
from a local business to support waste collections and other activities, those were
hired without the value of the contract being known at the time, but those vehicles
had continued to require use for much longer than planned due to the health and
safety implications of Covid-19 on operations.

The Leisure Service had reported that the insourcing of the North Down Leisure
Services may introduce legal or financial issues which had not been foreseen. To
mitigate that the insourcing team had been made up of officers from across multiple
sections of the Council for the greatest breadth of experience available to work on
that. The loss of income claims submitted by the current operator were being
independently reviewed by an external contractor to make an assessment as to the
validity of those claims.

In addition, the Leisure Service had reported that the current difficulties recruiting
staff were leading to staffing shortfalls, should that continue there was the possibility
of reduction in facility opening hours and associated financial impact.

Environmental Health Protection and Development had again reported potentially
significant legal and financial issues due to the demand on the Service both in
relation to Covid-19 and the implementation of the Northern Ireland Protocol. In
addition, the Service was reporting a difficulty recruiting and retaining environmental
health staff, both for front facing and support staff which combined with the other
pressures may hinder the Council's ability to deliver on statutory requirements.

The Finance Service had reported that the issues of the interaction of overtime and
holiday pay were still unresolved as well as the implications of the McCloud and

6
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Sargent court cases, whilst being accounted for in financial statements for year end
March 2022 had not been fully accounted for in employer pension contribution rates.

In addition, the Service had reported that an attempted fraud was discovered on 13
April 2022, that was reported to the Northern Ireland Audit Office and the
Department for Communities, no loss was incurred by the Council.

The Parks and Cemeteries Service had reported that there would be an increase in
fuel costs associated with the removal of the ability to use red diesel in road-going
work vehicles (eg tractors). The ongoing complaints regarding remaining depths in
graves was having a negative impact on cemeteries operations. Generally, a
potential risk in terms of administration support had been identified following recent
restructuring and in Cemeteries a need for greater administration support had been
noted. A general review of the structure at SUM level had been identified as a future
requirement to prepare for a sustainable and resilient delivery model going forward.

Human Resources and Organisational Development had reported several Priority 2
and 3 findings resulting from a number of audits. A timetable had been put in place
to ensure appropriate action was taken within reasonable timescales.

Several direct award contracts were reported by services, all of those had been
reported to the Council and Council procedures followed.

Community and Culture had reported that there was a deviation from the Council’s
grants policy relating to a grant for the Platinum Jubilee celebrations which was
agreed by the Council. In addition, the Service had also noted that grant funding
relating to Covid-19 costs were claimed in error from SEUPB, and that the Service
was working with them to resolve that.

Section 4 — Miscellaneous

Many services had stated continuing difficulty in recruiting and retaining staff at all
levels as a key factor contributing to potential risk across a range of Council
activities.

The Planning Service had reported that the Service Level Agreement (revision) with
Shared Environmental Service required signing for the provision of services in
relation to Sustainability Appraisal for the Local Development Plan.

RECOMMENDED that the report be noted.

The Head of Finance outlined the report explaining that this was the Council’s bi-
annual report and in line with its risk management strategy which had previously
been agreed. It was the second one of the year and was a summary of issues being
reported from each service section. There were no major issues being shown,
however, there were a number of things to be highlighted.

There were some issues in respect of demands on Council staff, financial and
workload pressures and difficulties recruiting suitable staff in a number of sections.

The Head of Finance presented the remainder of the report to Members in detail.

[}
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Mr McGonigal had a question for the Head of Finance about the utilities contract that
was going to add significant pressures on the Council's resources and if there were
any contingencies to meet those demands or if there were any opportunities for
additional funding from the Department for Communities. The officer replied that
that would be seen later when the meeting considered the financial statements in
which it would be seen that the Council had set aside funds to help mitigate that cost
pressure.

In addition, the Association of Local Government Finance Officers (ALGFO) were
working on collating a piece of work with a view to putting in a financial pressure bid
to the Department for Communities in respect of the economy-wide pressures. That
piece of work was ongoing.

Councillor Gilmour referred to leisure services and the costs of insourcing, both legal
and financial issues which would be unforeseen. Members were informed that
insourcing was going through due process and there was already a project board set
up and was headed by the Director of Community and Wellbeing. There were a
number of workstreams around leisure and business technology, finance contracts,
human resources, assets and property that made up a reasonably lengthy ‘to do’ list.
The reporting was a flag that there may be issues that would come up as the Council
went through that due diligence process and in some respects those were issues
with an unknown outcome.

Alderman Armstrong-Cotter asked if the Council had given consideration to how to
address the difficulty it faced in relation to recruitment of suitable candidates to work
within the organisation. She was aware that in the planning section there was
pressure to progress planning applications, and she wondered how recruitment
could be improved. The Chief Executive agreed that recruitment and retention of
staff was currently a key issue for the Council and the matter had been raised at the
most recent Corporate Committee which had been held earlier in the month. The
problem was an issue across employment in Northern Ireland generally and a cross
Council working group had been set up to consider how the Council could attract
more and better applicants, outlining the attractive benefits such as annual leave and
the pension scheme. The Council was vulnerable for example to a general shortage
of HGV drivers in the waste and cleansing section and for those with leisure specific
qualifications such as sports coaches.

In response the Member was encouraged to hear of the Council's plan and
suggested that it should also think about promoting the Council in different ways to
appeal to younger people stating the benefits of flexibility and time out to travel for
example while also meeting the Council’s needs.

AGREED, on the proposal of Alderman Armstrong-Cotter, seconded by
Councillor Greer, that the recommendation be adopted.

8. TERMS OF REFERENCE REVIEW (Appendix V)

PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED:- Report from the Director of Finance and Performance
stating that in line with good practice the Audit Committee should review its terms of

8



Back to Agenda

AC.27.06.2022PM

reference annually and make recommendations to the Council to ensure that it
keeps up to date with developments within legislation, guidance and regional and
national issues.

The last review was carried out in June 2021.

The review had been carried out by the Head of Finance and there was only one
change recommended under Overall Purpose and Objectives add:

« Approve the appointment of an Internal Auditor and receive regular reports
therefrom.

RECOMMENDED that the Committee notes the report.

The Head of Finance spoke to Members stating that each year they were made
aware that the terms of reference were reviewed to ensure they were fit for purpose
and up to date. This year it had been decided to add in the procedure for the
appointment of an internal auditor and while the Council was carrying out that
process already this would formalise it.

Councillor Greer suggested a further amendment to the terms of reference to state
that while the appointment to the Audit Committee was for a four-year term there
were changes made to the make-up of the committee each year due to Members
taking on paositions of responsibility. The Director of Finance and Performance was
in agreement with that since there was much shuffling of positions following the
Annual Meeting and indicated that that would be incorporated into the Terms if
Members were in agreement.

Members were content that Councillor Greer’'s suggestion be included and left it to
officers to agree the wording of that addition.

AGREED, on the proposal of Councillor Greer, seconded by Alderman
Armstrong-Cotter, that the recommendation be adopted.

9. ANY OTHER NOTIFIED BUSINESS

The Chairman advised that there were no items of Any Other Notified Business.

NOTED.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC/PRESS

AGREED TO RECOMMEND, on the proposal of Councillor Greer, seconded by
Alderman Armstrong-Cotter, that the public/press be excluded during the
discussion of the undernoted items of confidential business.

10. SINGLE TENDER ACTIONS UPDATE

***IN COMMITTEE***
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NOT FOR PUBLICATION

SCHEDULE 6 — INFORMATION RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OR BUSINESS
AFFAIRS OF ANY PARTICULAR PERSON (INCLUDING THE COUNCIL HOLDNG
THAT INFORMATION)

11. DRAFT GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR 2021/22
(Appendix V1)

***IN COMMITTEE***
NOT FOR PUBLICATION
SCHEDULE 6 — INFORMATION RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OR BUSINESS

AFFAIRS OF ANY PARTICULAR PERSON (INCLUDING THE COUNCIL HOLDNG
THAT INFORMATION)

12. DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2021/22
(Appendix VII)

***IN COMMITTEE***

NOT FOR PUBLICATION

SCHEDULE 6 — INFORMATION RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OR BUSINESS
AFFAIRS OF ANY PARTICULAR PERSON (INCLUDING THE COUNCIL HOLDNG
THAT INFORMATION)

13. FRAUD, WHISTLEBLOWING AND DATA-PROTECTION
MATTERS

**IN COMMITTEE***

NOT FOR PUBLICATION

SCHEDULE 6 — INFORMATION RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OR BUSINESS
AFFAIRS OF ANY PARTICULAR PERSON (INCLUDING THE COUNCIL HOLDNG
THAT INFORMATION)

14. CIRCULATED FOR INFORMATION: NI AUDIT OFFICE GUIDES

**IN COMMITTEE***
NOT FOR PUBLICATION
SCHEDULE 6 — INFORMATION RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OR BUSINESS

AFFAIRS OF ANY PARTICULAR PERSON (INCLUDING THE COUNCIL HOLDNG
THAT INFORMATION)

10
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15. MEETING WITH NI AUDIT OFFICE AND INTERNAL AUDIT
SERVICE IN THE ABSENCE OF MANAGEMENT

***IN CONFIDENCE™***

NOT FOR PUBLICATION

SCHEDULE 6 — INFORMATION RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OR BUSINESS
AFFAIRS OF ANY PARTICULAR PERSON (INCLUDING THE COUNCIL HOLDNG
THAT INFORMATION)

RE-ADMITTANCE OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

AGREED, on the proposal of Alderman Armstrong-Cotter, seconded by
Councillor Greer, that the public/press be readmitted to the meeting.

TERMINATION OF MEETING

The meeting terminated at 8.17 pm.

i i
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ITEM 4b

Ards and North Down Borough Council

Council/Committee

Date of Meeting

Report Classification

Unclassified
Audit Committee

22 September 2022

Responsible Director

Director of Finance and Performance

Responsible Head of
Service

Date of Report

14 September 2022

File Reference

Legislation

Subject

Section 75 Compliant

AUDO2

Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations
2015

Yes [0 No O Not Applicable

Attachments

Follow up actions from previous meetings - Action
Register
Appendix 1

In line with best practice, the purpose of this report is to make the Audit Committee
aware of the status of outstanding recommendations or any outstanding actions from
the previous Audit Committee meetings.

There one item from the previous committee.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Committee notes the report.

Page 1 of 2
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Unclassified
December 2021
8 Terms of Reference e Amend to include Head of
changes following Annual = Finance

Meeting
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ITEM 5a

Ards and North Down Borough Council

Report Classification

Council/Committee

Date of Meeting

Unclassified

PIP

22 September 2022

Responsible Director

Director of Finance and Performance

Responsible Head of
Service

Head of Strategic Transformation and Performance

Date of Report

13 September 2022

| File Reference
Legislation

Section 75 Compliant

| Subject

Attachments

Context

260501-03

Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 Part 12

Yes [ No [ Other [
If other, please add comment below:

2022/23 Performance Improvement Plan - Quarter 1
progress report

2022/23 PIP - Q1 Progress Report

The Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 Part 12 put in place a new

framework to support continuous improvement in the delivery of council services.

The Council is required each year to determine its priorities for improvement which
are aligned to the Community Plan and Corporate Objectives and to publish these in
the format of an Improvement Plan by 30 June in each year..

Following internal discussion and review of the most recent Resident Survey
conducted in June 2021 it was concluded that with minor alterations to Improvement
Objectives 2 and 3 the 2021/22 Improvement Objectives should be rolled forward to
2022/23 and any incomplete actions would be brought forward. This approach
aligns to feedback from the NIAO regarding continuity and the ability to track
performance on our objectives.

Page 1 of 4
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Unclassified

PIP 2021/22 PIP 2022/23

Improvement -
Objective

We will grow the economy and create | We will grow the economy and create
jobs jobs

We will improve the cleanliness of the | We will improve the cleanliness of the
streets in our borough by targeting dog | streets
fouling incidents:

| We will improve the recycling rates | We will improve the Borough's
from Household Recycling Centres recycling rates

| We will support our business and We will support our businesses and
residents to protect and improve their | residents to protect and improve their
health and wellbeing health and wellbeing

| We will use technology to drive | We will use technology to drive
change change

There are a corresponding 38 measures including 7 Statutory Indicators and 6 self-
imposed indicators, all are included in the Council's Service Plans and are monitored
and reported on quarterly through each Service’s respective Standing Committee.

It should be noted that this report reflects performance of the PIP 2022/23 only and
is not necessarily representative of the overall performance of the organisation.

The following table gives an assessment of the status across all measures in the PIP
for Quarter 1 2022/23 (1 April — 30 June 2022).

Performance Assessment Key
The key outlined below provides definitions for the three Red, Amber, Green (RAG)
status levels which have been chosen to measure progress.

RAG Status Definition

. Target/standard, actions and measures are of
concern and are mostly falling short of plan

Target/standard, actions and measures are mostly

O on track, but some are falling short of plan
Target/standard, actions and measures are on track
Rescheduled/no progress owing to impact of Covid

Page 2 of 4
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Corporate Improvement Objective No of measures
Plan PEOPLE
priority 0 @ N @
PROSPERITY P We will grow the economy and create jobs - - 12
ENVIRONMENT | P We willimprove the cleanliness of the streets = 1 2
P We will improve the Borough's recycling rates . 1 = =
LIFE P We will support our businesses and residents to i ) ) c
protect and improve their health and wellbeing
EXCELLENCE P We will use technology to drive change & = 4
STATUTORY P Municipal Waste 1 - 2
INDICATORS P Economic Development - 1
P Planning - -
SELF-IMPOSED P Resident Satisfaction = = = 1
INDICATORS P Prompt Payment of Invoices - - - 3
P Average number of working days lost per employee
P % staff attendance 2 = ! =
P Average days lost per employee = = = 1
OVERALL | - 6 1 31

This section of the report details each measure report Red or Amber status with
supporting commentary from the relevant Service. This section focusses on the
Improvement Objectives that have measures reporting Red or Amber outcomes in

the period.

o Prosperity / Planning
« EX.01.PL01.001 Number of weeks to process local applications from date valid
to decision or withdrawal
o 255 applications in the local category of development were submitted and 266
decisions issued if which 2 were refusal, which an average processing time of
23.0 weeks.
¢ EX.01.PL01.002 Number of weeks to process major applications from date valid
to decision or withdrawal
o 2 approvals issued on Major Development applications which were for a
replacement schoal in Crawfordsburn and 29no. dwellings at High Street in
Holywood, which were processed in 28.8 weeks and 78.4 weeks respectively.
The Holywood proposal was subject to a number of amendments including

relating to trees and landscaping within the proposed Area of Townscape

Character.
e EX.01.PL07.001 % progress of all enforcement cases to target conclusion
within 39 weeks of receipt of complaint (i.e. case closure, date on which
Enforcement Notice or Breach of Condition Notice issued, summons to court
(date solicitor instructed)
o Enforcement staff continue to work through the backlog of new cases opened
during COVID, and number of alleged breaches of planning control continue
to remain high.

Page 3 of 4
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@ Environment
¢« EN.02.RS02.002 Redesign the delivery model for the Environmental CLEAR
programme to year 8's
o The education programme is still in development
e EN.04.WC01.001 Develop Strategy for improving recycling rates across HRCs
o Progress on the development of the strategy has been stalled pending a
workshop with Elected Members.
e« EN.01.WC02.001 % of household waste recycled, reused and composted
o With the majority of Covid measures now withdrawn, the Council will be
undertaking an extensive Communications Campaign around the
householders kerbside recycling requirements and recommencing kerbside
checks for contamination/recyclables in residual waste bins, in an effort to
increase recycling rates towards the 60% target.

~> Excellence
¢ PF.03.Council.01 % staff attendance
o The overall absence figure for Quarter 1 was 6.93%, 4.85% attributable to
long term absence and 2.08% to short term absence. There continued to be
an impact due to Covid-19, with 2% of absences being attributable to the
virus, and this is reflected in the inflated short term absence figure. If Covid-
19 related absences are excluded from the figures, then the overall absence
figure for the quarter represents 5.73%. Those on long term sick continue to
undergo consultations at Occupational Health to assess their medical
condition. Employees attend regular meetings to review their progress and
fitness for work and to discuss any measures which can be done to enable
them to return to work in a timely manner.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the report is noted.
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Ards and
North Down

Borough Councll

PROSPERITY
Improvement Objective 1 - We will grow the economy and create jobs
Status |PI Code & Short Name Last Update |CUrTent $::;:'t“
EX.01.PLO1.001 Mumber of weeks to process local applications
. from date valid to decision or withdrawal QLInz2a3 |20 15
EX.01.PL0O1.002 Number of weeks to process major applications
. from date valid to decision or withdrawal Q1 2022/23 (536 30
EX.01.PLO7.001 % progress of all enforcement cases to target
conclusion within 39 weeks of receipt of complaint (i.e. case o
. closure, date on which Enforcement Notice or Breach of Condition QL 22z/es 8% i
Notice issued, summons to court (date solicitor instructed)
@ EX.01.RUD2.001 To deliver the town recovery plans and a rural Q1 2022/23 |0 0
recovery plan
@ EX.01.TO07.002 Develop Events Bid for Strategy Q1 2022/23 |0 0
0OP.02.TO01.001 No of event organisers and volunteers receiving
@ support/training (cumulative) Q1 2022/23 |6 s
PR.05.EDO01.004 Number of participants on ERDF Digital
@ Transformation programme Q1 2022/23 |0 0
@ PR.05.ED05.001 No of new jobs created through NIBSUF2 Q1 2022/23 |31 20
@ 52‘225235.001&1 No of new jobs created through business start- Q1 2022/23 |31 20
PR.05.ED06.001 Number of businesses supported through the
@ Digital Growth Programme Qi 2022/23 |4 4
PR.05.ED06.003 Delivery and implementation of Digital Strategy
@ Action Plan Q1 2022/23 |0 0
PR.05.RUD1.002 No of meetings with Town Advisory Groups to
@ develop regeneration improvements Q1 2022/23 |5 1
PR.05.RUD4.001 No of projects developed in partnership with
@ EBR for Peace Plus funding Qi 2022/23 |0 0
PR.05.RU04.002 Number of capital schemes commenced using
(V] funding from Covid Recovery Small Settlements Programme Q1 2022/23 [0 9
PR.06.ED02.003 Number of new jobs created through Go For It
@ programme (cumulative) QUaldz/2a |31 =
ENVIRONMENT
Improvement Objective 2 - We will improve the cleanliness of the streets
Status | PI Code & Short Name Last Update | CUrrent $::g";'t“
EN.01.WC03.001 Local Environmental Audit and Measurement
0 - (LEAMS) (Street Cleansing) QL 2022/23 |26 a2
EN.02.RS02.002 Redesign the delivery model for the
. Environmental CLEAR programme to year 8's Q1-2022/53 L es
EX.01.RS03.001 Maintain top 3 position for Fixed Penalty
- Ml Q12022/23  |Yes Yes
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Improvement Objective 3 - We will improve the Borough's recycling rates

across HRCs

Status |PI Code & Short Name Last Update  [CUTFERt | TUTERRE
Q EN.01.WC01.001 Tonnage of municipal solid waste sent to landfill |{Q1 2022/23 9,363 10,000
. E:}vl;_?;:‘ld::'gc(l)z.ﬂﬂl % of household waste recycled, reused and Q1 2022/23 55% 60%
@ E;\Iig'}é\;ﬁ:loz.ﬁﬂz Amount (tonnes) of biodegradable waste sent Q1 2022/23 4,003 4,754
. EN.04.WC01.001 Develop Strategy for improving recycling rates Q1 2022/23 No Yes

{Council Wide)

LIFE
Improvement Objective 4 - We will support our businesses and residents to protect and improve their health and
wellbeing
Current |Current
Status |PI Code & Short Name Last Update |, o Target
EN.03.PC01.001 Total Hectares of Council maintained ground
& peoplinay Q12022/23  |49,195  |49,195
€D |En.03.C02.001 Number of trees planted Q12022/23 |2 0
EX.01.AP02.001 % of condition surveys completed against o
Q schedule (cumulative) QA202L22 10a% 10n%
EX.01.EH07.001 Produce business case and recruit additional
Q support in Health and Wellbeing Q1 2022/23 1 1
@ |11.02.pC01.001 Retain Green Flag Awards Q12022/23 |6 5
EXCELLENCE
Improvement Objective 5 - We will use technology to drive change
Status |PI Code & Short Name Last Update E:; ;:nt .?::;ee:t
EX.01.AD08.002 Resolution rate for issues or enquiries at first
Q point of contact for Customer Service Q1 2022/23 97% 5%
EX.02.CC01.005 Develop proposals for more innovative and
Q effective methods of consultation and engagement with residents Q1 2022/23 No No
Q EX.03.TP03.001 Develop a Digital Transformation Strategy H1 2022/23 g[o)ilzun— ggf;pﬁ
EX.05.TP03.001 Commence Strategic Transformation and 31-May- —
Q Efficiency Programme - Digital QI 3022/23 2022 31-¥r-2023
Q EX.02.CC01.004 % resident satisfaction with engagement Q1 2022/23 0% 0%
@ |pF.02.Council.01 Prompt Payment within 10 working days Q12021/22  |90% 55%
0 PF.02.Council.02 Prompt Payment within 30 calendar days Q1 2021/22 99% 95%
€ |PF.02.Council.03 Prompt Payment outside 30 calendar days Q12021/22  |1% 12%
f_l» PF.03.Council.01 % staff attendance Q1 2022/23 93.07% 95%
Q EX.04.HR02.002 Average number of days lost per employee Q1 2022/23 3.8 4
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We have prepared this report for Ards and North Down Borough Council’s sole use. You must not
disclose it to any third party, quote or refer to it, without our written consent and we assume no

responsibility to any other person.
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1. KEY MESSAGES

This report summarises the key matters from our audit of the 2021-22 Ards and North Down Borough
Council (ANDBC) financial statements which we must report to the Audit Committee, as those charged
with governance. We would like to thank the Director of Finance and Performance and his staff for
their assistance during the audit process.

Proposed Audit Opinion
Itis proposed that the Local Government Auditor (LGA) will report on the 2021-22 financial statements
with an unqualified audit opinion, without modification.

Proposed Audit Certificate

It is also proposed that the Local Government Auditor will certify completion of the audit of accounts
of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order
2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. The audit certificate closes the audit and
marks the point when the Local Government Auditor’s statutory responsibilities in respect of the audit
of the accounts for the period covered by the certificate have been discharged.

The draft Audit Certificate is included at Appendix Two.

Misstatements

Financial Statement Adjustments
No adjustments to the financial statements were made as a result of the audit.

Uncorrected misstatements
Uncorrected misstatements would decrease expenditure and increase net assets by a further £231k.

Audit Findings

During the audit we reviewed internal controls; accounting systems; and procedures to the extent
considered necessary for the effective performance of the audit. We have not identified any priority
one recommendations in relation to the internal control environment.

Full details of findings are included at Findings from the Audit.
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Proper Arrangements

Under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005, the Local Government Auditor should be
satisfied that a Council has in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are satisfied that the Council has in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. However, we
have identified a number of areas for improvement in relation to policies that are overdue for review.
Further details are included in the Findings from the Audit.

Status of the Audit
The audit is substantially complete with the following items outstanding:

e receipt and review of the revised annual report and financial statements; and
¢ bank confirmations.

Following receipt of outstanding items, it is proposed that the Chief Financial Officer will sign the
Statement of Accounts together with a letter of representation, the proposed wording of which is

included at Appendix One.

The total audit fee charged is in line with that set out in our Audit Strategy.

Independence
We consider that we comply with the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) Ethical Standard and that, in
our professional judgment, we are independent and our objectivity is not compromised.

No non-audit services were provided to the entity.

Management of information and personal data

The Council is required to comply with the UK General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) in the
handling and storage of personal data. Those Charged with Governance should ensure they have made
sufficient enquiries of management to form a view on whether there were any significant specific data
incidents which should be disclosed in the Governance Statement. We are not aware of any data
handling incidents during the year. Confirmation to this effect has been sought within the letter of
representation included at Appendix One,

During the course of our audit we have access to personal data to support our audit testing. We have
established processes to hold this data securely within encrypted files and to destroy it where relevant
at the conclusion of our audit. We can confirm that we have discharged those responsibilities
communicated to you in accordance with the requirements of the UK General Data Protection
Regulation (UK GDPR) and Data Protection Act 2018.

Looking ahead

In response to significant changes in International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), the way in which we
plan and conduct our audits is changing for our 2022-23 audit cycle. This will involve the performance
of more detailed and extensive risk assessment procedures to identify financial reporting risks of
material misstatement, and the subsequent design of audit approaches which are responsive to each
assessed risk. We will write to the Chief Finance Officer this autumn to outline these changes and
potential implications for our audit of the 2022-23 financial statements.
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Performance Improvement

The outcome from our work in respect of Part 12 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014
on Performance Improvement will be reported separately to those charged with governance, as set
out in the planned approach in the 2021-22 Audit Strategy.

Actions for the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee should:

e Review the findings set out in this report, including the draft letter of representation and audit
certificate at Appendices One and Two respectively; and

e Consider whether the uncorrected misstatements set out in section 5, ‘Misstatements’ should
be corrected. The Audit Committee minutes should provide written endorsement of
management’s reasons for not correcting these misstatements.
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2. AUDIT SCOPE

We have completed our audit of the 2021-22 financial statements in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) issued by the Financial Reporting Council; with Practice Note 10
‘Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Entities in the United Kingdom’; and with the Audit
Strategy presented to the Audit Committee in March 2022.

There are no new matters to communicate concerning the planned scope and timing of the audit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The significant risks identified in our Audit Strategy have been addressed as follows:

Significant Risk 1 '
Management override of controls
Under ISA (UK) 240, there is a presumed significant risk of material misstatement due to fraud
through management override of controls.
As required by ISA (UK) 240, we:
e tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements;
o reviewed accounting estimates for biases and evaluate whether the circumstances
producing the bias, if any, represent a risk of material misstatement due to fraud; and
e considered significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the
entity, or that otherwise appear to be unusual.
' Outcome :
No issues were noted in respect of management override of controls

Significant Risk 2
| Risk of fraud in revenue recognition ,

Under ISA (UK) 240, there is also a presumed risk of fraud in revenue recognition, albeit rebuttable.
We have assessed this risk to be significant in relation to the Council’s other income streams (i.e.
income streams relating to community planning; economic development and planning; operations;
and for 2021-22, government support). We note that income in relation to Leisure, Arts and Culture
services continued to be impacted during the year due to the closure of facilities for periods of time.
We undertook the following procedures:

* documented our understanding of the controls and procedures in place around revenue
recognition;

o verified income received from Government Grants to supporting documentation and
subsequent receipt to gain comfort over the completeness of income;

e substantively tested income streams relating to community planning; economic
development; planning; operations; leisure and amenities; community and culture; and
government support grants,

¢ analytically reviewed other material income streams, investigating any large and/or
unusual variances; and

e performed walkthroughs and substantive testing of income.

No issues were identified in relation to revenue recognition.

No additional significant risks were identified during our audit fieldwork.

w



Agenda 6 (a) / Item 6a - 021-22 ANDBC Draft RTTCWG 13-9-22.pdf Back to Agenda

4. FINDINGS FROM THE AUDIT

Financial Reporting

As part of our audit, we evaluate the qualitative aspects of accounting practices and financial
reporting. In this section we draw to your attention any significant changes or issues in respect of
accounting policies; accounting estimates; and financial statement disclosures.

The Council has robust processes in place for the production of the accounts and continue to produce
good quality supporting working papers. Officers dealt efficiently with audit queries, effectively
prioritising them, and the audit process has been completed within the planned timescales.

Accounting Policies

Accounting policies adopted by the Council have not changed or altered since the prior year financial
statements. On this basis we can conclude that the quality, effectiveness and transparency of
financial reporting and accounting at the Council is appropriate.

Accounting Estimates

We examined the appropriateness of accounting estimates and judgements and are content with
the consistency of assumptions and the degree of prudence reflected in the recorded amounts.

Financial Statement Disclosures

We have made a number of suggestions to improve narrative disclosures and to ensure
completeness of the disclosures required under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
and other relevant guidance.

Going Concern

We considered the Medium Term Financial Plan and while the financial outlook appears challenging,
no events or conditions were identified from our audit work that cast significant doubt about the
Council’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Narrative Report

The Narrative Report was considered to be consistent with our understanding of the business, and
was in line with the other information provided in the financial statements.

Remuneration Report

The parts of the Remuneration Report to be audited were considered to be properly prepared in
accordance with Department for Communities (DfC) directions issued under the Local Government
(Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015. A number of changes were suggested in
relation to various disclosures within the remuneration report. These changes have been made.

Governance Statement

Our review of the Governance Statement confirmed that it complies with the Code of Practice and
the Department for Communities Accounts Direction. We provided management with a number of
minor observations and suggested disclosure changes to improve the narrative and completeness
of disclosures within the Governance Statement.
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Legality, Propriety and Losses

We found no issues in relation to illegality, propriety or losses during our audit.

Internal Control

No material weaknesses in the design and implementation of the Council’s internal control systems
have come to our attention during the audit. However, certain internal control weaknesses were
identified during audit testing and are detailed below. We also note the three limited assurance
reports issued by Internal Audit and management’s accepted responses to these recommendations.

Related Parties

No significant matters were arising during the audit in connection with the Council’s related parties.
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Audit Recommendations

This section outline the findings arising from our audit, as well as management’s response and target
date for implementation. Our findings are defined as:

e Priority 1 — significant issues for the attention of senior management which may have the
potential to result in material weakness in internal control.

e Priority 2 — important issues to be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility.

e Priority 3 — issues of a more minor nature which represent best practice.

Finding 1

| Business cases and spend without authority
Business Cases
Our review of fixed asset additions identified that in three instances, business cases were not signed
by the relevant Council staff members. It is Council policy that all business cases are signed by the
appropriate manager whether this is an electronic or physical signature.

Spend without authority

We noted during expenditure testing that no contract or Direct Award Contract (DAC) was in place
for transactions with two suppliers. While the amount sampled was lower, we noted that
cumulative spend with these suppliers was as follows:

e  Manvik - £349k
e Autobody - £49k

We also noted that the Governance Statement refers to spend on vehicle hire for which no
procurement exercise was completed or DAC in place due the COVID-19 pandemic.

Whilst the above suppliers are preferred suppliers (and in the instance of Manvik are the only
providers available) the Council has not followed the appropriate procurement or DAC procedures
and therefore formalised contracting arrangement are not currently in place.

 Priority Rating

2

We recommend that
o Council staff ensure that all business cases are signed as evidence of the necessary
approval; and
e The Council regularise the contractual arrangements with all suppliers as soon as possible,
be it using a formal contract or a Direct Award contract. Expenditure should not be
approved where a formal contractual arrangement does not exist.

' Management Response (including target date) |

o
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Finding 2

Disposal of Ards Leisure Centre

The Council disposed of the former Ards Leisure Centre site to the Department for Infrastructure
(Dfl) on 1 April 2021 for due consideration of £1.8m. Dfl has not made payment for the site. We
note that the vesting order for this disposal became operative during the 2021/22 financial year (19
May 2021), with compensation due to the Council of £1.8m. The Council’s compliance team has
followed up this matter with Dfl and while they remain content that this amount in fully recoverable
there is no commitment in writing from Dfl. On 30 May 2022, Dfl stated to Council that “the matter
of compensation is currently the subject of negotiations between the Dfl Departmental Solicitor’s
Office and the legal representatives for AND Council. Until the negotiations are successfully
concluded, an invoice should not have been submitted”.

The Council’s debt management policy states that formal debt collection process should commence
after 30 days of the invoice date and in these instance has not been followed. In such instances,
given materiality, we would have expected the Council to seek assurances from Dfl over the
recoverability of this balance and have formal pursuance of the debt recorded.

Priority Rating

' Recommendation
We recommend that the Council escalate the non-payment of this amount with Dfl and seeks
confirmation of recoverability. The Council’s debt control policy for debt management should be
followed in all instances.
Management Response (including target date)

||

Finding 3

Leases :
The Council maintain a MS Excel workbook for recording all instances of when the Council acts as a
lessor. We noted that the workbook was outdated and that it included inaccurate start/end dates
and lease amounts. While the differences caused by these errors when netted off are clearly trivial
in terms of disclosures in the financial statements, there is a risk that properties continue to be used
by the lessees even though the leases has expired or that Council fail to undertake rent reviews at
appropriate times.

Priority Rating

| |

Recommendation _
We recommend that the Council’s lease register is reviewed on a regular basis for completeness
and accuracy to ensure that rent reviews and lease renewals are dealt with as soon as they are due.

w
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Management Response (including target date)

Finding 4

Proper arrangements
During our Proper Arrangements work the following areas for improvement were identified, some
of which had been raised in prior years:

e the Council’s ICT system is still not ISO 27001 accredited;

» we note that some work continues to ensure that all policies are up to date, complete and
reflective of actual practice. As part of our consideration of proper arrangements, we noted
further updates are required to either review existing policies, approve draft policies or to
review new policies for the following areas: Staff Travel Policy (2010); Anti-Fraud, Bribery
and Corruption Policy (2018); Employee Expenses and Benefits Policy (2013);

e we note that a resource/succession planning policy has not yet been implemented.
However consultations are underway to inform this formulation of this policy;

e we note that the Council’s Business Continuity Plan which was drafted in February 2020 has
yet to be finalised/adopted by Council;

e the Council still has not yet established a Reserves Policy;

e amanaging vacancies policy dated July 2014 is now redundant and should be removed from
the Council’s policy list; and

e from our review of journals, we noted that four journals were not approved before posting.

Priority Rating '

||

. Recommendation
We recommend that:
e the Council ensures that its information security arrangements are I1SO 27001 compliant
and seek accreditation;
e the Council continues work to ensure that all policies are up to date and formally approved;
and
e all journals are approved before posting and that evidence is retained of this approval.

| Management Response (including target date)

There were no priority one recommendations made in our prior year Report to those charged with
Governance that need to be followed up on.

1

o
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Proper Arrangements
Under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005, the Local Government Auditor should be

satisfied that a Council has in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are satisfied that the Council has in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. However, a
number of areas for improvement have been identified - see Finding 4 for further details.

11
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5. MISSTATEMENTS
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Adjusted misstatements

During the audit process we identified no misstatements above our clearly trivial threshold of £71,500.

Uncorrected misstatements
The table below lists unadjusted misstatements which exceed our clearly trivial threshold of £71,500. Uncorrected misstatements would decrease

expenditure and increase net assets by a further £231k.

Credit

£000

Baianc_e Sheet
Debit Credit
£'000 £'000

Fixed asset additions Expenditure of a capital nature 231

Expenditure included in revenue expenditure 231

Trade creditors Classification error of trade and 75

Capital creditors capital creditors. 75
TOTAL 231 306 75
NET EFFECT 231 231

We recommend that uncorrected misstatements be corrected by the Council.

12
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APPENDIX ONE
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION

[Client Letterhead]

The Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION: ARDS AND NORTH DowN BOROUGH COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2021-22

As Chief Financial Officer of the Ards and North Down Borough Council (“the Council”) | have fulfilled
my responsibility for preparing accounts that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, income
and expenditure, cash flows, and movements in reserves, and the related notes of the Council for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

In preparing the accounts, | was required to:

= observe the accounts direction issued by the Department for Communities (DfC), including the

relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply appropriate accounting policies
on a consistent basis;

= make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

= state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed and disclosed and
explain any material departures in the accounts; and

= make an assessment that the Council is a going concern and will continue to be in operation throughout
the next year and ensure that this has been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements.

| confirm that for the financial year ended 31 March 2022;

= having considered and enquired asto the Council ‘s compliance with law and regulations,
I am not aware of any actual or potential non-compliance that could have a material
effect on the ability of the Councilto conduct its businessor on the results and Balance
Sheet disclosed in the accounts;

= all accounting records have been provided to you for the purpose of your audit and all
transactions undertaken by the Council have been properly reflected and recorded in the
accounting records. All other records and related information, including minutes of all
management meetings which you have requested have been supplied to you; and

= the information provided regarding the identification of related parties and related party
transactions involving Councillors and senior staff is complete; and the related party disclosures
in the financial statements are adequate.

13
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All material accounting policies as adopted are detailed in note 1 to the accounts.

INTERNAL CONTROL

| have fulfilled my responsibility as Chief Financial Officer for the design and implementation of
internal controls to prevent and detect error and | have disclosed to you the results of my
assessment of the risk that the financial statements could be materially misstated.

| confirm that | have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control and that the
disclosures | have made are in accordance with DfC guidance on the Governance Statement.

FRAUD
| have fulfilled my responsibility as Chief Financial Officer for the design and implementation of
internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and | have disclosed to you the results of my
assessment of the risk that the financial statements could be materially misstated as a result of
fraud.

| am not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council and no allegations of fraud
or suspected fraud affecting the financial statements has been communicated to me by
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

ASSETS

General

All assets included in the Balance Sheet were in existence at the reporting period date and
owned by the Council and free from any lien, encumbrance or charge, except as disclosed in
the accounts. The Balance Sheet includes all long term assets owned by the Council.

Long Term Assets

All assets over £5,000 are capitalised. They are revalued regularly to ensure that their carrying
amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end. Annually a full
revaluation is performed on 1/5" of the Council’s assets and all other assets subject to a desk
based valuation. All assets will receive a full revaluation as a minimum, every 5 years, by Land
and Property Services (LPS). Depreciation is calculated to reduce the net book amount of each
asset to its estimated residual value by the end of its estimated useful life in the Council’s
operations.

Current Assets

On realisation in the ordinary course of the Council's operations the other current assets in the
Balance Sheet are expected to produce at least the amounts at which they are stated. Adequate
provision has been made against all amounts owing to the Council which are known, or may be
expected, to be irrecoverable.

Current assets include £1.8m compensation receivable from Dfl for the transfer of the former Ards
Leisure Centre with effect from 1 April 2021 which | believe is fully recoverable.

LIABILITIES

General
All liabilities have been recorded in the Balance Sheet. There were no significant losses in the year
and no provisionsfor losses were required at the year end.

14
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All litigation and claims have been disclosed to you and correctly accounted for.

Provisions
Provision is madein the financial statements for:

e Insurance - £424k;

e Environment - £95k;
o legal-£30k; and

s Holiday pay - £681k.

Contingent Liabilities

There are a number of legal claims or potential claims against the Council the outcome of which
cannot at present be estimated with certainty. Full provisionis made in the financial statements for
all liabilities which are expected to materialise.

| am not aware of any pending litigation which may result in significant loss to the Council, and | am
not aware of any action which is or may be brought againstthe Council under the Insolvency (Northern
Ireland) Order 1989 and the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Results

Except as disclosed in the accounts, the results for the year were not materially affected by
transactions of a sort not usually undertaken by the Council, or circumstances of an exceptional or
non-recurring nature.

Unadjusted Misstatements
Uncorrected misstatements would decrease expenditure and increase net assets by a further £231k.

Events after the Balance Sheet date

Except as disclosed in the accounts, there have been no material changes since the Balance Sheet
date affecting liabilities and commitments, and no events or transactions have occurred which, though
properly excluded from the accounts, are of such importance that they should have been brought to
notice.

Accounting Estimates

The methods, significant assumptions and the data used in making the accounting estimates and
the related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that
is in accordance with the financial reporting framework.

Management of Personal Data
Except as disclosed in the Governance Statement, there have been no personal data related incidents
in 2021-22 which are required to be reported.

Mr Stephen Reid
Ards and North Down Borough Council

Date:

15



Back to Agenda

APPENDIX TwO
AUDIT CERTIFICATE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARDS AND NORTH DOWN BOROUGH
COUNCIL

| have audited the financial statements of Ards and North Down Borough Council for the year ended
31 March 2022 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements
comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes including significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom supported by UK adopted
International Financial Reporting Standards.

| have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as
having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021-22,
of the financial position of Ards and North Down Borough Council as at 31 March 2022
and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

» have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities’
directions issued thereunder.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of Ards and
North Down Borough Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Financial Reporting
Council’s Ethical Standard and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. | believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, | have concluded that Ards and North Down Borough Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on Ards and North Down
Borough Council's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The going concern basis of accounting for Ards and North Down Borough Council is adopted in
consideration of the requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, which
require entities to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements where it anticipated that the services which they provide will continue into the future.
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My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts other than
the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in that report as having been
audited, and my audit certificate and report. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other
information included in the Statement of Accounts. My opinion on the financial statements does not
caver the other information and except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my report, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If | identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, | am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work | have performed, |
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Department for Communities’ directions made under the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

s the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March
2022 is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which | report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of Ards and North Down Borough Council and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified material misstatements in the
Statement of Accounts.

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:
* inmy opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

» does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021-22;

= does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;

= is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

e |issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005; or

e | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

* | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities, the
Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

» the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view;

s such internal controls as the Chief Finance Officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error;

e assessing Ards and North Down Borough Council’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Chief Finance Officer anticipates that the services provided
by Ards and North Down Borough Council will not continue to be provided in the future.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue a certificate that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

| design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements
in respect of non-compliance with laws and regulation, including fraud.

My procedures included:

s obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to Ards and
North Down Borough Council through discussion with management and application of
extensive public sector accountability knowledge. The key laws and regulations |
considered included the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005;

s making enquires of management and those charged with governance on Ards and North
Down Borough Council’s compliance with laws and regulations;

* making enquiries of internal audit, management and those charged with governance as
to susceptibility to irregularity and fraud, their assessment of the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and irregularity, and their knowledge of actual, suspected and
alleged fraud and irregularity;

o completing risk assessment procedures to assess the susceptibility of Ards and North
Down Borough Council’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how
fraud might occur. This included, but was not limited to, an engagement director led
engagement team discussion on fraud to identify particular areas, transaction streams
and business practices that may be susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. As
part of this discussion, | identified potential for fraud in the following areas: revenue
recognition and posting of unusual journals;

s engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with the applicable legal and regulatory framework throughout the audit;

» documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of internal controls in place
to mitigate risk of material misstatement due to fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations;

+ designing audit procedures to address specific laws and regulations which the
engagement team considered to have a direct material effect on the financial statements
in terms of misstatement and irregularity, including fraud. These audit procedures
included, but were not limited to, reading Council and committee minutes, and agreeing
financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation and approvals
as appropriate; and

e addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls by:
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o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected relationships
or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and inappropriate or
unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions made in determining
accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias; and

o investigating significant or unusual transactions made outside of the normal
course of business.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council’s website http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of my certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Ards and North Down Borough Council in accordance
with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in
the Statement of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government Bodies.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Ards and North Down Borough Council in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the
Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

Date
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".‘ Morthern Ireland
- Audit Office
Mr Patrick Barr

106 University St,
Belfast BT7 1EU

14 September 2022

Stephen Reid

Chief Financial Officer

Ards and North Down Borough Council
Town Hall

The Castle

Bangor

BT20 4BT

Dear Stephen
Ards and North Down Borough Council

Draft Report to those charged with Governance for the year ended 31 March
2022

I have attached a draft Report to those charged with Governance setting out the
provisional findings from our audit of Ards and North Down Borough Council’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Key Messages section outlines the
current status of the audit.

Following finalisation of the audit and receipt of management comments to the issues
identified in our report, we will issue the report to you in final form. If you have any
gueries on the matters raised in the Report to those charged with Governance, I
would be happy to discuss them with you if you would find that helpful.

You will appreciate that the matters were identified from our normal audit procedures
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs). These
are designed primarily for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements and included only a limited review of your accounting systems and
procedures. Therefore our work may not have brought to light all the weaknesses
that may exist, and our findings should not be seen as comprehensive in this respect.
I have included an assessment of the risks and made recommendations that are
designed to be constructive. However, I should point out that responsibility for
determining whether they should be implemented, and the effects of such
implementation, necessarily rests with management.

Morthern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street, Belfast, BT/ 1EU « 028 90251000 - www.niauditoffice.govuk

T TT—
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I would like to take this opportunity to thank you and your staff for the assistance and
co-operation received throughout the audit. I would be grateful if the draft report was
tabled at the next Audit Committee meeting.

Yours sincerely

pp Andrew Allen

Patrick Barr

Director
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Narrative Report
Introduction

These financial statements set out Ards and North Down Borough Council's financial performance
during the financial year 2021/22 and its financial position at the end of that year. The Council's
financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2022 is as set out in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (pages 53-54), the Movement of Reserves Statement (pages 55-56), and
its financial position is as set out in the Balance Sheet (page 57) and Cash Flow Statement (page
58).

The financial statements follow approved accounting standards and are necessarily technical in parts.
It is the purpose of this narrative report to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts
in relation to the Council in addition to its main objectives, strategies and the principal risks it faces.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31 March 2022 (the Code) and the Department
for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 02/2022 dated 7 January 2022 and are the
‘Statement of Accounts’ the Council is required to prepare under Regulation 7 of the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations 2015.

Organisation Overview and External Environment

The Council operates a traditional model of decision making for councils and is organised into five
directorates plus the Chief Executive's Office. Each of these directorates are further divided into
Services as follows:

Environmental Health, Protection
and Development Waste and Cleansing

Community and Culture Assets and Property

Parks and Cemeteries Regulatory Services
Leisure

Internal Audit

eneration i
Regeneration Finance

Foonamc Bevelopment Strategic Transformation and

Planning Performance

Tourism Strategic Capital Development

Human Resources and Organisation Community Planning
Development

Communications and Marketing
Administration




The Council delivers a broad range of
local services covering among others:
community development, leisure, parks
and cemeteries, waste collection and
disposal, economic development and
tourism, environmental health, building
control, planning and off-street car
parking. It directly employs over 800
staff and has a budget of £67.5M. In
addition, it participates in a number of
strategic  partnerships with  other
councils, private operators, public
bodies and third sector organisations in
order to deliver its vision for the
Borough.

Government

Grants, £3.5M

Back to Agenda

District Rates,
£55.4M

The Council recently refreshed this vision -- it seeks to make ‘Ards and North Down a vibrant,
connected, healthy, safe and prosperous place to be’. It has set its objectives out in the context of its
Corporate Plan Towards 2024. Service Plans are produced and published on an annual basis,
detailing how the Council intends to meet the Corporate Objectives. Key improvement activities are
also published annually in the Council’'s Performance Improvement Plan (PIP), however, in light of
the COVID-19 pandemic the legislative requirement to publish such a plan was set aside by the
Department for Communities in the 2020/21 year but reinstated for 2021/22.

The Council’'s Corporate Objectives are themed as follows:

+  PROSPERITY — Growing our economy

+  ENVIRONMENT — Growing a cleaner, greener local and global environment

«  OPPORTUNITY — Growing the lifelong potential of our community

« PRIDE - Growing empowerment, respect and safety in our community

« LIFE - Growing the health and wellbeing of our residents

« [EXCELLENCE - Growing a high-performing Council

Excellence

TG A Mgy
Sovrreng C

e
VISION

Prosperity

GROWING
BETTER
TOGETHER

Opportunity
Growang 1he ifviong
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The Council operates in the context of The Big Plan Second Edt d2.pdf
(ardsandnorthdown.gov.uk)), which is the Community Plan for the Borough (see below). At its heart
is an integrated approach to strategic development, not only for the Council, but for everyone in the
Borough who has an interest in making Ards and North Down a better place to live, work, visit and
invest. The Council's Corporate Plan, which sits below the Community Plan, is supported by key
strategies including the Integrated Strategy for Tourism, Regeneration and Economic Development
and the Integrated Strategy for Arts and Heritage. Internally the Council is working to promote an
agenda of transformation to enhance and improve internal processes, as well as delivering, better
engagement with, and services for, the communities the Council serves.

The Council is developing its culture around the values of:

e Progressive — We will be proactive,
ambitious, innovative, forward thinking and
outward looking.

* Respect — We will treat everyone in a
fair and equitable manner, respecting
diversity and each others roles.

« Integrity — We will always be open,
honest, transparent, trustworthy and
accountable in our business relationships.

¢ Delivery — We will ensure a “can do”
attitude, being passionate about achieving
results, performance driven, and outcome
focussed.

e Excellence — We will strive to deliver
continuously improving and excellent
quality services, whilst ensuring value for
money.

Governance

The governance arrangements of the Council are set out in the Governance Statement (pages 15 -
39) and there have been no significant changes in approach in the course of the year, with the
exception of the necessity to move to remote working where possible for staff and Council meetings.

Operational Model

The Council published, the Big Plan for Ards and North Down, in March 2017. This provides a
commitment from all partners who are members of the Strategic Community Planning Partnership on
the five outcomes they will collectively work towards achieving for the people of Ards and North Down.
In accordance with Community Planning Guidance, the first Statement of Progress was published in
November 2019. This initiated a review of the existing implementation methodology and the
agreement of a refined list of ten community planning collaborative priorities.
The Big Plan Part Il Our Big Priorities April 2022.pdf (ardsandnorthdown.gov.uk) was
published in April 2022. This updated the whole population indicators and sets out the issues the
Strategic Community Plan will focus its attention on.
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The Big Plan provides an overarching context for the
e e Council's Corporate Plan. Activities to progress the

outcomes and priorities resulting from the Big Plan
and Corporate Plan are set out in the Council's
annual Service Delivery Plans for each of its 17
Services. Service budgets are aligned to the annual
Plans.

g I

STATEMENT OF PROGRESS
e Tits 20 | Susmmary Docuimeont

» Council receives over 80% of its funding through the local property tax (often referred to as
the district rates) and 13% from fees and charges for the use of range of services.

» Council employs in excess of 800 staff. These staff are recruited according to the Local
Government Staff Commission guidance the Council's Learning and Development Strategy
provides the framework for maintaining and enhance the skills of the work force, through on
the job training, Pride in Performance conversations, formal training, part-time study and
mentoring.

Y

The Council owns 351 properties and has a fleet of 205 vehicles, all of which are maintained
in a proactive manner.

‘:rs

In light of the pandemic, the Council has reviewed and changed the mode of operation for a
number of services, including the holding of Council and committee meetings remotely,
registration services and visitor servicing.

Activities and Outputs

The Council is organised into five directorates which are further divided into service units with an aim
to provide customer and outcome focussed Services to residents, businesses and visitors alike.
Although these services concentrate specialised skills around common themes, the Council
endeavours to provide unified and complimentary services using a range of collaborative forums,
such as Corporate Leadership Team, Heads of Service Team and Service Unit Managers forums in
addition to address ad hoc or specialist issues.

The Council engages with a number of strategic partners in order to deliver some of its services within
its Community & Culture, Leisure, Waste & Cleansing, Regulatory, Regeneration and Economic
Development Services.

The Council's Planning Service relies on extensive detailed input from a range of statutory consultees
which are outside the Council’s authority, such as Government Departments, and which continue to
experience resourcing issues relating to staff in post and expertise. This has had a direct impact on
the processing of planning applications and therefore on the achievement of the statutory
performance indicators.

In addition, Councillors participate in a range of regional bodies and Officers participate in a wide
range of local government professional groups in order to provide co-ordination among Councils on
a Northern Ireland wide basis.

Outcomes
The outcomes within the Council's Corporate Plan are aligned to those within the Big Plan (the
Community Plan). The Council, as facilitator of community planning for the borough works in
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partnership with statutory partners, government departments and the community and voluntary sector
to work towards these high-level aspirational outcomes. Workstreams (formally referred to as
thematic groups) have been established to help focus Council resources on these outcomes.
Workstreams have been set up for all five outcomes.

A workstream that is a sub-group of our Strategic Community Planning Partnership is focused on
public estate and land issues. The purpose of this group is to share information about capital build
projects and to identify areas where collaboration will improve the outcomes for our citizens. The
Council has shared the review of its estate with Strategic Partners and this had led to expressions of
interest being put forward to co-locate front facing services in, for example, the proposed
Newtownards Citizen Hub. Other discussions are on going about the land requirements of different
partners and a shared project to map land ownership on Council’'s Geographic Information System
(GIS) portal is underway.

Aligning Corporate Plan and Community Plan outcomes has resulted in increased levels of
collaboration across Council directorates to the benefit of the citizen. The Council applied to be part
of the World Health Organisation's Age Friendly programme in recognition of our ageing population.
An Age Friendly Alliance has been established with representation across department and community
planning partners. Internally cross-departmental programmes have been developed that recognise
the contribution that each service needs to play to contribute to an outcome that says that all people
in Ards and North Down live in communities where they are respected, safe and feel secure.
Resources are being shared to develop walkability audits of public spaces with stakeholders that will
demonstrate an involved level of engagement and listening to our citizens.

Partnerships to deliver against our outcomes have been established across all PEOPLE priarities and
Community Plan Priorities. This is enabling us to use our resources to contribute to other important
agendas such as health reform and how local health commissioning will happen in the future.
Collaboration is happening between community development, education, and police to improve how
young people have a voice via the establishment of a Youth Council. This is directly contributing to
our outcome that all people in Ards and North Down fulfil their lifelong potential.

An outcomes approach is still relatively new and relies on having access to an evidence base that
can be used to measure whether the work Council and its partners are undertaking is making a
difference. We have used our resources to undertake a comprehensive assessment of wellbeing that
helps us identify the issues we need to focus on to contribute to the five outcomes identified.

In addition, the period covered by this report was dominated by the Council's ongoing response to
the COVID-19 pandemic and increasing utility prices impacting on the worldwide economy. During
this time the UK Government and the NI Executive took significant mitigation measures in order to
curtail the spread of the coronavirus throughout the country. A general lockdown in the early part of
the year had significant impact on almost all aspects of Council operations, workforce, finances risks
and strategic partners.

Despite these challenges the Council continued to deliver paositive outcomes for residents and
businesses showing a high degree of innovation and effectiveness.

How the Council spent its resources is set out in its Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
statement on pages 53-54.

Risks and Opportunities
In all its strategic planning activities the Council identifies risk and opportunities as well as seeking to
identify mitigations and to take advantage of potential positive outcomes.
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Risks

¢ Brexit
The UK transition period formally came to an end on 31 December 2020. As a number of
‘grace’ periods are still in operation (when the UK does not have to implement all the
requirements of the Northern Ireland Protocol), the implications for local authorities and the
wider public sector continue to remain uncertain. SOLACE continue to co-ordinate the
activities of councils in this regard.

Uncertainty exists on future funding, such as access to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, to
replace EU funds, which Council has relied on to optimise delivery of many support
programmes. This will put a strain on Council resources should it not be in place post March
2023 or be forthcoming in a timely manner.

¢ Political Instability
The current uncertainty regarding the re-establishment of the Northern Ireland Assembly and
Northern Ireland Executive may have significant impact on the Council’s ability to plan in the
short to medium term due to the lack of a multi-year Executive budget. This provides difficulties
particularly in respect of multi-year programmes and capital projects.

4 Resourcing
The Council has ambitious plans and strategies for the pursuit of prosperity in the Borough.
Resourcing these plans requires finance, assets and talent. Currently, in common with many
organisations, the Council is experiencing significant difficulties in recruiting staff and in
managing rising utility costs. These pressures will inhibit the Council’s ability to deliver on its
plans.

Council must both prioritise, and regularly assess, its appetite and tolerance for risk in order to ensure
it is fit for purpose to deliver on the objectives set.

Opportunities

v Sustainability commitments
Ards and North Down Borough Council was
the first local authority in Northern Ireland to
declare a climate emergency and has
developed a Roadmap to Sustainability
(which was approved in March 2021). We
view sustainability as a unique selling point
for the Council, which can help us to deliver
better services for residents, businesses and
visitors. We are committed to integrating
sustainability into all business practices
moving forward and progress has been
made on this throughout the reporting period (Sustainability Case Studies).

v' BelfastRegion City Deal (BRCD)
The BRCD executive body comprises this Council along with Antrim and Newtownabbey
Borough Council, Belfast City Council, Lisburn and Castlereagh City Council, Mid and East
Antrim Borough Council, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council, the Queen’s University
Belfast and the Ulster University (the Belfast Region).

The objective of the BRCD is to deliver a step change in the region’s economic fortunes and
help achieve inclusive growth. It will see the UK Government invest £350 million into the
Belfast Region over the next 15 years. This figure will be matched by the Northern Ireland
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Executive and a further co-investment of upwards of £150 million from Belfast Region City
Deal partners.
Four “pillars” for the BRCD proposition have been established:

. Employability and skills
. Innovation and digital

. Infrastructure

. Tourism and Regeneration

Ards and North Down contribute to the regional Employability and Skills programme and
benefit from capital funding towards a regional digital programme and projects as outlined
below.

The Council is also due to receive circa £40M towards the Bangor Waterfront development,
our ambitious plans to redevelop Bangor's beautiful seafront with a necklace of new,
sustainable, tourism and leisure attractions.

It will also benefit from funding to create an Innovation Hub to support the Creative Industries
in the borough.

Redevelopment of Queen’s Parade

Bangor Marine Ltd.'s comprehensive planning application for the development site located at
Queen’s Parade and Marine Gardens in Bangor was approved by the Council's Planning
Committee in January 2021. After a significant delay, while the Department for Infrastructure
considered the approval, the application was finally returned to the Council in March 2022.
This is a significant milestone towards seeing the major, planned £50 million regeneration
project delivered in the town, which will complement the Bangor Waterfront development.

Reform and Transformation

Restrictions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic have ‘fast tracked’ the Council's efforts
towards digitisation of some services, both internal and external facing. Human Resources,
for example, moved some recruitment procedures to online channels e.g., shortlisting and
interviewing. A SMS text service was introduced to facilitate short, factual messages being
shared with staff across the organisation. The continuation of these digitised practices will be
reviewed moving forward to ensure that benefits including reduction of paperwork/ time
efficiencies and effective communication methods are maintained.

Back to Agenda
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Strategy and Resource allocation
The Council is seeking to provide high quality services and facilities.

The Council approved a new corporate plan in April 2021 and will use
this to assist in the allocation of resources to ensure that it meets its new
objectives. In addition, the Council has adopted a range of strategies in
respect of:

v" Tourism, Economic Development and Regeneration

The Integrated Strategy for Tourism, Regeneration and Economic Development presents a
coherent vision for the pursuit of prosperity in the Borough of Ards and North Down. It
responds to the vision and outcomes of the Community Plan for the area and is to be used as
the common point of reference for all those contributing to the growth of our economy, the
welcoming of visitors and the improvement of our places, both urban and rural.

v" Arts and Heritage

The Arts and Heritage strategy defines how arts and heritage will help achieve Ards and North
Down’s cultural, social and economic ambitions by enriching its people and places and
empowering its residents to make the most of their creativity.

It responds to the vision and outcomes of the Big Plan for Ards and North Down and
contributes to the delivery of the Integrated Strategy for Tourism, Regeneration and Economic
Development 2018 - 2030, responding to its vision and propositions from the arts and heritage
perspective.

v" Road Map to Sustainability

The Road Map to Sustainahbility summarises the key sustainability content and the benefits
which will be realised from the successful implementation of the various integrated Council
strategies and Plans either currently in place or under development.

v' Capital Investment Plan

The Council uses a project prioritisation approach to assess and prioritise potential capital
investments. The Council's ambitious capital investment involves scoring each project across
arange of agreed, standardised criteria, to include elements such as strategic alignment, cost
and risk. The resulting ranked project list is used as a basis for decision making on which, and
how many projects will progress, depending on the desired investment level.

v Medium-Term Financial Strategy

The Council continues to consider carefully its financial resilience in its budgeting cycles. This
budgeting process is guided by the Medium-Term Financial Strategy which sets out 11 guiding
principles which provide a framework in which to develop future budgets. These budgets for
the next financial year are developed in the context of a five-year Medium-Term Financial Plan
(MTFP). In addition, the Council has developed a 10-year district rate projection to enable it
to forecast the impact of its longer-term capital investment plans. The MTFP was reviewed in
the new budgeting cycle for 2021/22 taking into account the financial implications of the
COVID-19 pandemic, increases to the national living wage and the current inflationary
economic environment.

As the Council emerges from the COVID-19 pandemic it is setting out on a strategic transformation
programme that seeks to modernise the functioning of the organisation and service delivery. To this
end it has established a Reform and Transformation Fund. To complement this fund, a Sustainability
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Fund has also been established in order drive forward initiatives to reduce the Council's dependence
of carbon.

In light of the both the pandemic and the resourcing difficulties in recruiting staff, the Council has
launched a project to develop a comprehensive Workforce Planning Strategy in order to identify the
gaps between the current position and what the Council need to put in place to make sure we have
the right people, in the right place, at the right time.

Performance
FINANCIAL

The results for the year are set out in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
reflects the accounting deficit for the year to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). A number of adjustments are then made to this (see note 4 on page 87) to arrive at the actual
surplus for the year on the Council's General Fund, as shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement
(pages 55-56) and summarised below:

Actual

£'000
Cost of Continuing Operations (62,923) |
Other Operating Expenditure or Income (261) i
Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure (3,843) E
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 59,792 |
Surplusl/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services (7,235) |
Adjustment between Accounting and Funding bases 10,808 |
Net Transfers (to) or from Reserves and Funds (2,613) |
Surplus / (Deficit) 960 |
Balance brought forward 4,527 |
General Fund Balance at 31 March 2022 5,487 ;

The 2021/22 financial year saw the Council start to emerge from the unprecedented difficulties
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Council received further central Government financial
support during 2021/22 (in addition to that received in 2020/21) to help it meet in-year and future
COVID-19 related financial challenges, so it has been able to set aside significant funds into
Earmarked Reserves to allow it to mitigate the impact of these challenges.

The Council's General Fund carried forward is £5.5M (equivalent to 7.1% of gross revenue
expenditure, up from 6.3% on 31/03/2021).

The Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 (page 57) shows a net worth of £145.2M, an increase
of £24.8M from the 31 March 2021 balance sheet, this is largely attributable to:

« the net increase in value of fixed assets (£4.7M);

« the decrease in outstanding loans (E6M); and

10 p |
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+ the decrease in other long-term liabilities (£13.7M).

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland), commonly
referred to as Northern Ireland Local Government Officers Superannuation Committee, or
‘NILGOSC'. This scheme is currently in deficit and the £46.9M liability relating to the Council has
been appropriately reflected in these financial statements and shows a decrease of £13.7M on
2020/21. Details regarding the pension liability are in Note 22 (Page 108). In line with the Code, this
deficit is mitigated in the Council’'s balance sheet and does not affect usable reserves. NILGOSC has
a long-term strategy to recover this deficit, by adjusting employer contribution rates following triennial
revaluations.

The Council's Usable Reserves at 31 March 2022, with a comparison to the opening pasition, is set
out in the following table:

Reserves: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£'000 £'000

. General Fund 5,488 4,527
Capital Receipts Reserve 3,327 1,619
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 2,500 2,740
Revenue Grants Unapplied Account 301 279
Other Earmarked Funds 13,426 10,813
TOTAL 25,042 19,978

Notes are provided within the Financial Statements to explain material changes.
Capital Investment

In order to enhance the services it provides, the Council has an ambitious Capital Investment
Programme representing around £113M over the next 10 years. This level of investment is dependent
on significant external funding being secured, particularly from the BRCD. These plans will be subject
to review in the normal course of business as part of the normal budgeting cycles, in respect of
affordability, sustainability and prudence. This is particularly important in the context of the Council’s
recovery from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. As part of this Capital Investment Programme,
expenditure on capital projects during the 2021/22 financial year included:

Capital Scheme £000

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 2,085
Cairnwood - forest paths 373
Donaghadee Motte & Ballywalter Lime Kilns 287
Lemon’s Wharf Play Park 224
Software 108
Copeland Plaza 145
Other Minor Schemes 192
Total 3,414

Details of how the Council has funded its capital expenditure are set out in Note 13 (page 100).
Information on capital commitments relating to capital projects is set out in Note 14 (page 100).

- ii
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COVID Funding

During 2020/21 the Northern Ireland Executive allocated an additional £10M has been allocated to
support councils with the ongoing effects of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Council received an
apportionment of £1.5M. Other Council COVID-19 Support funds received are also set out below.

Amounts
gg;::tnnt:' ei‘r;t COVID-19 Funding Purpose Recegggg
DfC Financial Loss 1,538
DAERA Waste Management 4
HMRC Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 87
Total Received 1,629

Non Financial

Each year the Council publishes its Annual Performance Report. This self-assessment is to account
for its improvement activity for that year and review performance against the Improvement Objectives
set in the preceding year. The report reflects on the performance on the delivery of our agreed
Improvement Objectives and supporting actions for the year in review.

The following table gives an assessment of the status across all measures in the Performance
Improvement Plan.

Corporate Improvement Objective No of measures
Plan PEOPLE

priority

PROSPERITY P We will grow the economy and create jobs
==l =l P We will improve the cleanliness of the streets
in our borough by targeting littering and dog 1 2 B
fouling incidents
P We will improve recycling rates from 4 1 1

Household Recycling Centres (HRCs)
P We will support our businesses and residents

to protect and improve their health and 1 - - 2
wellbeing
A RES 6 = p We will use technology to drive change - 2 2
STATUTORY P Municipal Waste
INDICATORS » Economic Development 5 2 -
P Planning
SELF- P Resident Satisfaction = = = 1
IMPOSED P Prompt Payment of Invoices 2 , = B
INDICATORS P Average number of working days lost per
employee . _ _ d
b 9% staff attendance - - 1 -

OVERALL | 2 5 14 12

RAG Status | Definition
. Target/standard, actions and measures are of
concern and are mostly falling short of plan
P Target/standard, actions and measures are mostly
O on track, but some are falling short of plan
Target/standard, actions and measures are on track
? Rescheduled/no progress owing to impact of Covid
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Qutlook

The outlook for the Council remains uncertain as it emerges from the pandemic and enters a high
inflationary economic environment. In the longer-term Council has concerns around wage growth and
increasing utility costs resulting in less disposable income among rate payers and therefore the loss
of service income and the expected contraction in the non-domestic tax base due to businesses
closing.

As the capital investment increases in line with the Capital Investment Plan the Council may see its
borrowing increase modestly from £67M in March 2022 to around £86M in 2025, although this will be
kept under review as the impact of recovery from the COVID-19 situation develops.

The non-domestic rate base has contracted year-on-year since April 2015 and continues to provide
a challenge to the Council in terms of income generation. The Council plans for anticipated
movements as part of its strategic financial planning process, although it expects the overall situation
to deteriorate further due to the longer term impact of the pandemic.

In addition to the increases in capital financing costs, there are pressures within salaries budgets
(because of nationally agreed pay settlements being driven by increases to the National Living Wage
and the increase in employer pension contributions), the ongoing revenue costs associated with new
capital investment projects and recruitment difficulties due to a shortage of talent. However, despite
these pressures at the last budgeting cycle, the Medium-Term Financial Plan was forecasting district
rate increases for the next number of years which were a little above the current levels of inflation.

The Council's Corporate Plan Towards 2024 has been developed to provide clear focus and priorities
for the relevant period. It is anticipated that the Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme,
which has been established alongside this as a vehicle to drive and guide any identified key
organisation changes, including efficiencies and service improvements, will look to harness a range
of practices and approaches that Council has adopted during the period of lockdown restrictions.

Basis of preparation

Information is considered material “if omitting it or misstating it could influence decisions that users
make on the basis of financial information.” Consequently, items of differing magnitude may both be
regarded as material given their differing contexts.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as required by the Code.
The COVID-19 emergency has had profound effects on the Council's operations and finances,
however as detailed above, the Council has taken clear and decisive action to secure its financial
position in the medium term and therefore consider that in addition to the statutory going concern
requirement the Council has secured its financial situation in practice.

Material and Unusual Items

The Council has not incurred any other material or unusual expenditure during the 2021/22 financial
year.

P 13
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Statement of the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities
for the Statement of Accounts

The Council’'s Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 the Council shall make
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A Council shall designate an officer
of the Council as its Chief Financial Officer and these arrangements shall be carried out under the
supervision of its Chief Financial Officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland)
2015, the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer on 19 September
2022.

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8(2) of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland)
2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of
Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer is required to:

. observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom;

. follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting
policies on a consistent basis; and

. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
. keep proper accounting records which are up-to-date; and

. take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Governance Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Scope of Responsibility

Ards and North Down Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of
governance (including the system of internal control) to allow it to act in the public interest by:

« enabling its business to be conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards; and

e ensuring that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically,
efficiently and effectively.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of its functions.

In discharging these overall responsibilities, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council is required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement, in accordance with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
(2016). This statement explains how the Council meets the requirements of Regulation 4 of the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it engages with, leads and gives
account to its communities. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the Council's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

This governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

The Governance Framework

This section describes the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council's
governance arrangements.
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1. Arrangements for reviewing the Council’s vision and its implications for the Council’'s
governance arrangements

Council's vision within its Corporate Plan Towards 2024 mirrors the vision of the Community
Plan. In 2017, the Council and its partners published the area’s first community plan - the ‘Big
Plan' — which sets out a vision for the Borough.

“Ards and North Down is a vibrant, connected, healthy, safe and prosperous place to be”.

The vision is supported by five outcomes that are also mirrored in the Council's Corporate Plan.

All people in Ards and North Down ...

e  Fulfil their lifelong potential
« Enjoy good health and wellbeing

e Live in communities where they are respected, are safe and feel secure

« Benefit from a prosperous economy

\- Feel pride from having access to a well-managed sustainable environment /

Ards and North Down's Community Plan is known as ‘the Big Plan’. It has been developed
following extensive engagement with the citizens of Ards and North Down using ‘The Big
Conversation’ initiative to identify the long-term vision they would like to see achieved over the
next 15 years. This engagement mechanism will continue to be used to consult with people on
how implementing the Big Plan will improve the delivery of all public services. The Big Plan
provides a commitment from 15 strategic partners covering a range of issues including
transport, housing, environment, policing and health. The Big Plan and its implementation were
reviewed and the Big Plan Part Il | Our Big Priorities was published 5 years after the publication
of the Big Plan. A year's extension to a legally required review was provided due to resources
being diverted to support communities dealing with COVID-19. The five outcomes from the Big
Plan are now supported by 10 priorities. A Big Conversation Panel was used to confirm the most
important issues for residents are recognised by the 10 priorities.

The Big Plan gives the context for the Corporate Plan (available on the Council website here)
and the Council’s first Local Development Plan, which is still being prepared.

Each of the Council's Services have agreed and published Service Plans against which they
will report to their Standing Committee. Each Plan is aligned to the Council's Corporate
objectives and monitoring of performance is managed through the Council's Performance
Reporting software. The system tracks a wide range of Key Performance Indicators on a
quarterly and annual basis and reports progress on a RAG (Red Amber Green) basis, providing
visibility of same to the Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of Service.

The Council's Corporate Services Committee has responsibility for overseeing the performance
management process and agreeing the Council's statutory Performance Improvement Plan
(PIP) for Council approval. The Council's Audit Committee receives reports on PIP performance,
ensuring that progress in each of the key areas is carefully monitored. The PIP is a mechanism
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to identify key interventions to better achieve the outcomes set out in the Council’'s Corporate
Plan. It also fulfils the Councils statutory obligations as set out in the Local Government Act
(Northern Ireland) 2014. It should be noted that the requirement to publish a Performance
Improvement Plan for the 2020/21 year was set aside by the Department owing to the impact
of the global pandemic but reinstated for the 2021/22 year.

. Arrangements for identifying and communicating the Council’s vision of its purpose
and intended outcomes for citizens and service users

The Council will deliver against the six People-focused priorities specified in its Corporate Plan
Towards 2024, which are aligned with the Community Plan outcomes. Each year Council
Services identify in their Service Plans improvement actions that are driven by:

VISION

Excellence

wing @ high Prosperity

TG OuE

_ GROWING
Llfe BETTER
..l-t*.r.-\._-:lll-. :.'.I'-’ TOGETHER

o 0

o
potential of oud
s ity

pportunity

« Priorities identified in the Corporate Plan are based on input from Elected Members, officers
and wider consultation;

« Feedback from ratepayers, residents and stakeholders arising from the “Big Conversation”
community planning engagement project and Conversation Panel surveys;

« Feedback from residents via the biannual residents survey;

*  Output from workshops involving the Corporate Leadership Team and Heads of Service
Team; and

« A review of Service Plans.

The Performance Improvement Plan is subject to, and informed by, public consultation, also
involving Statutory and Community Planning partners, our Consultative Panel on Equality and
Good Relations; Equality Scheme Consultees; a range of hard-to-reach groups; and the
Chambers of Trade for our principal towns.

17
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At the end of the financial year, we will publish an assessment of the Council's performance.

Arrangements for measuring the quality of services, for ensuring they are delivered in
accordance with the Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best
use of resources

Individual Council Services monitor their performance on a quarterly basis to ensure that they
maintain customer satisfaction levels. The Council has in place performance reporting software
which links key performance indicators (KPIs) via Service Plans to the Council's overall
objectives and shows progress against same.

The Council is subject to audit by the Local Government Auditor, within the Northern Ireland
Audit Office. The scope of auditors’ work covers not only the audit of the Council’'s Financial
Statements, but also aspects of corporate governance, arrangements to secure the economic,
efficient and effective use of resources and an audit and assessment of the Council’s PIP. The
Local Government Auditor publishes an annual report on the results of both the financial audit
and improvement audit which are published on the Council's website.

The Council has established a Performance Improvement Service Unit with responsibility for
developing and implementing effective performance governance arrangements in addition to
supporting projects and activities aimed at improving the better use of resources to achieve
agreed outcomes.

The Council has committed to undertaking a formal survey of residents every two years to gain
an insight into satisfaction levels with the organisation and the services we deliver. The
information gathered is shared across all service areas and used to inform a number of
performance improvement measures including our annual service plans, performance
improvement plan and financial statements.

Our last survey was completed in summer 2021 with a smaller than usual sample (while
remaining statistically significant) given that many services had been significantly restricted
during 2020/21.

It is encouraging to note that 82% of residents report satisfaction with the Council. The
comparative figure for all Great Britain Councils in June 2021 was 68%.

v Areas for improvement (over which Council has direct control) include enhancing
opportunities for consultation and tackling environmental issues at a local level e.g.
addressing dog fouling and littering.

v Residents identified health and wellbeing (47%) to be the most important corporate
priority followed by jobs and the economy (21%).

v’ 72% rated their most recent contact with the Council as either ‘excellent’ or ‘good’, with
the same percentage considering that the Council keeps residents informed about the
services and benefits it provides.

v 68% were satisfied with the level of engagement the Council offers local residents.

v" 71% rated the reputation of the Council as either excellent or good.
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4. Arrangements for defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the m

Council, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and
protocols for effective communication

As a statutory body, the Council performs a range of functions that are provided for in legislation.
The Council takes overall responsibility for discharging these functions, with its performance
delegated either to a Committee or an Officer. The committee structure is:

Regeneration and Community &
Development Wellbeing
Committee Committee

Corporate
Services
Committee

Planning
Commitee

Environment )
Committee Committee

Each Committee has a defined Terms of Reference, documenting its roles and responsibilities
including determining policy in its own area within the remit delegated from the Council.

The Terms of Reference of each Committee are periodically reviewed. The latest version was
agreed at the Council's annual meeting in 2019. There are also a number of established sub-
committees and working groups involving Elected Members, which report to the relevant
Committees.

In July 2020, the Council agreed to establish a task and finish working group of Members, known
as the Strategic COVID-19 Recovery Group (SCRG), to develop a way forward for the Council
through the development of strategic recovery plans. The SCRG reported directly to Council
and made recommendations within the scope of its purpose and objectives as outlined in agreed
terms of reference. This working group was stood down early in the 2021/22 financial year.

During the pandemic legislation was enacted to allow council meetings to take place remotely,
via video conferencing technology. This legislation expired during May 2021 following which the
Chief Executive was delegated to make decisions until further legislative arrangements could
be made in September 2021.

Section 41 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 requires that Councils’
Standing Orders must make provision requiring reconsideration of a decision if 15% of the
members present make a requisition to the Chief Executive on either or both of the following
grounds:

« That a decision was not arrived at after a proper consideration of the relevant facts and
issues,; and

e That the decision would disproportionately affect adversely any section of the
inhabitants of the district.
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This is commonly known as the ‘call-in’ procedure and is addressed by Standing Order 22 within
the Council’'s Standing Orders.

In line with section 2 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, the Council has
prepared its constitution. This has been published on the Council's website here.

The purpose of the constitution is to:

« enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community, in partnership with
citizens, businesses and other organisations;

« support the active involvement of citizens in the process of Council decision-making;

« help Councillors represent their constituents more effectively;

« enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively;

« create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to public account;

« ensure that no one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they were directly
involved:;

« ensure that those responsible for decision-making are clearly identifiable to local people
and that the decision-makers explain the reasons for decisions; and

e provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the community.

A Corporate Leadership Team (CLT), consisting of the Chief Executive and Directors meets to
make strategic decisions, while a Heads of Service Team (HoST) is responsible for Operational
delivery and informing strategic work.

A Corporate Project Portfolio Board (CPPB) provides oversight of the range of capital and
strategic projects undertaken by the Council, while a Corporate Project Assurance Group
(CPAG) provides additional objective scrutiny of projects on the corporate portfolio. In addition,
the Council has established a Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme Board to
oversee a programme of modernisation within the organisation and is establishing an Estates
Development Programme Board to identify and deliver strategic development projects in respect
of the Council estate.

The Council has also set up a Corporate Health and Safety Committee that meets quarterly,
comprising Directors, Heads of Service, Service Unit Managers, the Council's Health and Safety
Officer and Trade Unions representatives to ensure the streamlining of Health and Safety
throughout all Council functions and to report on incidents. In addition, each Directorate has its
own Health and Safety Committee.

The Council is also a member of the arc21 Waste Management Joint Committee along with five
other Northern Ireland Councils. The Joint Committee has delegated authority to deal with
financial matters up to £250,000 and all other decisions are subject to ratification by the
constituent Councils.

The responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer are set out in the Local Government (Accounts
& Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015. Council has designated the Chief Executive as
its Chief Financial Officer. In addition, the responsibilities of Officers including, senior
management are enshrined in job descriptions. In addition, the Council has a scheme to
delegate decision making to Service Unit Manager level.

Arrangements for developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct,
defining the standards of behaviour for members and staff

The Council has a wide range of policies and procedures, which are subject to on-going review
and include the standards of behaviour expected from all employees. The Council has adopted
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the Local Government Staff Commission’s Code of Conduct. All policies and procedures are
communicated to employees through induction, other on-going training initiatives and are
published on the intranet. Specifically, these palicies include an Anti-fraud, bribery and
corruption policy (including a fraud response plan) and a Declarations of interest policy (which
requires all employees at or above salary scale point 29 to declare actual or potential conflicts
of interest).

Line managers have received training from the Council's Human Resources Service in relation
to these HR policies. Council has an “Employee Behaviour Charter” and training has been
provided to embed these positive behaviours into the Council culture. The Council is continuing
to embed the learning and development strategy and the Pride and Performance conversation
initiative with every employee. These conversations align with the Corporate Values which are
part of the Corporate Plan.

The Northern Ireland Local Government Code of
Conduct for Councillors came into effect 28 May 2014.
Councillors have received training in respect of this
statutory code of conduct. They have also completed
declarations of interest, which are published on the

The Northern Ireland
Local Government

Code of Conduct
for Councillors Council website and which they have an obligation to

keep up to date.
Depament of tha
ﬁ Environment

Arrangements for reviewing the effectiveness of the decision-making framework,
including delegation arrangements, decision making in partnerships and robustness of
data quality

The Council is committed to the effective delivery of services for the benefit of residents and
users alike. A scheme of delegation to officers with clearly defined parameters and reporting
arrangements was agreed by Council in 2019 and is kept under periodic review.

The Council is involved in a number of strategic partnerships, including the Queen's Parade
redevelopment, Belfast Region City Deal, the 11-Council Business Start Up Programme Go For
it and the Strategic Community Planning Partnership, all of which have project boards or
committees in place to provide an appropriate governance structure.

Arrangements for reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and
managing risks and demonstrating clear accountability

Risk Management

In line with the Council's Risk Strategy, a Corporate Risk Register is maintained to ensure that
key areas of risk that may affect delivery of our Corporate Plan are identified. To ensure a
proactive approach to risk management, all corporate risks have assigned mitigations
(comprising current controls and additional mitigation measures required). As a live document,
it is subject to change as required. The Register is reviewed by the Corporate Leadership Team
(CLT) and Heads of Service Team (HoST) on a quarterly basis to ensure that it is kept up to

21



22

Back to Agenda

date and to streamline consideration of and mitigation against risk throughout the organisation
and is reported to the Audit Committee twice yearly.

A second level of risk recording is performed through Service Risk Registers, these identify
Service specific strategic and operational risks and are incorporated into Service
plans. Periodic reviews are included within each Service's management processes. In addition,
biannually, each Service completes an internal governance Assurance Statement to provide
assurance that the internal standard procedures, risk management and / or control
arrangements are in place. Within this statement any failure of controls or significant risks
causing concern and requiring mitigation is identified.

In response to an audit recommendation in March 2019, the Council’s risk strategy has been
reviewed and was ratified in October 2021. The revised Risk Strategy is being aligned to the
Corporate Plan Toward 2024 to ensure that the Council is best equipped to deliver its future
ambitions. This was delayed due to Council diverting resources to respond to the COVID-19
pandemic. Appropriate training will be delivered in due course to management and staff and a
communication exercise will be completed to ensure all employees are aware of the strategy
and their responsibilities in relation to it.

Data Management

The Council aims at all times to comply with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
and the Data Protection Act 2018. The new data protection legislation, which came into force
in May 2018, triggered the recruitment of a Data Protection Officer, whose role is defined in the
legislation. Since then, data security and information management systems have been
reviewed, privacy notices updated, and a significant programme of training has been delivered
to management and employees, including a new comprehensive E-learning module. Business
Technology has introduced additional measures to ensure data security. A new CCTV and
Surveillance Equipment Policy has been developed to ensure all aspects of video/audio
recordings are managed securely. This will be ratified in September 2022.

The Council plans to introduce an electronic document and records management system,
based on a Microsoft GDPR compliant platform, to continue to improve data management
practices, data security and general compliance. A scoping exercise was carried out in 2019/20
but no further action took place pending budget cover. This action is still on the agenda for
consideration as a transformation project, but timescales are not yet confirmed.

A project on scanning the title deeds associated with land belonging to the Council took place
in January — May 2022. This has resulted in a comprehensive set of documents being available
to all officers that require them in a timely fashion and ensures that the records are safe for the
future.

Conflicts of Interest

Each member of the Council is obliged to declare any interests. These declarations are
published on the Council website. Declarations of interests is a standard item on each Council
or committee meeting agenda, with standing orders requiring that a member leaves the meeting
for the duration of the item in which they have made a declaration.

The Council has also approved a Declaration of Interests policy for employees, which requires

all staff at or above a certain level to declare all interests which may result in a conflict of interest.
In addition, all staff must receive written permission to have employment with another employer.
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8. Arrangements to ensure effective accountability

Transparency

The Council is committed to conducting its business in an open and transparent manner. |t
aims to publish information in a timely and accurate manner and in accordance with its published
publication scheme. All meetings of the Council and its Committees are open to members of the
public and minutes/audio recordings of those meetings are available on the Council website.
During the COVID-19 pandemic, meetings are also streamed on Zoom as a webinar.

The Council has a very proactive social media . wermsnemomnsoencoms
presence, which it uses to both share infOrmation AN s s s o e s soves cossars s e s
to engage with citizens, anSWering QUESHONS ANG  swoeriavies e o ans s o s pcanins o o
address customer care issues. ACross Facebook, o A
Instagram and Twitter platforms the Council has over

43,000 followers.

Reporting

Each of the Council's 18 services report on
performance on a quarterly basis to their respective
Standing Committees. Progress against the annual
Performance Improvement Plan is reported to Audit
Committee. An annual report is published to highlight
progress against the PIP (when applicable) and
achievement against the Corporate Plan outcomes.

Financial statements are prepared in line with the requirements of the Local Government
Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and published annually. Articles 17 and 18 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 give members of the public access to the books of accounts
as part of the audit process.

Performance Management

The Council has a wide range of policies and strategies to assist with the management of
performance. Key documents include the Corporate Plan, Performance Improvement Plan (set
aside for 2020/21) and Service Plans each with outcomes and indicators. All staff operate within
the Pride in Performance framework.

The Council has developed and adopted a performance framework called PERFORM, as
illustrated in the diagram below. This is in recognition that performance of the organisation is
driven by a number of factors such as effective planning, the engagement of staff, allocation of
resources, aligned policies and systems, effective utilisation of these in providing services,
relating to our residents, customers and partners and our ability to manage resulting
performance. This model provides a framework to guide our approach on each of these
elements and to promote alignment of related approaches.
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Financial Management

The Council's Finance Service operates under the direction of suitably qualified and
experienced accountancy professionals and within the policies and procedures framework
brought forward from legacy organisations.

The Council substantially funds its services by setting a
property tax for both domestic and non-domestic
properties (the district rates). It sets these rates in the
context of a Medium-Term Financial Strategy, including
principles to guide decision making and a five-year
Medium-Term Financial Plan which integrates the on-
going costs of service delivery and the financial impact
of the capital investment programme, taking into
account external economic and legislative factors. All

— budgets are allocated through Directors to Heads of
Service and on to Service Unit Managers for
accountability purposes and are reported both on
corporate bases to management and the Corporate
Services Committee.

Audit

External audit services are provided by the Local Government Auditor (LGA), a member of staff
in the Northern Ireland Audit Office (NIAO), appointed to this role by the Department for
Communities with the consent of the Comptroller and Auditor General. They are assisted in this
role by other NIAO staff. The LGA has contracted the performance of both the financial and
improvement audits to a private sector organisation, whilst retaining responsibility for the
statutory responsibility for certifying the financial statements.

In addition, the auditor can undertake value for money studies and public interest investigations,
as necessary.

With respect to the financial audit a Report To Those Charged With Governance is reported to
the Council’'s Audit Committee detailing such matters as audit findings, recommendations, and
misstatements which the Local Government Auditor considers appropriate to bring to the
attention of management. In addition, an annual audit letter is prepared for Council and
published on the Council website.

The Improvement Audit is also carried out by the Local Government Auditor. This includes
reviews of the previous year’s activities and the adequacy of current year's plan. The findings
from this Audit and Assessment Report together with the Certificate of Compliance are
published on the Council website.

Arrangements ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are
developed and maintained.

The Council's Anti-fraud, Bribery and Corruption Palicy states that it is committed to creating an
environment that:

+ Minimises the risk of fraud, bribery or corruption;
+« Promotes its early detection;
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+ Safeguards whistle-blowers; and
« Effectively investigates and recovers, where appropriate, any financial loss suffered.

To this end, the Council relies on measures such as the Northern Ireland Local Government
Code of Conduct for Councillors, Code of Conduct for Local Government Services, employment
references, policies and procedures (including manager review, segregation of duties,
reconciliations, performance reporting and registers of interests) to embed a counter-fraud
culture.

Opportunity is also taken to use the Council’s intranet to communicate anti-fraud messages
including the publication of NIAO fraud risk guides. In addition to highlighting these issues at
periodic Service Unit Manager forums and Heads of Service meetings.

All occurrences of fraud are reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis as a matter of
course.

10. Arrangements ensuring effective management of change and transformation

The Council is committed to delivering high quality services for the residents of the Borough and
those who use its services.

To this effect the Council has in place a Corporate Plan to provide an overarching context and
framework for its service delivery. Flowing from this each of the Council’'s 18 services prepare
a service plan to guide the core business and to identify and progress service improvements.
Under normal circumstances these form the basis of the annual Performance Improvement
Plan, which is both publicly consulted on and reported against, however, in the 2020/21 year
the requirement to publish a Performance Improvement Plan was set aside by the DIC. Council
reviewed its Corporate Plan during the reporting period and published the Corporate Plan
Towards 2024 in April 2021.

Council has also established a Strategic Policy and Finance Group to provide a forum for
Members to consider and guide matters of strategic importance to the Council. However, during
the reporting period this group was stood down and replaced by Strategic COVID-19 Recovery
Group in order to provide a cross council approach to recovery planning. This arrangement
came to an end in June 2021.

The Council has an approved Capital Project Management Handbook which sets out the
organisation’s structured capital project management approach. This is in parallel to the
development of a corporate transformation programme to ensure corporate alignment of
initiatives, increase the pace of delivery and provide a robust governance framework for
oversight purposes. As part of its Strategic Transformation and Performance Service Council
has a Performance Improvement Unit to provide support to other services as they seek to
transform.
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The Council acknowledges in its Organisational Development strategy that the successful
delivery of the Council's vision requires a workforce that is truly motivated and working together
for a common and meaningful purpose. To this end the Council has obtained Investors in People
Silver accreditation to stimulate continued
progress in the nine pillars to improve

performance:
09

CREATING
SUSTASNABLE
SUCCESS

o :
Jeviame DAGANSATION'S As part of this strategy, each year
T —_— management commit to a number of key
actions in its People Plan.
07 ORTION

ChpmaiY The Council views partnership working a key
to delivering change for the benefit of
residents. The Big Plan formally establishes
collaboration among the partners to deliver
the Community Plan. This forum is being
used to provide greater cross-working on
estates issues across community planning
partners. In addition, officers from across the
Council maintain regular contact with
colleagues in other organisations to address areas of common concern, and as a result
participates in several inter-council procurement exercises. The Big Conversation Panel was
used to gather the views of residents to develop the Big Plan and has been used to gather
feedback from residents to inform decisions taken by community planning partnerships. This

information is shared across all community planning partners to improve local services.

SUPPQRTING

11. Compliance of financial management arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) in

Local Government (2016)

The Chief Executive has been designated by the Council as its Chief Financial Officer. As a
result, the Council complies with this statement with the exception of Principle 5. The Council
does not comply with this principle because local regulations in Northern Ireland do not require
the CFO to be professionally qualified accountant nor for the role to be separated from that of
the Chief Executive. However, the Council’'s governance arrangements deliver the same impact
as the CFO is supported by a suitably qualified and experienced Director and qualified staff
within the Finance Service to ensure that decisions made by Council are based on sound
technical knowledge and understanding.

12. Arrangements for ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal
policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

Regulatory compliance is a responsibility of all members of Corporate Leadership Team (CLT)
and Heads of Service Team (HoST) and is monitored at service level to ensure that all relevant
laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures are adhered to. To support this, meetings
of the Council and its Committees are conducted in accordance with a set of agreed Standing
Orders. It also has a range of policies arrived at following policy development procedures.

To ensure that legislative compliance is embedded for all activities, reports to Council require
relevant legislation to be quoted. All major expenditure proposals are subject to review by CLT
before being passed to Council and legal advice is sought where appropriate and reported to
Council. In addition, all Directors, Heads of Service and Service Unit Managers are required to
sign off Interim and Annual Assurance statements which provide a chain of assurance to the
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Chief Executive with regard to management of risks, control failings, incidents of fraud and
whistleblowing and to declare interests outside work which may give rise to conflicts of interest.

Arrangements for ensuring assurance processes conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010)
and where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same impact.

The Council outsources its internal audit service and ensures conformity to the CIPFA statement

in its tender requirements which require appropriately qualified and experienced staff. In
addition, its approved Internal Audit Charter:

« Sets out how audit work will be carried out, based on the risk analysis and evidence;
* Sets out how audit work will be resourced; and
e Defines roles and responsibilities and explicitly grants access to management and Audit

Committee. It is standard practice at committee meetings that both internal and external
auditors have opportunity to address the committee in the absence of management.

Arrangements for undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee, as identified
in CIPFA’s Audit Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities

The Council has in place an Audit Committee whose overall purpose and objective is to assist
the Council in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee, which meets at least
four times each year, has responsibility for reviewing:

¢ The system of internal control and management of risks;

« The financial reporting process;

e The audit process;

« Progress in respect of the Performance Improvement Plan;

* Council's processes for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations; and

¢ Council's processes for monitoring compliance with its own Standing Orders, policies
and procedures.

In performing its duties, the Audit Committee is responsible for maintaining effective working
relationships with the Council as a whole, with management and with the internal and external
auditors. The committee has 11 members including one independent external representative.

Arrangements for whistleblowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from
the public

The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and
accountability. It expects its employees who have serious concerns about anything improper
that is happening in the Council, to come forward and raise those concerns.

The Council has a whistleblowing policy in place to ensure that employees who raise concerns

receive a response and are informed about how their concerns are being dealt with. Training
will commence during the 2022/23 year via the Council's e-learning platform.
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The handling of complaints is set out in the Council's Complaints Procedure, a copy of which is
published on the Council's website.

Arrangements for identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

New Members, whether joining Council after an election or co-option, receive induction training
to ensure that they are fully aware of all key issues, including an overview of each Council
Directorate, operation of the Committee system and Standing Orders and an overview of local
government finance. Members of the Planning Committee have received specific training in
respect of this new statutory role. The Council has been awarded Elected Member Charter
accreditation. Members were given the opportunity to identify their training needs and to develop
their own training plans. Members also attended courses and conferences as required during
the course of the year. Council will seek Charter Plus accreditation in due course.

The development needs of senior officers are addressed through the Pride in Performance
Initiative and the Organisational Development Strategy.

Arrangements for establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open
consultation

The Council is committed to establishing and maintaining strong lines of communication with all
sections of the local community. All Council and Commititee meetings are open to the press
and public. In addition, the minutes and an audio recording are published on the Council website
(except where a meeting or part thereof is held ‘in committee’).

During the COVID-19 Pandemic, Council and Committee meetings have been conducted on
Zoom and members of the press and public could enter the ‘gallery’ and watch the meeting
(except where a meeting or part thereof is held ‘in committee’).

There is awareness across all Directorates that different communication channels need to be
employed to ensure maximum impact, however the COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated the
use of digital channels. Corporately, the Council uses Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and
LinkedIn platforms, which have a combined following of over 43,000 people. Channels are
updated on a daily basis. Service-specific channels operate in tourism, arts and culture, and
leisure with a combined following of 23,000 people.

The Council's Gov.uk website is the main shop window for all its digital communication. Any
online search for Ards and North Down will direct to this site. Council's main social media
channels all refer people back to this website to deliver on calls to actions. Council ezine are
also linked back to the site. Annual traffic to the site is in excess of 1.2M and growing year on
year. User satisfaction with the site is high (averaging at 91% in the last two resident surveys).
However, the site was created in 2015 using a content management system that has since been
upgraded and the site will be redeveloped in the 2022/23 financial year to ensure it continues
to be fit-for purpose.

The Council distributed its annual corporate publication, the Borough Magazine, to all
households and businesses in the Borough (approx. 80,000 addresses) at the end of March
2022. This publication provides an overview of Council business across all Directorates and
each page is themed to enable residents to easily access information of specific interest to
them. A contact number for further information or links to the Council website are provided for
readers to access more information if required. The "Your Opinion Matters' section in each
edition invites comments, questions and ideas for service improvements from residents, via
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postcard or email. These are processed by the Performance Improvement Unit and allocated
to the relevant service area for action.

The information in the Borough Magazine is supplemented by focussed correspondence and
publications relating to specific service areas. The Council employs two officers dedicated to
external communications (one for traditional channels and one for digital channels). They
produce regular content for both local and regional media and undertake the daily management
of the Council's website and social media channels.

All Council Services consult on their various strategies and policies in the process of normal
business and to comply with the Council's various statutory duties. Given that COVID-19 had
restricted Council services during the period a small-scale residents survey (440 rather than
1,000 users) was undertaken in June 2021. It assessed satisfaction levels with core services
but also garnered more information on communication preferences so the Council can tailor
information to best suit citizen needs. Overall satisfaction was 82%. The comparative figure
for all GB Councils in June 2021 was 68%.

This year a number of internal corporate services carried out internal customer surveys to assist
with refining plans.

18. Arrangements for enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness
of other public service providers

The Big Plan for Ards and North Down (known as the Community Plan) is monitored and
reported on via a Strategic Community Planning Partnership. There are two parts to this:

« Statement of Progress — The Department for Communities has produced guidance on how
progress against the Community Plan should be reported. Every two years a Statement of
Progress must be published to consider the impact service delivery is having on the people
of Ards and North Down. The whole-population based indicators in the Big Plan (linked to
the Programme for Government indicators) will be used to measure impact over time. The
first Statement of Progress was published in November 2019, the second was published in
November 2021.

* Performance Update Report — The review of the Big Plan and its implementation has
resulted in the identification of 10 priorities that are now supported by issue specific
workstreams. Most workstreams are supported by an action plan and the activities within
this are reported to the Strategic Community Planning Partnership using Report Cards
developed via Outcomes Based Accountability methodology. An annual Performance
Update Report is provided to the Strategic Partnership and help make partnership members
collectively accountable for the impact all public services have on the people who live in
Ards and North Down.

The governance arrangements for community planning in Ards and North Down are managed via
a partnership agreement outlining the roles and responsibilities of those who deliver public
services across all tiers of the partnership — strategic and operational. This Partnership Agreement
was reviewed and updated in February 2022.

In line with community planning guidance documentation, a review of the Community Plan and its
associated actions was initiated in December 2019. Due to the impact of COVID-19 the
outworking's of the review was delayed by 12 months. While 10 priorities were agreed by the
Strategic Partnership prior to COVID-19, these were further reviewed using the Big Conversation
Panel and via feedback from a Community Support Steering Group, to ensure their relevance in
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a post-Covid world. The Big Plan Part Il | Our Big Priorities is published on the Council website
The Big Plan for Ards and North Down | Ards and North Down Borough Council.

19.

20.

30

Arrangements for reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial
instructions, a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which
clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to
manage risks

Meetings of the Council and its Committees are conducted in accordance with a set of agreed
Standing Orders. Any changes to these documents require formal approval by the Council.

The Standing Orders set out the formal mechanisms by which the Council regulates the conduct
of its meetings and are subject to regular review and update in response to the changing
environment and the needs of the Council. The Standing Orders have been reviewed and
amended as and when required since 2015. A comprehensive review was undertaken in 2019.
Due to COVID-19 the standing orders were further amended to incorporate reference to new
legislation enabling meetings to be held remotely. The current version was ratified in December
2021.

During the pandemic legislation was enacted to allow council meetings to take place remotely,
via video conferencing technology. This legislation expired during May 2021 following which the
Chief Executive was delegated to make decisions until further legislative arrangements could
be made.

In addition, there is a range of human resource management, financial management,
procurement and project management policies and procedures in place, some of these are
carried forward from legacy organisations. The Council will keep its policies and procedures
under review to ensure that they provide sufficient and comprehensive coverage. The
Corporate Risk Register is subject to formal update and is reported to the Audit Committee at
least twice yearly, or more regularly if required.

Any suspension of Standing Orders requires approval by the Council by way of qualified
majority.

Arrangements in respect of partnerships and other joint working as identified by the
Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships

The Council has responsibility to initiate, maintain, facilitate and participate in community
planning. The statutory partners have all agreed to a Partnership Agreement which commits
them to be active participants in the community planning process and to provide relevant staff
for each of the workstreams. The agreement also sets out that all partners are equal and
provides rules of attendance at meetings and how decision should be made. The Partnership
Agreement was reviewed, updated and endorsed by the Strategic Partnership in February 2022.
Reports on the process and progress in relation to Community Planning are reported regularly
to the Council's Corporate Services Committee.

The Council also participates in arc21 Joint Committee along with five other councils in order to
discharge statutory responsibilities set out in its waste management plan. This joint committee
has been established as a body corporate and participating organisations have agreed to
Collaboration Agreement (Terms of Agreement), which includes a statement of principles.
Reports in respect of the activities of and decisions required by arc21 are brought to the
Council's Environment Committee.



Back to Agenda

General Power of Competence

The Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 gave councils a general power of competence,
enabling them to take any action they consider appropriate provided the action was not prohibited by
any other legislation. Councils have been provided with the ability to act in their own interests and to
develop innovative approaches to addressing issues in their Borough. Under the Council's Standing
Orders, a qualified majaority shall be required on the exercise of the general power of competence in
accordance with Section 79 of the Act. This power was not used during the reporting period.

Review of effectiveness
A. Overview of the Review Process

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of
its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness
is informed by the work of the Council's CLT, who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual report, and
also by comments and recommendations made by the external auditors.

Recommendations arising out of internal and external audits are agreed with management
before finalisation to ensure that they will achieve the desired enhancement to the control
environment and are practical solutions. Follow up reviews are also reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Chief Executive has responsibility for preparing this Annual Governance Statement. In
preparing this statement, he has considered the governance framework and system of internal
controls in place. This review has been undertaken taking account of Guidance on the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 issued by the
Department of the Environment in November 2015. The Chief Executive leads the Council's
CLT to collectively have involvement in, and oversight of, the processes involved in maintaining
and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework. In producing this statement, full
regard has been made to the register of interests for Councillors, the Corporate Risk Register,
Statements of Assurance provided by each Head of Service and Director to the Chief Executive
for year ended 31 March 2022.

The Council itself maintains overall control of the governance framework and has been involved,
for example, in approving the implementation of the risk management policy and statement of
assurance processes. Primary responsibility for overseeing the governance process is the
responsibility of the Audit Committee as a standing committee of Council. The role of the Audit
Committee extends to receiving reports from the Council's internal and external auditors to
ensure that any issues raised are subject to due consideration and are addressed by CLT on a
timely basis.

In considering this Annual Governance Statement, the Audit Committee has considered the
review of the governance framework and system of internal controls prepared by the Chief
Executive.

B. Internal Audit

The Council’s Internal Audit service is provided under contract by Deloitte Ireland LLP. Internal
Audit provides an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's
system of internal control. Internal Audit reports any deficiencies in internal control to the Chief
Executive and Directors whose responsibility it is to consider any recommendations made and
to take necessary remedial action. The results of the work of Internal Audit are also reported
to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis to ensure that continuous improvement takes place.
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These reports include a half-yearly report on the progress being made to implement previous
agreed recommendations and an annual report from the Head of Internal Audit, providing
overall assurance on the systems of internal control in place.

The Council has both a four-year strategic audit plan and a one-year operational plan covering
the financial year under review, both of which have been agreed by the Audit Committee
following discussions with CLT and HoST. The internal audit approach is risk based and our
audit plan has been developed following an audit needs assessment as detailed in the Internal
Audit Strategy 2019-2023. The audit plan for 2021/22 was designed to cover the high-risk areas
identified by this audit needs assessment. An executive summary of each Internal Audit report
has been reported to the Audit Committee, including recommendations, management
responses and an assignment to an appropriate manager for implementation by a specified
date.

During 2021/22, 11 internal audits were completed, all of these were assurance reviews. Of
these reviews, eight received satisfactory assurance and three received limited assurance. All
Internal Audit recommendations have been accepted or accepted in principle by management
and each has been allocated to a responsible officer and given a timescale for implementation.
The details of the recommendation priority and agreed actions in each of the limited assurance
reviews are set out below.

Social Media

Priority  Action

Social Media Channels Established Outside of Council Control

1. Head of Tourism to review the Taste Ards and North Down Facebook
Page to establish its purpose/ objectives and contribution to service
outcomes. If the page is to continue, Corporate Communications will
provide guidance on necessary controls to be introduced eg
implementation of house rules/ access controls in line with the Saocial
Media Policy or statement of non-affiliation with the Council. Head of
Tourism will monitor compliance.

2. Head of Regulatory Services to review the Bangor Market Facebook
Page to establish its purpose/ objectives and contribution to service
outcomes. If the page is to continue, Corporate Communications will
provide guidance on necessary controls to be introduced eg
implementation of house rules/ access controls in line with the Social
Media Policy or statement of non-affiliation with the Council. Head of
Regulatory Services will monitor compliance.

2 " Policy and Procedures

1. HR input to the Social Media policy. This will involve two stages
a. Finalisation of the document including engagement with Staff
Consultative Committee, Trade Unions and then Council approval.
b. Training for all staff about roll out/ implications via Learning Pool
training.

2. Update of the draft policy with recommendations listed 1-9.
¢ Recommendations 1-7 + 9 will be implemented immediately.
e Recommendation 8 re customer care guidance will be completed by
September (see 2.2 response 5)
3. Council wide only essential training eg Health and Safety was delivered
in 2020 and into 2021 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. The organisation
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Social Media

Priority  Action

is only now beginning to develop and deliver its wider training programme
that would include social media.

Communications has budget for training staff identified as managing
Council established channels — however the audit has identified a number
of additional channels and a additional staff acting as admins on existing
pages so additional budget will be required to meet training requirements
in 2021.

The provider of previous social media training for the Council has been
commissioned to deliver 2 training modules — one for staff who assist with
the day-to-day operation of Council social media accounts and one for
staff with responsibility for the management of Council accounts. These
modules will be added into the annual training plan.

4. Annual programme of bi-monthly social media co-ordination meetings
established. Terms of Reference to be formally agreed at first meeting
(July 2021).

5. Working with other designated social media officers, the Corporate
Communications Team will develop guidance for managing social media
responses. This will be submitted to the Customer Services Manager for
integration into the Council's Customer Care Policy.

2 ' Strategy, KPIs and Reporting

1. A strategic review of the Visit Strangford Lough Channel commenced in
June 2021 to consider its fit with the wider social media strategy. The
review will include a monthly engagement report to head of service during
that period in the same format as current reporting for VisitAND channels.
The strategic review is due for completion in September 2021 and will
include recommendations for the long-term future of the channel and any
relevant KPIs agreed as required. As this channel was set up jointly with
Newry Mourne and Down, a strategic discussion is scheduled in June
with Newry Mourne and Down DC key stakeholders to determine their
position with regards to the channel.

2. Agree KPIs for leisure page and provide monthly performance report to
Operations Manager Leisure

2  User Access

1. Update Overview of SM accounts document.

2. Establish process for periodic review of the Overview of SM accounts
document. Bi-monthly from June 2021.

3. As mentioned in 2.3, a strategic discussion is scheduled to take place in
June with Newry Mourne and Down DC in relation to the owner ship,
access to and future strategy of the Visit Strangford Lough social media
channel.

3 ' Customer Service

1. Update the Customer Care to include guidance on social media
responses.

2. This will be considered by the Customer Care Working Group as an
enhancement to our current Customer Care policy.
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Social Media

Priority  Action

Due to visibility of public posts and the ongoing record retained of direct
messages, social media responses are more visible than most other
response to queries received by Council and issue of appropriateness
and ‘house style’ should be identified on an ongoing basis.

Lease Management

Priority Action

2 Policy and Procedures

1. Management will update the existing Land and Property policy section on
Rental to include the following:

+ Types of properties owned by the Council;

¢ Requirement of review and approval of a lease application by the
Corporate Services Committee;

¢ Requirement of the signing of a lease by the CEO on behalf of the
Council;
Roles and responsibilities of those involved in lease management;
A timeframe from the lease expiry date, before which the Compliance
Manager contacts the lessee to check whether they want to renew the
lease;

« Maintenance of a Lease Licence Register including periodic reviews
and approvals; and

e Monitoring and tracking compliance with the lease requirements
including inspections.

2 Lease Review and Approval Process

1. Management will ensure that the requirements of the Land and Property
policy are followed for every new lease and evidence of all the required
steps are maintained on file including below:

* Review of lease applications by the CLT;
e Valuation by the Council’s Valuer; and
* Legal advice received prior to entering the lease.

2 Maintenance Expenses

1. A process will be developed and implemented to confirm whether the
Council has the responsibility for the maintenance of the leased property
before providing the maintenance services to the leased property on the
lessee's request.

2. A process will be developed and implemented to recoup the part of
maintenance expenses incurred by the Council from the lessee as required
by the lease agreement.

3. Management will perform an exercise to identify where maintenance
expenses incurred by the Council should be charged back to the lessee
and update the licence register to record this. Where it is found that
maintenance expenses have not historically been charged back when they
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should have been per the lease agreement, a decision will be taken and '
documented as to how to approach this with the lessees.

4. Management will ensure that the roles and responsibilities for maintenance
within the lease agreements are clearly documented.

5. A separate code will be set up within the Finance System for leases to
support financial monitoring of charges.

Monitoring and Inspection

1. A process will be developed and implemented for monitoring and tracking
compliance with lease agreements. This will be completed by carrying out
inspections of the leased property on a periodic basis, particularly at the
commencement and renewal or termination stage of the lease, to verify
that the responsibilities of the lessee are being complied with and to identify
any damage to the property.

2. The Compliance Manager will liaise with the Asset and Property team to
ensure that inspections carried out are included and updated within the
lease licence register.

Lease Licence Register

1. The lease licence register will be reviewed and approved at an
appropriate level on a periodic basis.

Management will update the lease licence register and consider including,
but not limited to, the following:

e Details of the operating leases maintained in a separate register;
» Terms and conditions of the lessor and the lessee; and
e Inspection carried out at the leased property.

2. Management will ensure that the lease licence register captures all the
required details.

3. All the lease agreements will be scanned and retained on the file. The
Council will consider where best to store the scanned copies to prevent
multiple versions being made and provide a central access for required
users of the information.

Income and Debt Collection

1. The process for income and debt collection will be formally
documented.

2. Significant changes to the debtor management process such as the
decision to temporarily pause the debtor follow up process for a period
of time during the Covid-19 pandemic, will be formally approved by
the Council/Committee.
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General IT Controls
Priority Action

1 Weaknesses identified in security configurations

1. Password requirements will be changed to minimum length of 8
characters with a maximum number of 5 attempts before account lockout.
Staff information campaign will be carried out over the summer to advise
of change.

2. 4 identified accounts have been set to expire. A review of accounts to be
conducted with any other user accounts that are found to be set to not to
expire to be changed

3. Multi Factor authentication is currently being enabled, currently 10% of
users are set up.

4. Disc encryption will be rolled out, commencing November 2021,

prioritising the laptop estate and enforcing all USB devices to be

encrypted (business case for resources approved June 2021).

Review ICT Policy with the suggested amendments

Training will be rolled out once Interim Home Working and updated ICT

Policies have been approved.

7. A manual, weekly, review of authentication logs will commence straight
away with any unusual activity investigated. An automated SIEM will be
introduced by target date. (business case for resources approved June
2021).

ar o

2 Weaknesses identified in the management of access

1. Process will be reviewed to ensure it is fit for purpose and any changes
included in updated ICT Policy

2. Previously identified in Cyber Security Audit, this will be included in
updated ICT Policy.

3 Lack of formal review of key policies

1. Policy is currently under review
2. This will be included in updated ICT policy
3. Policy will be uploaded to Intranet once approved

For the period under review, Internal Audit has provided a satisfactory assurance on the overall
system of internal control. Whilst Internal Audit has identified the need for certain
improvements, there were no issues raised that are considered to represent a significant

governance issue.

The Council's internal audit contractor undertakes an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Internal Audit service in line with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
This review was reported by exception to the Audit Committee and proved satisfactory.

Statements of Assurance
The Service Statements of Assurance have been reviewed and the following points noted:
General - Identification of Risk, Monitoring and Control measures

No key issues have been declared as not having appropriate internal controls in place. All
Services have confirmed that any risks identified have appropriate internal controls and any
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further actions taken, or to be taken, to adequately mitigate or resalve the risk have been
identified.

Brexitand COVID 19 Pandemic Impacts

Actual and potential impacts, primarily financial and demands affecting staff, and / or service
delivery, are reported across the Statements of Assurance.

Section 1 - Strategic and Operational Risk Management
Services report appropriate controls are currently in place and have identified satisfactory
actions to review, monitor, control, mitigate and resolve issues, where appropriate.

The Waste and Cleansing Service has reported that a significant financial liability risk remains
if the bidding process for the Residual Waste Treatment project is collapsed by arc21
(contingency disclosed on page 114). Planning permission was recently refused by the
Department For Infrastructure Minister and legal advice is currently being sought on whether to
challenge the validity of the decision. All of this has significant implications for the future of
arc21, in terms of delivering infrastructure for member councils.

The Leisure Service has reported that the current insourcing exercise being undertaken for
North Down Leisure is greatly adding to the workload of the management team. Additional
leisure and human resourcing staff have been recruited along with the retention of specialist
consultancy services to assist in this process.

Section 2 - Internal Control

Generally, there are no key issues arising to cause significant concern or requiring immediate
action, although a range of action to follow-up internal audit recommendations are outstanding.
These are reported to Audit Committee on a half yearly basis.

Section 3 - Governance

The Administration Service have reported that complaints monitoring has revealed that
information is not always being appropriately captured and that, despite formal procedures
being in place, officers do not meet the expected standards in terms of response times and
responsibilities. An action plan is in place to address this with the increased roll-out of the Te-
Care software.

Assets and Property Services has reported that due to the recent high volatility in fuel prices a
“deemed contract” was set up with suppliers in a collective action by councils to secure supply
and attempt to achieve a price certainty as far as is practical. In addition, due to unexpected
market conditions the sale of electricity from the wind turbine in Balloo Wood Bangor was
extended beyond the tender period, the tender will be revised.

This Service has also reported that due to the pandemic several vehicles were hired from a
local business to support waste collections and other activities, these were hired without the
value of the contract being known at the time, but these vehicles have continued to require use
for much longer than planned due to the health and safety implications of COVID-19 on
operations. It is expected that these arrangements will be wound down over in the next number
of months.

The Leisure Service has reported that the insourcing of the North Down Leisure Services may
introduce legal or financial issues which have not been foreseen. To mitigate this the insourcing
team has been made up of officers from across multiple services of the Council for the greatest
breadth of experience available to work on this. The COVID-19 loss of income claims submitted
by the current operator are being independently reviewed by an external contractor to make an
assessment as to the validity of these claims.
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In addition, the Leisure Service has reported that the current difficulties recruiting staff is leading
to staffing shortfalls, and should this continue there is the possibility of reduction in facility
opening hours and by experience, an associated financial impact.

Environmental Health Protection and Development have again reported potentially significant
legal and financial issues due to the demand on the Service both in relation to COVID-19 and
the implementation of the Northern Ireland Protocol. In addition, the Service is reporting a
difficulty recruiting and retaining environmental health staff, both for front facing and support
staff which combined with the other pressures may hinder Council’s ability to deliver on statutory
requirements.

The Finance Service has reported that the issues of the interaction of overtime and holiday pay
are still unresolved as well as the implications of the McCloud and Sargent court cases, whilst
being accounted for in financial statements for year end March 2022 have not been fully
accounted for in employer pension contribution rates.

The Parks and Cemeteries Service has reported that the ongoing complaints regarding
remaining depths in graves is having a negative impact on cemeteries operations. Generally,
a potential risk in terms of admin support has been identified following recent restructuring and
in Cemeteries a need for greater admin support has been noted.

Several direct award contracts were reported by services, all of these have been reported to
Council and Council procedures followed.

Community and Culture have reported that there was a deviation from the Council's grants
policy relating to a grant for the Platinum Jubilee celebrations which was agreed by Council. In
addition, the Service has also noted that grant funding relating to COVID-19 costs were claimed
in error from Special European Union Programmes Body (SEUPB), and that the Service is
working with them to resolve this.

Section 4 - Miscellaneous

Many services have stated continuing difficulty in recruiting and retaining staff at all levels as a
key factor contributing to potential risk across a range of Council activities.

The Planning Service has reported that the Service Level Agreement (revision) with Shared
Environmental Service requires signing for the provision of services in relation to Sustainability
Appraisal for the Local Development Plan.

D. Corporate Risk Register
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Within the register, management have identified a significant residual risks (after current
mitigating actions) regarding:

« the Council's Local Development Plan (LDP) being found to be unsound due to
unavailability of a draft Belfast Metropolitan Transport Strategy (BMTP). The Council's
Head of Planning attends the BMTP project board and officers will continue to work with
Department for Infrastructure and Translink colleagues on LDP issues.

« Failure of Department for Infrastructure to have implemented replacement of Planning
Portal within ANDBC by early 2022 with no secure contract to maintain/support existing
Planning Portal system beyond 31 December 2021, leading to inability to deliver Planning
Services. Current controls include the Governance Board providing regular updates to
SOLACE, extension of support for the legacy system.

« The impact of Brexit on Council to deliver services. Action has been taken to set up a Day
One working group, review local service delivery legislation review of activities, projects
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plans (including emergency planning and business continuity arrangements). Further
contact with suppliers, work with the police and a review of income projections is required.

« Breach of Cyber Security. Damage to systems, or theft, leading to a failure to deliver
services, financial loss, legal action, or regulatory action due to non-compliance with
information management legislation (including GDPR and Data Protection Act 2018). A
draft Cyber Security action plan is under development. Other mitigating actions include
implementation of multi-factor authentication, review of internal processes, staff training
and testing.

» Data Breach Response & Recovery. Inadequate response (speed / statutory compliance /
inadequate controls / process / risk mitigation & provision / reputation / resourcing). Actions
to be taken include the development of a critical incident policy and procedure,
establishment of working group to address cross-organisation issues, development of a
risk register, review of cyber systems and risks and also staff training.

Whilst improvements and safeguards have been implemented which align to the Good
Practice guidelines from the National Cyber Security Centre both Breach of Cyber Security
and Data Breach Response and Recovery risks are likely to remain regarded as high
residual risks given the potential impact of a cyber-related incident.

E. Fraud, Whistle Blowing and Data Protection

During the year there were no actual frauds, whistleblowing incidents nor reportable data
protection events.

The Council has been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of
the governance framework by the Chief Executive and plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system.

Significant governance issues

There are no significant governance issues. Although there are a number of areas where ongoing
improvements can be made, these are not considered to be fundamental in nature.

Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer Chair of Audit Committee
19 September 2022 19 September 2022

- 39



Back to Agenda

Remuneration Report
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Introduction

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local
government bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of the statement of accounts.

Allowance and Remuneration Arrangements

Councillors

Allowances are payable by Councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to
Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019, which came into operation on 1 October 2019.

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2021 were issued
by the Department for Communities on 8 March 2021 (Circular LG 07/2021). Details of the
allowances paid to individual councillors are published on the Council's website.

Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line
with that determined by the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Executives and National Joint
Council (NJC) for Local Government Services for Directors. Senior staff are those staff who are
members of the Corporate Leadership Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff
Commissions’ Code of Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be
on merit and based on fair and open competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-
ended.

Allowances Paid to Councillors

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances in 2021/22, under Part 3 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government (Payments to
Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019 is set out in Table 1. This is audited information.

Independent Member — Audit Committee

Mr Samuel Hagen was the independent member of the Audit Committee until 30 September 2021.
He was succeeded by Mr William McGonigal who commenced on 1 October 2021. The role is to
help promote the highest standards in the financial management of the Council and thereby ensure
the accountability of public funds. A payment of £270 is now paid per meeting to cover preparation
and attendance plus travel and expenses.
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Table 1: Total Allowances paid to Councillors and Independent Member (audited
information)

Allowance 2021/22 2020/21
Total Number of Total Number of
ANGRAREaE Councillors Allowances Councillors
£ receiving £ receiving
Allowance Allowance
Basic Allowance 599,933 42* 602,678
Special Responsibility
Allbwarice 27,950 | 22 27,409
Chairperson / Mayor
Allowance 14,206 -
Vice Chairperson/ Deputy
Mayor Allowance 2h .
Mileage Allowance 2,527 7
Other Travel Allowance 956 5
Subsistence 858 3
Training, Courses/
Conferences Visits 7,909 42
Dependents' Carers i i
Allowance
Independent Member i ]
Allowance and Expenses
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 662,487

* During the 2021/22 financial year 42 different councillors were remunerated. Two councillors
resigned from the Council and were replaced in line with legislation.

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2021/22 are published on the Council's
website at Remuneration Report | Ards and North Down Borough Council
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Remuneration of Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Corporate Leadership Team. The following table
provides details of the remuneration paid to senior employees:

Table 2: Remuneration (including salary) (audited information)

Officers . 2021/22 _ . 2020/21
Salary Benefits Total Salary Benefits
(Full  year inkind (Full year | inkind
equivalent (to equivalent (to
in brackets nearest in brackets | nearest
where £100) where £100)
applicable) applicable)

£°000 £°000 £000 £'000

S Reid 120 -125 3 ' 120 - 125 120 - 125 120 - 125
Chief Executive

G Bannister = 85-90 3 85 -90 )
DCW

S Christie 85 - 90 1 85 - 90 85 - 90
DFP

D Lindsay 85-90 1 85-90 85-90 L 85 -90
DE

85 -90

85 -90

S McCullough 85-90 2 ~ 85-90 85-90 85 -90
DRDP

W Swanston 85 -90 1 85-90 85 - 90
DODA

85 - 90

DCW - Director of Community and Wellbeing

DE — Director of Environment

DFP - Director of Finance and Performance

DODA - Director of Organisational Development and Administration
DRDP - Director of Regeneration, Development and Planning

Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid
member of the Corporate Leadership Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate Leadership Team in the

financial year 2021/22 was £120k - £125k. This was 5.63 times the median remuneration of the
workforce, which was £21,748.
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Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate
Leadership Team and the median remuneration of the Council’s workforce (audited
information)

2021/22 2020/21
£ £

Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the 120,000 — 125,000 [EEFLIERFLTC
Corporate Leadership Team

Median Total Remuneration 21,748 f 21,960
Ratio 5.63 i 5.56

In 2021/22, no employees received remuneration more than the highest paid member of the
Corporate Leadership Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments (none paid) and benefits in kind (staff leisure
membership and health insurance both taxed at source).

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime, taxable mileage payments and any gratia payments.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by
HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument.

Exit Packages for staff
The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, together with total cost per band
and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the Table 4 below:

Table 4: Exit Packages (audited information)

2021/22 2020/21
Severance Number of Number of - Number of | Numberof | Total
Package Compulsory Other Cost Compulsory Other Cost
CostBand  Redundancies departures £ Redundancies | Departures
£°000 agreed | agreed | £'000
0-20 : : -
20 - 40 - E -
40 - 60 - - -
60 - 80 - = 5
Total - _ - -
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Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) is a funded defined benefit
pension scheme, which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a “career average
revalued earnings” basis from 1 April 2015. Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary”
basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for
each year of membership. Pension benefits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31
March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership. There
is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009. Pension benefits
in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and
3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009.
At retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue
and Customs (HMRC) limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension
given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified
to reflect the fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued
pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and
thereafter at a rate of 1/49th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to
1 April 2009, a member's contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration
(except for those who were entitled to contribute to the Scheme at 5% hefore 1 February 2003 and
have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution rates, determined by the
whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the member
contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities
in April each year in accordance with the increase applied to a pension in payment. The bands,
effective from 1 April 2021, were as set out in Table 5 below.

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Employee
Contribution Rate

£0 - £15,000
£15,001 - £23,000

£23,001 - £38,400

| £38,401 - £46,60 b—'i
' £46,601 - £92,300 |
' More than £92,300 |

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund’s actuary every three years at the triennial
valuation. As part of the March 2019 valuation the actuary certified the employers’ contribution rates
for the three years from 1 April 2020. Most employers participate in a pooled employers’ contribution
rate. As the Fund currently has a surplus, no deficit contributions are payable by the main group. The
contribution rates for the Council for the three-year period are as set out in Table 6.
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Table 6: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer
Contribution Rate

1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 ' 19.5%

1 April 2021 — 31 March 2022
1 April 2022 — 31 March 2023

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June
2014 and The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional Provisions)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014. Both sets of regulations are
effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued
significant benefits thus far. However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all
Councillors during 2021/22 were £117,136 (2020/21: £118,021).

The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year
was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2021/22 (audited information)

Officers Accrued Pension Real increasein CETV at Je=p'F Real
at pension age as pension and 31/3/22 cilk{FABN increase
at 31/3/22 and related lump sum in CETV
related lump sum at pension age
£'000 £000 £°000 £'000
S Reid 55-60 and lump 0-2.5 and lump 1,207 19
Chief Executive sum 105-110 sum 0-(2.5)
G Bannister 40-45 and lump 0-2.5 and lump 718 20
DCW sum 60-65 sum 0-(2.5)
S Christie  5-10 and lump sum  0-2.5 and lump 80 17
DFP nil sum nil
D Lindsay 40-45 and lump 0-2.5 and lump 802 22
DE sum 65-70 sum 0-(2.5)
S McCullough 35-40 and lump 0-2.5 and lump 619 19
DRDP sum 50-55 sum 0-(2.5)
W Swanston 30-35 and lump 0-2.5 and lump 598 23
DODA sum 30-35 sum 0-(2.5)
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a
member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any
contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. It is a payment made by a pension scheme
or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the
member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior
capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational
Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any actual
or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when
pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It does not include the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market
valuation factors for the start and end of the period. However, the real increase calculation uses
common actuarial factors at the start and end of the period so that it disregards the effect of any
changes in factors and focuses only on the increase that is funded by the employer.

Chief Executive
19 September 2022
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

(a) the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 on pages 1 to 123 has
been prepared in the form directed by the Department for Communities and under
the accounting policies set out on pages 59 to 78.

(b) in my opinion the Statement of Accounts give a true and fair view of the income and
expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the
end of the financial year ending 31 March 2022.

Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
19 September 2022

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Audit Committee on 19 September
2022.

Chairman
19 September 2022
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Ards and North
Down Borough Council

Blank for auditor's report
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2022
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The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in
accordance with statutory requirements; this may be difference from the accounting cost.
The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Services Expenditure
Community & Wellbeing
HQ

Environmental Health
Community & Culture

Parks and Cemeteries

Leisure

Environment HQ

Waste and Cleansing
Services

Assets and Property
Services

Regulatory Services
Regen, Dev & Planning HQ
Regeneration

Economic Development
Planning

Tourism

Finance & Performance HQ
Internal Audit

Finance

Strategic Transformation &
Performance

Strategic Capital
Development
Organisational
Development & Admin HQ
HR & Organisational
Development

Admin & Customer
Services

Chief Executive
Community Planning

Corporate Communications

Note

L T L R

M RN RN MMM NN MM

I I

2021/22
Ex;?dsifure Igtl:.zfnse Ll
£ £ £
922,026 (13) 922,013
2,743,519 (611,445) 2,132,074
3,514,164  (1,206,005) 2,308,159
5,309,562 (457,928) 4,851,634
7,809,585 (2,183,495) 5,716,090
994,696 (1,965) 992,731
17,948,850 (1,113,652) 16,835,198
9,625,185 (248,032) 9,377,153
3,152,010 (2,049,455) 1,102,555
344,226 (8,334) 335,892
1,306,767 (137,728) 1,169,039
2,815,047 (533,819) 2,281,228
2,363,431 (1,007,463) 1,355,968
1,749,718 (236,590) 1,513,128
171,333 (30) 171,303
55,870 55,870
1,122,993 (4139) 1,118,854
2,039,796 2,039,796
396,963 396,963
191,633 191,633
1,152,867 (900) 1,151,967
4,249 654 (345,256) 3,904,398
364,654 (257) 364,397
196,116 (1,000) 195,116
895,986 895,986

Gross
Expenditure

£

369,465

2,423,641
3,230,718
5,012,183
0,454,602

643,815
17,273,846

8,271,652
2,828,771
327,732
1,082,996
2,574,831
2,237,404
1,236,069
148,473
56,610
1,041,739
1,610,848
343,461
240,108
969,648
3,773,497
392,561
134,114
461,601

Gross
Income

£

(1,348)

(576,611)
(1,874,401)
(461,052)
(402,516)

(834,745)

(192,598)
(1,479,212)
(106,030)
(411,308)
(846,542)
(35,689)
(10)

(389)

(277,669)

2020/21

Net Cost

£

368,117

1,847,030
1,356,317
4,551,131

9,052,086
643,815

16,439,101

8,079,054
1,349,559
327,732
976,966
2,163,523
1,390,862
1,200,380
148,463
56,610
1,041,350
1,610,848
343,461
240,108
969,648
3,495,828
392,561
130,114
461,601




Capital Financing
Year End Transactions
REFCUS

Cost of Services on
Continuing Operations

Cost of Services on
Continuing Operations

Other Operating
Expenditure / Income

Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure

Surplus/(Deficit) on
Discontinued Operations

Net
Expenditure
Taxation and Non-Specific
Grant Income
Surplusi(Deficit) on the
Provision of Services
Surplus/(Deficit) on
revaluation of non-current
assets

Operating

Impairment losses on non-
current assets charged to
the Revaluation Reserve

Re-measurements of the
Net Defined Benefit Liability/
(Asset)

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

54

Note

[3*]

10

22

2021/22
Gross Gross
Expenditure Income NesComt
£ £ E
85,722 . 85,722
1,458,209 - 1,458,209
73,070,582 (10,147,506) 62,923,076
73,070,582 (10,147,506) 62,923,076
260,583 - 260,583
3,973,376 (130,437) 3,842,939
77,304,541 (10,277,943) 67,026,598
- (59,792,421) (59,792,421)
77,304,541 (70,070,364) (7.234,177)
11,130,517
(455,000)
21,343,000

24,784,340

Gross

Expenditure

£

1,321,514

67,461,899

67,461,899

118,785

3,929,338

71,510,022

71,510,022
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Gross
Income

£

(7,504,120)

(7,504,120)

(127,959)

(7,632,079)
(68,121,408)

(75,753,487)

(1,880,490)

2020/21

Net Cost

E

1,321,514

28,957,779

59,957,779

118,785

3,801,379

63,877,943

(68,121,408)

4,243,465

3,344,045

(9,468,000)



Ards and North Down Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Back to Agenda

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different
reserves held by the authority, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure
or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves'. The Statement shows how the movements in year of
the Council's reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustment required to return to the amounts chargeable to
council tax for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements

in the year following those adjustments.

At 1 April 2021

Movement in reserves
during the year:

Surplus or (deficit) on
the provision of
services

Other Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments between
accounting basis &
funding under
regulations

Net Increase /
(Decrease) before
transfers to Statutory
and Other Reserves

Transfers to/(from)
Statutory and Other
Reserves

Increasel/(Decrease)
in Year

At 31 March 2022

General Other Fund  Capital Total Total Total
Fund Balances & Receipts Usable Unusable Council
Summary Reserves Reserve Reserves Reserves Reserves
£ £ £ £ £ £
4,527,365 13,831,634 1,619,304 19,978,303 100,432,099 120,410,402
(7,234,177) - - (7,234,177) - (7,234,177)
- - - 32,018,517 32,018,517
(7,234,177) - - (7,234,177) 32,018,517 24,784,340
10,808,047 (217,646) 1,707,539 12,297,940 (12,297,940) -
3,573,870 (217,646) 1,707,539 5,063,763 19,720,577 24,784,340
(2,613,712) 2,613,712 - - - -
960,158 2,396,066 1,707,539 5,063,763 19,720,577 24,784,340
5,487,523 16,227,700 3,326,843 25,042,066 120,152,676 145,194,742
55



Ards and North Down Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Comparative Year

Other Fund
Balances &
Reserves

£ £

General
Fund

At 1 April 2020 3,015,480 3,896,115

Movement in reserves
during the year:

Surplus or (deficit) on
the provision of
services

4,243,465

Other Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£

2,056,161

Total
Usable

Reserves
£

8,967,756

4,243,465

Total
Unusable
Reserves

£

113,323,136

(6,123,955)
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Total Council

Reserves

E

122,290,892

4,243,465

(6,123,955)

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis &
funding under
regulations

4,243,465

6,728,473 475,466

(436,857)

4,243,465

6,767,082

(6,123,955)

(6,767,082)

(1,880,490)

Net Increase /
(Decrease) before
transfers to Statutory
and Other Reserves

Transfers to/(from)
Statutory and Other
Reserves

10,971,938 475,466

(9,460,053) 9,460,053

(436,857)

11,010,547

(12,891,037)

(1,880,490)

Increasel/(Decrease)

: 1,511,885
in Year

9,935,519

At 31 March 2021 4,527,365 13,831,634

(436,857)

1,619,304

11,010,547

19,978,303

(12,891,037)

100,432,099

(1,880,490)

120,410,402
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2022

Notes 2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Fixed Assets 12 247,172,959 242,431,113
Long Term Debtors 16 539,642 609,827
LONG TERM ASSETS 247,712,601 243,040,940

Short Term Investments 17 - -
Inventories 15 272,056 283,398
Short Term Debtors 16 7,425,300 6,443,685
Cash and Cash Equivalents 26 10,403,275 10,927,449
Assets Held for Sale 12f 100,000 1,800,000
CURRENT ASSETS 18,200,631
Bank Overdraft 26 - -
Short Term Borrowing 18a 3,135,428 6,170,269
Short Term Creditors 19 5,707,070 7,300,996
Provisions 20 776,105 776,105
CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,618,603
=
Long Term Creditors 19 - -
Provisions 20 454,340 363,728
Long Term Borrowing 18 63,724,547 66,859,972
Other Long Term Liabilities 22 46,921,000 60,614,000
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 24 - =
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 111,099,887 127,837,700
NET ASSETS 145,194,742 120,410,402
USABLE RESERVES
Capital Receipts Reserve 27a 3,326,843 1,619,304
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 27b 2,500,040 2,739,841
Revenue Grants Unapplied Account 27c 301,460 279,305
Earmarked Fund 27d 13,426,200 10,812,488
General Fund 27e 5,487,523 4,527,365
25,042,066
UNUSABLE RESERVES
Capital Adjustment Account 28a 81,580,592 81,805,589
Revaluation Reserve 28b 86,187,908 79,999,277
Pensions Reserve 28c (46,921,000) (60,614,000)
Accumulated Absences Account 28d (694,824) :
120,152,676 100,432,099
[ ¢
NET WORTH 145,194,742
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Cash Flow Statement
As at 31 March 2022

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital
(ie borrowing) to the Council.

Notes 2021/22 2020/21
£ £

Net surplus / (deficit) on the provision of :
services (7,234,177) 4,243,465

Adjustment for non-cash movements 26a 15,534,541 14,527,660

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus
or deficit on the provision of services that are  26a (1,850,159) (20,000)
investing and financing activities

Net cash flows from Operating Activities 6,450,205 18,751,125

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 26d (804,114) (4,577,199)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 26e (6,170,265) (8,213,710)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (524,174) 5,960,216

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period 10,403,275 10,927,449

26b 10,927,449 4,967,233
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

1A Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2022. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices. These
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2021/22 also requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
i) Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

* Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

e Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet.

e Expenses inrelation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.

e |Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the
basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash
flows fixed or determined by the contract.

e Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and
a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

ii) Acquisitions

Guidance issued by CIPFA regarding the accounting treatment for transfers of functions,
assets and liabilities resulting from local government reform stated that:
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Paragraph 2.5.2.1 of the Code defines a transfer of function as a ‘transfer of an identifiable
service or business operation with an integrated set of activities, staff and recognised assets
and / or liabilities that are capable of being conducted and managed to achieve the objectives
of that service or business operation.

The combinations and transfers as a result of Local Government Reform are considered, for
accounting purposes, to be combinations of public sector bodies (these are most commonly
seen in the form of local government reorganisation or other transfers of function from one
public sector body to another).

Paragraph 2.5.1.1 of the Code advises that combinations of public sector bodies are deemed
to be ‘a combination of businesses under common control’, and as such are outside the scope
of IFRS 3 Business Combinations.

This means that the combination of the legacy local authorities into one new authority, and
the transfer of functions (in full or in relation to a geographic area) from the responsibility of
one authority (or other public sector body) to another, were accounted for using the principles
that apply to Group Reorganisations / Reconstructions.

iii) Provisions for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

As both the legacy Councils have already completed the Pay & Grading review under Single
Status there is no longer a requirement to make a provision.

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature
in no more than three months or less from the date of acguisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash
Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management. Any bank
overdrafts are shown within current liabilities on the balance sheet.

v) Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised
in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there
will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

vi) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts.
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vii) Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, are recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made
for the cost of holiday, flexi and time off in lieu entitlements earned by employees but not taken
befare the year-end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The
accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being
the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which
the holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post-Employment Benefits
Most employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government
Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'

Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement
lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.
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The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Narthern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of projected
earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities.

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price;
unquoted securities — professional estimate;
property — market value;

unitised securities — current bid price.

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into seven components as follows:

1. Within the cost of services:

s current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned
this year - allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
services for which the employees worked,;

e past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statements. The treatment of past service costs will depend on the
decisions of the Council about how they are allocated to service segments;

2. Within Financing Investment Income and Expenditure:

* Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) — i.e. net interest expense
for the Council, the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the
beginning of the period - taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

3. Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Re-measurements):

« the return on plan assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the
Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). This includes interest, dividends and other income
derived from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on
the plan assets, less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the
plan itself other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the
present value of the defined benefit ohligation;
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e actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions
Reserves as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

4, Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations:

« contributions by scheme participants — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets
due to payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution
increases pension due to the employee in the future);

« contributions by the employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments
into the scheme by the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are made to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
employees.

5. Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
pension fund.

The Northern Civil Service Pension Fund

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it was a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

viii) Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that

occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

« those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
— the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events;
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+ those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues her certificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of autharisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.

ix) Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council's financial performance.

X) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e, in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

xi) Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for
the year according to the loan agreement.

However, the bonds issued by the Council in 2019/20 are carried at a lower amortised cost
than the outstanding principal, and interest is charged at a marginally higher effective rate of
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interest than the rate payable to bondholders, as a material amount of costs incurred in its
issue is being financed over the life of the stock.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term
that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable
when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.

There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

e amortised cost
» fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The Council's business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual
payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not
take the form of a basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are hased on the carrying amount
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the
financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the year in the loan
agreement.

However, the Council has made a number of loans to voluntary organisations at less than
market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value
of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised
cost than the outstanding principal.

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving
to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require
that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the
financial year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance
is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debits to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost [or where relevant FVOCI], either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit
loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument
was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased
significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially

measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive
in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following technigues:

e instruments with quoted market prices — the market price;
« other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow
analysis;

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three levels:

« Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the authority can access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any
impairment losses).

xii) Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses
are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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xiil) Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable

assurance that:
e the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
 the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed
by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned
to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

xiv) Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset
to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available)
and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential
by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured
reliably as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the development
phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market.
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over
its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are
posted to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and for any sale proceeds greater than £5,000, the Capital
Receipts Reserve.

xv) Inventories & Long-Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.

Long Term revenue contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services with the value of works and services received under the contract
during the financial year.

xvi) Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery
of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm's
length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to
market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result
in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

Xvii) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings,
the land and buildings elements are considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.
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The Council as Lessee

Finance Leases:

Property, Plant and Equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to
the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing
down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

* a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease liability, and

* a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision is made from
revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.
Depreciation and impairment losses are therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the
General Fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account
in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor

Finance Leases:

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched
by a lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.
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Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

e a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease asset (long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and

« finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and will be required to be
treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment
of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future
rentals are paid, the element for the charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property is
used to write down the lease asset (debtor). At this point, the deferred capital receipts are
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of fixed
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases:

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.

xviii) Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent
decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are
recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not
charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassified back
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were classified
as Held for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been
recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the
date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as
Assets Held for Sale.
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When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Summary as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District Rates, as the cost of fixed
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

xix) Overheads and Support Services

Overheads and support services are no longer recharged to frontline services, as in previous
years. This follows changes to the CIPFA code and the ‘telling the story' initiative where the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is now formatted in the same manner as
the Council reports internally.

xx) Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement
Assets over £5,000 are initially measured at cost, comprising:

the purchase price;
any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management;

» the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council. In the latter case, where the asset
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is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset
given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated
historical cost;

e surplus assets — the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at the
highest and best use from a market participant's perspective;

¢ all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset
in its existing use (existing use value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to
the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the
reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into

the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may

be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

= where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount
of the accumulated gains); and

+ where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset
is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.
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Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic

allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is charged on a straight-line basis on each main class of asset as follows:

e buildings and infrastructure assets are depreciated on their current value over the
estimated useful life of the asset as advised by a suitably qualified officer. Depending
on the type of building, installation or fitting the maximum useful life will be in the range
of 3 to 69 years.

e plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated on historic cost using a life of between
3 and 30 years.

e the Council applies a full year depreciation in the year of acquisition and no
depreciation in the year of disposal.

Componentisation
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their histarical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

xxi) Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture. They are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations
because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations and are held by the Council
in pursuit of its overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of heritage.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment
for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or
where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accordance with the Council’'s general policies on impairment (see note xviii in this summary
of significant accounting policies). The Council will occasionally dispose of heritage assets
which have a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable for public display. The proceeds of such
items are accounted for in accordance with the Council's general provisions relating to the
disposal of property, plant and equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the
notes to the financial statements and are accounted for in accordance with statutory
accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts.

The Council's capitalisation limit for this class of asset is £5,000. Due to the fluctuating nature

in value of such assets, the Council will only derecognise assets once they fall below a value
of £2,500.
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Heritage assets are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value; hence the
Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.

The Council's heritage assets can be classified into one of four main headings as follows:

Paintings and Drawings

It is within this category that most of the Council’s heritage assets lie, the most significant of
which are paintings which are on display around Bangor Town Hall in corridors and offices.
The most important collections are those by James Humbert Craig and the gallery copies of
Old Masters by Edwin Long. There is also a good selection of renowned Irish artists including
William Conor, Maurice MacGonigal, Georgina Moutray Kyle and Charles Lamb.

Artefacts

Most of these items are small pieces relating to North Down from prehistory to modern day.
Among the older artefacts is a fair example of a set of giant Irish elk antlers. However, the
most valuable item is the Victoria Cross and other medals awarded to Commander Hon.
Edward Barry Bingham for his role in the Battle of Jutland.

There are also some important artefacts relating to the families of Bangor Castle. Of interest
are the Raven Maps, a 17" century folio mapping the estate of Sir James Hamilton. Other
notable artefacts include the Bangor Bell, a bronze hand bell believed to be from the 9"
century and some Blair Mayne medals and pictures.

There are also some artefacts, mostly oriental, relating to Sir John Newell Jordan. The majority
of these pieces are porcelain or china but there are also scrolls, export chests and a few
bronze items including representations of Buddhas.

Furniture of historical interest

This not only encompasses chairs and tables but also large pieces such as cabinets and
bookcases. There are a number of 17" century chairs originating from the Ward family. Of
particular note is a large Regency bookcase in mahogany.

Other Heritage Assets

Civic Regalia
This collection consists of the Mayor's Gold Chain of Office, Deputy Mayor's Gold Chain of
Office, Council Mace and other assorted items received or acquired by the Council as part of
its Civic role.

Statues, War Memorials and Public Art

These encompass the Blair Mayne Statue (situated in Conway Square, Newtownards),
Gillespie’'s Monument (situated in the Square, Comber), Cenotaph (situated in Court Square,
Newtownards), the Bangor Bell Public Art piece and some other less prominent pieces.

The entire collection is relatively static, acquisitions and donations are infrequent. Where they
do occur, acquisitions are initially recognised at cost and donations are recognised at
valuation. Valuations are ascertained by a suitably experienced expert in their respective
fields. However, there are some for which a nominal value is assigned as this would involve
a disproportionate cost in comparison to the benefits to the users of the Council’s financial
statements. This is because of the diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of
comparable values.
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xxii) Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making
of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles
the obligation.

xxiii) Reserves and Funds

The Council sets aside specific amounts as funds for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, accumulated absences and retirement benefits and do not represent
usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the
accounts.

xxiv) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue (e.g. services, support services and trading accounts) for non-current
assets are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during
the year:

depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;
revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off; and

e amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a
prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance, referred to as
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) in the General Fund balance. Depreciation, impairment
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losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by MRP in the General Fund balance, by way
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

xxv) Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

xxvi) Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is shown
net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.

xxvii)Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
b. inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the
council takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use. The Council uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

¢ Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities
that the authority can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

 Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

1B Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been Adopted
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires

an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change
that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code
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also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively unless
transitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures spanning
two financial years.

The standards introduced by the 2022/23 Code where disclosures are required in the
2021/22 financial statements in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 3.3.4.3 of
the Code are:

 |IFRS 16 Leases ( but only for those local authorities that have decided to adopt IFRS
16 in the 2022/23 year — deferred until 15* April 2024). Conrad Hall, CIPFA LASAAC
chair, said: "CIPFA LASSAC is of the view that IFRS 16 remains the best form of
reporting local authority leases and shares the Government’s Financial Reporting
Advisory Board's (FRAB) objective of promoting excellence in financial reporting.
The decision to defer IFRS 16 is a pragmatic response due to the severe delays in
the publication of audited local authority financial statements in England. The
decision should not be viewed as a commentary on the usefulness of the information
derived from the implementation of the Standard.” FRAB advised CIPFA / LASAAC
that it agreed with the deferral of IFRS 16 Leases until 1 April 2024 when Council will
adopt in line with all Northern Ireland councils.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020. The annual IFRS
improvement programme notes 4 changed standards:

o IFRS 1 (First-time adoption) — amendment relates to foreign operations of
acquired subsidiaries transitioning to IFRS

o IAS 37 (Onerous contracts) — clarifies the intention of the standard

o IFRS 16 (Leases) — amendment removes a misleading example that is not
referenced in the Code material

o |AS 41 (Agriculture) — one of a small number of IFRSs that are only expected
to apply to local authorities in limited circumstances.

None of the matters covered in the annual improvements are dealt with in detail in
the 2022/23 Code. During the consultation process on the 2022/23 Code
CIPFA/LASAAC did not envisage them having a significant effect on local authority
financial statements.

« Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS
16).

The Council expects none of the above amendments to have a material impact on information
in the financial statements.

1C Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

For the 2021/22 financial year, the Council has not made any critical judgements about
complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

iD Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However,
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially
different from the assumptions and estimates.
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i)

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Insurance Claims

The Council has made a provision of £423,900 for the settlement of insurance claims, arising
from claims submitted to the Council under its self-insurance scheme for public and employee
liability. These claims are those that have been received since 1 April 2015 and those claims
still outstanding from the legacy North Down Borough Council, which were still outstanding at
31 March 2022.

This is a general provision, based on average settlement rates and represents an estimated
liability in respect of claims lodged but being strongly contested by the Council.

Environmental Provision

The Council has made a provision of £95,005 that relates to the need for remedial works to
be undertaken to address environmental damage at two properties in the Council area. One
relates to consultants fees associated with the required, settled and contracted remedial work
whilst the other is remediation work agreed as part of the settlement to militate against future
run-off of storm water from Council land into the third party’s site.

Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. The
Council's pension provider's actuaries, Aon Hewitt, are engaged to provide the Council with
expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

The effects on the net pension liahility of changes in individual assumptions can be measured.
For instance, a 0.1% increase in the discount rate would result in a decrease of 1.90% in the
present value of the pension liability. Further information on the effects on the net pension
liability of changes in assumptions is disclosed in note 22e on pages 112 and 113.

Holiday Pay Provision

Court judgments have established the law as requiring employees to receive
acknowledgement of overtime payments as part of their holiday pay entitlement
calculations, which the Council acknowledges. The Northern Ireland Court of Appeal
turned down an appeal by the Police Service of Northern Ireland (PSNI) regarding the
potential liability arising to that organisation in this regard. This decision was appealed to
the Supreme Court. The Council has a signed agreement with the recognised trade
unions, however individual employees will also be required to sign compromise
agreements before receiving their payment.

However, as a consequence of a mediation process entered into between NIPSA and the
PSNI in relation to Agnew, NIPSA are no longer in a position, at this point, to enter into
any agreement which compromises the full extent of the law as determined by the
Northern Ireland Court of Appeal in Agnew. NIPSA’s current position is therefore to pause
any current negotiations. The matter remains as a standing item on the Joint Forum
agenda.
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2a) Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Back to Agenda

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from
resources (government grants, service charges and district rates) by local authorities in comparison
with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes
between the council's directorates and services. Income and expenditure accounted for under
generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Community &
Wellbeing HQ

Environmental
Health

Community &
Culture

Parks and
Cemeteries

Leisure

Environment HQ

Waste and
Cleansing
Services

Assets and
Property Services

Regulatory
Services

Regen, Dev &
Planning HQ

Regeneration
Economic Dev

Planning

Tourism

Finance &
Performance HQ

Internal Audit

Finance

Net
Expenditure

Chargeable to

the General
Fund

£
888,713
1,677,408
1,895,543
3,266,012
2,538,627

960,858

14,270,661

6,924,937
347,347
299,217
786,872
951,787

1,277,812
1,197,461
121,727
55,870

953,120

2021/22

Adjustments
between the
Funding and
Accounting
basis

£
33,300

454,666
412,616
1,585,622
3,177,463

31,873

2,564,537

2,452,216
755,208
36,675
382,167
1,329,441

78,156
315,667
49,576

165,734

Net Expenditure

in the

Comprehensive

Income and
Expenditure
Statement

£
922,013

2,132,074
2,308,159
4,851,634
5,716,090

992,731

16,835,198

9,377,153
1,102,555

335,892
1,169,039
2,281,228

1,355,968
1,513,128
171,303
55,870

1,118,854

Net

Expenditure
Chargeable

to the

General Fund

£
348,709

1,609,037

1,153,304

2,918,883

4,340,834

624,218

14,716,366

5,580,758

823,506

306,167

736,138

947,431

1,322,412

1,067,822
133,807
56,610

924,413

Adjustments
between the
Funding and
Accounting

basis

£
19,408

237,993

1,632,248

4,711,252

2,498,295

526,053

240,828

1,216,093

68,450

132,558

2020/21

Net Expenditure

in the

Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Statement

£
368,117

1,847,030

1,356,317

4,551,131

9,052,086

643,815

16,439,101

8,079,053

1,349,559
327,732
976,966

2,163‘524“

1,390,862
1,200,380

148,463

116,938 ‘ 1,041,351
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Strategic
Transformation &
Performance
Strategic Capital
Development
Organisational
Development &
Admin HQ

HR & OD

Administration &
Customer
Services

Chief Executive

Community
Planning

Corporate
Communications

Capital Financing

Year End
Transactions

REFCUS

Net Cost of
Services

Other Income
and Expenditure

(Surplus) or
Deficit

Opening General
Fund

Surplus/ (Deficit)
on General Fund
Balance in Year
Transfers
(to)/from Statutory
and Other
Reserves

Closing General
Fund

80

2021/22 2020/21
Net Adjustments  Net EFP:-'h"d“UfE Net Adjustments
Expenditure  between the e Expenditure between the
Chargeable to  Funding and c‘?“‘l’“’he"s"’e Ch%rgeable Funding and

the General  Accounting Exw?:i?:t: to the Accountin
Fund basis spe . 9

tatement General Fund basis
£ £ £

339,731 57,232 396,963 315,250 28,211

157,174 34,459 191,633 225,270 14,838
982,133 169,834 1,151,967 877,673
3,263,108 641,290 3,904,398 3,122,479

308,058 56,339 364,397 361,121

156,489 38,627 195,116

773,840 122,146 895,986 411,610

5,489,643 (5.489,643) - 5,415,492 (5,415,492)
( )

(228,861) 314,583 85,722 41,041

5 1,458,209 1,458,209 1,321,514

51,399,632 11,523,444 62,923,076 50,046,692 9,911,087

(54,973,502) (715,397)  (55,688,899) [EN(HNRE:Norcls) NN (< WK 72N 0)

(3,573,870) 10,808,047 7,234,177 6,728,473

3,573,870

(2,613,712)

5,487,523

Back to Agenda

Net Expenditure
in the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

£

1,744,345 295,451 2,039,796 1,629,628 (18,780)

1,610,848

343,461

240,108

969,648

3,495,829

392,561

130,114

461,601

1,321,514

59,957,779

(64,201,244)
(4,243,465)

3,015,480

10,971,938

(9,460,053)
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2b)

Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Back to Agenda

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the
General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Adjustments from General Fund to
arrive at the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement Amounts

Community & Wellbeing HQ
Environmental Health

Community & Culture

Parks and Cemeteries

Leisure

Environment HQ

Waste and Cleansing Services

Assets and Property Services
Regulatory Services

Regen, Dev & Planning HQ
Regeneration

Economic Dev

Planning

Tourism

Finance & Perfarmance HQ

Internal Audit

Finance

Strategic Transformation & Performance
Strategic Capital Development

OD & Admin HQ

HR & OD

Administration & Customer Services
Chief Executive

Community Planning

Corporate Communications

Capital Financing

Year End Transactions

REFCUS

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund surplus or
deficit and Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services

202122
Adjustments  Net Change Other Total
for Capital for the Statutory
Purposes Pension Adjustments
Adjustments
£ £ £ £
5 35,194 (1,894) 33,300
5,045 449,162 459 454,666
70,532 331,990 10,094 412,616
1,044,563 566,526 (25,467) 1,585,622
2,408,090 766,383 2,990 3,177,463
- 35,238 (3,365) 31,873
1,186,648 1,407,964 (30,075) 2,564,537
2,149,662 318,843 (16,289) 2,452,216
421,812 349,767 (16,371) 755,208
- 35,256 1,419 36,675
147,780 236,042 (1,655) 382,167
1,196,073 137,744 (4,376) 1,329,441
- 96,159 (18,003) 78,156
44,595 257,058 14,014 315,667
- 45,854 3,722 49,576
- 167,461 (1,727) 165,734
160,233 133,382 1,836 295,451
- 56,021 1,211 57,232
- 31,291 3,168 34,459
- 171,446 (1,612) 169,834
53,707 576,436 11,147 641,290
- 57,102 (763) 56,339
- 34,914 3,713 38,627
3,498 114,767 3,881 122,146
(5,489,643) - - (5,489,643)
305,583 9,000 - 314,583
1,458,209 - - 1,458,209
5,166,387 6,421,000 (63,943) 11,523,444
(1,922,243) 1,229,000 (22,154) (715,397)
3,244,144 7,650,000 (86,097) 10,808,047
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Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Adjustments from General Fund to
arrive at the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement Amounts

2020/21

Adjustments

for Capital
Purposes

Net Change
for the
Pension
Adjustments

Other
Statutory

Adjustments

Back to Agenda

£

£

£

£

Community & Wellbeing HQ

18,380

1,028

19,408

Environmental Health

2,897

222,222

12,874

237,993

Com_m_qn_it)_f & Cuttur_e_
Parks and Cemeteries

53,410
1,294,218

157,245
320,026

(7,642)
18,005

203,013
1,632,249

Leisure
Environment HQ

4,342,826 |

356,744

18,404 |

11,681

1,193 |

4,711,251
19,597

Waste and Cleansing Services

847,018

779,927

95,790

1,722,735

Assets and Property Services

2,295,942

195,257

7,096

2,498,295

Regulatory Services

305,832

196,765

23,456

526,053

Reg_en, Dev & Plannin_g_ HQ_
Regeneration

150,753 |

18,381 |

81,154

3,184 |

8,921

21,565
240,828

Economic Dev

1,145,246

72,625

(1,778)

1,216,093

Planning

45,172

23,278

68,450

Tourism

21,047

106,672

4,839

132,558

Finance & Performance HQ
Internal Audit

14,033

623

14,656

Finance

100,015

16,923

116,838

Strategic Transformation & Performance

(93,665)

70,600

4,285

(18,780)

Strategic Capital Development

27,356

855

28,211

OD & Admin HQ
HR & OD

16,297
89,270

(1,459)
2,705

14,838
91,975

 Administration & Customer Services
Chief Executive

296,266

30,021 |

1,128

1,419 |

Sioeain
31,440

Community Planning

13,514

(2,197)

11,317

Corporate Communications

5,052

44,422

(383)

49,991

Capital Financing

(5,415,492)

(5,415,492)

Year End Transactions

118,785

(77,744)

41,041

REFCUS

1,321,514

1,321,514

225,624

3,213,024 |

 Net Cost of Services 6,472,239 | 9,911,087

Other Income and Expenditure from the

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (4,205,614)

1,023,000 (3,182,614)

Difference between General Fund
surplus or deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

2,266,625 4,236,024 225,824 6,728,473
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Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments to General Fund Balances to meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting

practices, this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the
services line and for:

i) Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on
disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets;

ii) Financing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing
i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from financing
and investment income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally
accepted accounting practices; and

iii) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure — Capital grants are adjusted for
income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are
adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which
conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions
or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Net Change for the Pension Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits
pension related expenditure and income:

* For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the
authority as permitted by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past
service costs;

+ For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit
liability is charged to the CIES.

Other Statutory Differences

Other statutory adjustments for services represent the accrual of absences earned but not taken in
the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March 2022 along with TOIL and flexi
balances; along with the reversal of the same accrual from the previous year end.

There were no other differences between amounts debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable or receivable to be recognised under statute.
Other Non-Statutory Adjustments

Other non-statutory adjustments represent amounts debited/credited to service segments which need
to be adjusted against the 'Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis'

line to comply with the presentational requirements in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
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2c)

Segmental Income and Expenditure
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3 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Expenditure is analysed as follows:

Employee Benefits Expenses

Other Services Expenditure
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment
Interest Payments

Other Expenditure

Total Expenditure

Income is analysed as follows:

Fees, Charges and other service Income
Interest and Investment Income

District rate income

Government grants and Contributions
Other Income

Total Income

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Note

Note

10e

10al/c/d

2021/22

£

28,272,376
35,905,967
8,892,239
3,973,376
260,583

77,304,541

2021/22

E
(10,147,506)

(130,437)

(54,421,618)

(5,370,803)

(70,070,364)

7,234,177

Back to Agenda

2020/21

£

28,058,787
28,648,433
10,754,679
3,929,338
118,785 |

71,510,022

2020/21

£
(7,504,120)

(127,959)
(52,815,474)

(15,305,934)

(75,753,487)

(4,243,465)

In the Narrative Report on Page 12 a table details the COVID-19 funding specifically received from
Government Departments in 2021/22. All of this has been reflected in the Taxation and Non-Specific

Grant Income.
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Back to Agenda

4 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

4a) Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but
required by statute to be excluded when determining the Movement on the General Fund

Balance for the year:

Impairments (losses & reversals) of non-current assets

Revaluation (increases)/decreases  taken to
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Depreciation charged in the year on non-current assets

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under
statute

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property
and intangible assets

Net charges made for retirement benefits in

accordance with IAS19
Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure

Capital Grants and Donated Assets Receivable and
Applied in year

Capital & Revenue Grants Receivable and Unapplied
in year

Adjustments in relation to short-term compensated
absences

Statutory provision for the financing of Capital
Investment

Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC and
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners

Total Adjustments

Notes

12a/

12al

12al

26a

26a

22b
13
10

27bl
27c

28d

13

22b

2021/22
£

(964,648)

9,856,887

8,892,239

1,458,209
2,155,742

(1,850,159)

1,763,792

11,803,000
(168,839)

(455,971)
(1,488,427)

(63,943)
(5,320,804)

(4,153,000)

2020/21
£

798,188

9,956,491

10,754,679

1,321,514
138,785
(20,000)

1,440,299

8,675,000

(468,790)

(1,778,081)

(2,427,533)
225,824

(5,253,949)

(4,438,976)

152,016 (5,466,505)

[—
10,808,047 6,728,473
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4b)  Net transfers (to)/from Reserves:

2021/22 2020/21

Repairs and Renewal Fund
Interest -
Other -

Other Funds and Earmarked Fund
Interest 9b (7,836) (1,488)

From Other funds -
Other (2,605,876) (9,458,565)

27d (2,613,712)
E———

(2,613,712) 9,460,053
jim

5. The Cost of Services on continuing Operations
5a) General Power of Competence

Prior to Local Government Reform on 1% April 2015, expenditure for special purposes was
limited under Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. This
section was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, the Council has the
power to do anything that individuals generally may do. Councils have the power to do this
without charge. The power of competence is not limited to benefiting the area or its residents
nor is it limited by existing powers. The actual expenditure incurred during 2021/22 amounted
to £Nil (2020/21: £Nil).

5b) External Audit Fees
The Council has incurred the following costs relating to the annual audit of the Statement of

Accounts, Performance Improvement Audit and other services provided by the Council's
external auditors.

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Statement of Accounts Audit 49,000 48,000
Performance Improvement Audit 19,000 4,750

Under/(Over) accrual in previous years 9,850 (14,225)
National Fraud Initiative - 1,298

—

There were no other fees payable in respect of any other services provided by the appointed
auditor over and above those described above.
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6. Operating and Finance Leases

Council as a Lessor

6a) Finance Leases (Council as a lessor)

The Council has a number of properties that are leased on a finance lease with terms ranging
from 99 to 10,000 years. As these are long leases they have been treated as disposals for
accounting purposes in the year of granting the lease. Any ground rent collected has been
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and any residual
values are considered immaterial.

6b) Operating Leases (Council as a lessor)

The Council, in accordance with its statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out
property under operating leases for the following purposes:

« for the provision of community services, advice services and meeting places for clubs and
societies;

« for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for
small local businesses; and

« for income generation.

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
current year amounts to £361,882 (2020/21: £382,822). No contingent rents were recognised.

The lease terms are between 1 and 95 years. Future minimum lease income is set out below:

2021J22 2020/21
£ £

Minimum lease rentals receivable:
No later than 1 year 275,240 291,813

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 246,756 427,675
Later than 5 years 1,485,265 1,540,575

All the assets leased out by the Council to third parties are Land & Buildings with carrying

values of:
2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Cost 9,114,711 9,466,494
i\i::r?l"aulated depreciation and impairments at 610,176 614,520
Depreciation charge for the year (610,176) (614,520)
Impairments/Revaluations 6,168,028 5,857,967

15,282,739 15,324,461
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Council as a Lessee

6c) Finance Leases (Council as a lessee)

The Council has no finance leases where the Council is a lessee.

6d) Operating Leases (Council as a lessee)

The Council has acquired vehicles and safety cameras by entering into operating leases with
typical lives of 5 years for the vehicles. The Council also leases land on which some of its
waste management facilities are situated (these leases are for a period of 125 years but with
an option to break at the end of 30 years) and foreshore on which it has constructed a marina.
The Council leases other land with lease periods varying between 3 years and 35 years.

The expenditure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement during the year in relation to these leases was:

2021/22 2020/21
Land & Vehicles, Land & Vehicles,
Buildings Plant & Buildings Plant &
Equipment Equipment
£ £ £ £
Minimum lease payments 316,991 18,235 PN 20,550
Contingent rentals - - - -

Sub- lease payments receivable (92,200) - (98,836) -

224,791 18,235 i ravd:a 20,550

The future minimum lease payments due under operating leases in future years are set out

below:
2021/22 2020/21
Land & Vehicles, Land & Vehicles,
Buildings Plant & Buildings Plant &
Equipment Equipment
Minimum lease rentals payable: £ £ £ £
No later than 1 year 316,791 - 288,772 1,466
Later than 1 year and no later than 1,249,386 N 1141317
5 years
Later than 5 years 5,940,818 B 5,531,688

7,506,995 3 6,961,777
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7. Employee Costs and Members’ Allowances

7a) Employee Costs

Salaries and Wages
Employer National Insurance
Employer Pension costs
Apprenticeship Levy

2021/22
£

21,888,881
2,007,304
4,282,028

94,163

28,272,376

Back to Agenda

2020/21
£

21,834,599
1,904,254

4,226,571
93,363
28,058,787

The agency costs incurred during the 2021/22 year amounted to £2,013,501 (2020/21

£1,427,058).

The Council's contribution rate to the NILGOSC scheme in 2021/22 is 19.5%. The Council’'s
contribution rate for 2022/23 is 19.5%. At the last actuarial valuation, dated 31 March 2019, the
Fund's assets were £8,039.9M and the past service liabilities £7,203.0M, carresponding to a

surplus of £836.9M and a funding level of 112% (2016: 96%).

7b) Average Number of Employees

The average number of full-time equivalent (FTE) employees and the actual number of
employees employed hy the Council, at 31 March, are set out below.

Community & Wellbeing HQ
Environmental Health
Community & Culture

Leisure

Parks & Cemeteries
Environment HQ

Waste and Cleansing Services
Assets and Property Services
Regulatory Services

Regen, Dev & Planning HQ
Regeneration

Economic Dev

Planning

Tourism

Finance & Performance HQ
Finance

Performance & Projects
Strategic Capital Development
OD & Admin HQ

HR & OD

Administration & Customer Services
Chief Executive

Community Planning
Corporate Communications

2021/22
FTE

2.75
45.16
33.00
104.78
77.59
4.08
212.43
50.00
42.00
2.25
11.75
13.39
42.39
22.57
2.75
18.94
1175
4.80
2.50
15.44
42.70
3.00
3.00

2020/21
FTE

2.10
40.78
32.72
107.08
83.16
2.00
214.69
50.75
40.08
2.00
12.00
15.23
42.31
22.95
1.00
20.69
1S
1.95
16.57
42.47
3.25
2.00

8.44

a1
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Actual Numbers BEOEIR NS

Full-time numbers employed 648
Part-time numbers employed 191
839

7c) Senior Employees’ Remuneration

2021j22 2020/21
Number Number
£80,001 to £90,000 5
£90,001 to £100,000 -

£100,001 to £110,000 -
£110,001 to £120,000 -
£120,001 to £130,000 1

7d) Members’ Allowances
During the year Members' allowances, including Employer’s costs, totalled £1,003,867. The
breakdown is as follows:

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Basic Allowance 599,933 602,678
Mayor's & Deputy Mayor’'s Allowance 22,294 22,284
Special Responsibility Allowances 27,950 27,409
Dependents’ Carers Allowances - -
Employer’s Costs 341,380 264,463
Mileage 2,527 1,661
Conferences & Courses - -
Travel & Subsistence Costs 1,814 124
Miscellaneous 7,969 6,099

1,003,867 924,718

7e) Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements
As a result of Reform of Local Government on 1 April 2015, 36 staff transferred from Central
Government to the Council. These employees are members of the Northern Ireland Civil
(NICS) Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangement is an unfunded multi-employer
defined benefit scheme, but the Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities. As a result of these arrangements the scheme is accounted for as a defined
contribution scheme in line with the Code. The most up to date actuarial valuation was carried
out as at 31 March 2016. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated
to reflect current conditions and rolled forward to the reporting date of the Department of
Finance Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2022.

For 2021/22, employers’ contributions of £384,858 were payable to the NICS pension

arrangements at one of three rates 28.7% (up to £28,599); 30.7% (£28,600 to £57,499) and

34.2% (£57,500 and over) of pensionable pay, based on salary bands. The scheme’s Acﬂﬁ
92



Back to Agenda

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

reviews employer contributions every four years following a full scheme valuation. A new
scheme funding valuation based on data as at 31 March 2016 was finalised by the Actuary
during 2019-20. This valuation was used to determine employer contribution rates for the
introduction of a new career average earning scheme from April 2015. The contribution rates
are set to meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2021/22 to be paid when the member
retires, and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners.

No persons retired early on ill-health grounds and therefore no additional accrued pension
liabilities were incurred during the year.

8. Other Operating Income & Expenditure

Surplus or Deficit on Non-Current Assets 2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Proceeds from Sale (1,850,159) (20,000)
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 2,110,742 138,785

Total 260,583 118,785

The surplus on non-current assets represents a gain on the disposal of those assets.

9. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
9a Interest Payable and Similar Charges

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Government Loan Interest 2,315,939 2,486,545
Commercial Loan Interest 363,480 398,245

Loan Interest 2,679,419 2,884,790

9b Interest and Investment Income

2021722 2020/21
£ £

Bank Interest (8,188) (9,166)
Employee Car Loan Interest (280) (697)
MNorthern Ireland Housing Executive Loan interest

et 9 (37,603) (40,922)
Investment income on fund balances

Earmarked Fund (7,836) (1,488)
Other investment Income & Expenditure 7,836 1,488

wsomy
[
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9¢ Pensions Interest Cost

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1,229,000 1,023,000

9d Income, Expenditure and changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Income (including rental income) (76,531) (75,686)

Expenditure 622 3,060
Net Income from investment properties (75,909) (72,626)

Proceeds from sale -

Carrying amount of investment properties transferred 45,000 =

(Surplus)/Deficit on sale of investment properties 45,000
Change in fair value of investment properties 11,500

Total (19,409)
]

The net cost of financing and investing activities is due to the net effect of revaluations carried
out on all investment properties in 2021/22. During this review, it was identified that the Council’s
interest in some investment property assets had been transferred to other parties under the terms
of a long lease, with the Council only receiving a nominal rental value. These assets, with a
carrying amount of £45,000, have been transferred out of the Council's asset register. See notes
12a and 12b for further details.

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 2021/22 2020/21
£ £

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,679,419 2,884,790
Interest and Investment Income (46,071) (50,785)
Pensions Interest Cost 1,229,000 1,023,000
(Surplus) / deficit on trading operations - -
Other Investment Income (30,909) (72,626)
Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties 11,500 17,000
Total 3,842,939

10. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

10a Revenue Grants

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
General (1,871,999) (1,797,344)
Other — COVID-19 Funding (1,576,561) 9,181,778

(3,448,560) 10,979,122
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10b Revenue Grants - Unapplied

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Government & Other Grants - Conditions met and 301,460 279,305

not applied in year

10c Capital Grants and Donated Assets - Applied
2021/22 2020/21
£ E

Government & Other Grants - Conditions met and

applied in year (455,971) (1,778,081)

The taxation and non-specific grant income includes the recognition of capital grants in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as required by the Code when the
conditions attached to those grants have been satisfied.

10d Capital Grants - Unapplied

2021122 2020/21
£ £
Government & Other Grants - Conditions met and (1,466,272) (2,548,731)

not applied in year

10e District Rates

2021/22 2020/21
£ £

Current year (53,147,653) (51,972,826)

Finalisation (1,273,965) (842,648)

Totals (54,421,618) (52,815,474)

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 2021/22 2020/21

£ £
District Rate Income (54,421,618) (52,815,474)
Revenue Grants (3,448,560) (10,979,122)

Capital Grants and Contributions (1,922,243) ;
(59,792,421) (68,121,408)

11 Acquired and Discontinued - Operations

The Council has not acquired or discontinued any material operations.
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Fixed Assets
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12c) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are made up of three different classes of asset:
* market trading rights which, due to their indefinite life, are not amortised,;
« public path creation agreements; and

+ computer software which is depreciated over a useful life of 4 years.

The net book value of each class of intangible asset at 31 March is:

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Market Trading Rights 100,000 225,000

Public Path Creation Agreements 7 7
Computer Software 113,836 139,363

213,843 364,370
=

12d) Investment Properties
There were no additions to investment properties in year.
2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Rental Income from Investment Activities 76,531 75,686

Direct Operating expenses (622) (3,060)
Net gainl/(loss) 75,909 72,626

12e) Heritage Assets

Artefacts Paintings Historical Other Total
& Furniture Heritage
Drawings Assets
£ £ £ £ £

Cost or Valuation:

At 1 April 2021 669,450 1,286,750 40,000 507,425 2,503,625
Additions/(Disposals) - - - 35,908 35,908
Derecognitions - - - - -
Transfers - - - - -
Revaluations to Revaluation Reserve - - - - -
Revaluations to Surplus/Deficit on the ) i i ) i
Provision of Services

At 31 March 2022 669,450 1,286,750 40,000 543,333 2,539,533

The Council's heritage assets are reported in the Balance Sheet at their most up to date
insurance valuation, which is based on valuations carried out by independent experts. The
last valuation was carried out during the financial year 2019/20. See note 1xxi for further
details on the Council's policy for heritage assets.
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12f) Assets held for Sale

Assets Held for Total
Sale Current
£ £

Cost or Valuation:

At 1 April 2021 1,800,000 1,800,000
Transferred from Non-Current Assets 100,000 100,000
Disposals (1,800,000) (1,800,000)
At 31 March 2022 100,000 100,000
Net Book Value at 31 March 2022 100,000 100,000

Net Book Value at 31 March 2021 1,800,000 1,800,000

During the year, Council disposed of the land at the former Ards Leisure Centre site in
Newtownards under a Vesting Order made by the Department for Infrastructure — Roads. The
gain/loss on assets classified to held for sale and sold during the year was £nil.

As at 31 March 2022, one asset was identified as meeting the criteria for an asset held for
sale. The disposal of this asset, land at Belfast Road in Holywood, completed at the beginning
of the 2022/23 financial year.

12h) Valuations

Valuations of Land and Buildings are carried out externally by Land and Property Services
(LPS), in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applied to the
UK public sector and interpreted by the CIPFA Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting,
International Valuation Standards and the requirements of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Global Standards 2022. For the asset revaluations carried out this year, no
special assumptions were made. Please refer to Note 1xx for further information on revaluation
and depreciation policies.

The revaluation results for land and buildings, including an analysis of the revaluations amounts
taken to the Revaluation Reserve and the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, are
detailed in note 12a.

12i) Impairments

Council carried out an impairment review during the year and identified impairment losses of
£455k relating solely to one asset. The Bangor Aurora Aquatic and Leisure Complex suffered
significant damage to a section of the roof and rooflights following a storm in November 2021.
As at 31 March 2022, significant refurbishment works remained outstanding to bring this section
of the asset back into a useable condition.



Back to Agenda

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

13. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The Capital Financing Requirement measures the Council's underlying need to borrow for a
capital purpose. The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the
table below (including the value of assets acquired under leases and PFI contracts), together
with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be
financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of
the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that is yet to be financed. The CFR
is analysed in the second part of this note.

Notes 2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 82,426,245 86,406,472
Capital Expenditure:
Property, Plant & Equipment 12a &b 3,334,877 4,406,456
Intangible Assets 12a &b 79,432 201,548
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital
Under Statute (REFCUS) 28a 1,458,209 1,321,514
Sources of Finance:
Capital receipts 27a (142,620) (456,857)
10c/
Capital Grants & Other Contributions 27b (2,162,042) (3,730,149)
Transfers from Earmarked Fund 28a -
Sums sets aside from Revenue:
Direct Revenue Contributions 4,27 (168,839) (468,790)
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 28a (5,320,804) (5,253,949)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 79,504,458
2021/22 2020/21
Explanation of Movements in Year £ £
Increase / (decrease) in underlying need to
borrow (2,921,787) (3,980,227)

Assets acquired under leases
Assets acquired under PFI/PPP contracts - -

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing
Requirement (2,921,787) 3,980,227

14. Future Capital Commitments

The Council has an ongoing programme of capital works and the estimated cost of the capital
schemes which the Council is undertaking, is as follows:

Gross Cost Grant Aid Net Cost

£ £ £
Schemes underway 170,308 - 170,308
Other commitments 648,118 - 648,118
Total 818,426 - 818,426
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15. Inventories

The stock of goods held at 31 March was:

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Waste Transfer Station, Bangor - Fuel 30,850 33,368
North Road Depot, Newtownards - Fuel 32,725 21,372
North Road Depot, Newtownards — Stores 113,939 76,864
North Road Depot, Newtownards — Vehicle Parts 74,417 126,656
North Down Museum & Tourist Information Shops 7,750 8,062
Bangor Visitor Information Centre 3,883 6,234
Groomsport Visitor Information Centre 197 1,528
Newtownards Visitor Information Centre 8,295 7,878
Portaferry Visitor Information Centre - 1,436
Total 272,056 283,398
——
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in services at 31 March 2022 amounted to
£1,414,595.
16. Debtors
2021/22 2020/21

£ £
16a) Long-Term Debtors

Employee car loans - 3,885
NIHE loans * 539,642 605,942
Total Long-Term Debtors 539,642
16b) Short-Term Debtors
Government Departments 3,359,104 1,053,946
Other Councils 126,533 118,558
Bodies External to General Government - -
NIHE loans * 66,300 62,547
Employee car loans 1,938 4,024
Revenue Grants 1,253,472 1,342,677
Capital Grants 556,918 2,135,321
Value Added Tax 974,102 712,512
Prepayments 604,702 553,280
Other 145,336 220,716
Trade receivables 416,463 393,922
Impairment loss - Trade receivables (79,568) 153,818

Government Departments

Total Short-Term Debtors

Total Debtors

7,425,300 6,443,685

7,964,942

7,053,512

1 This debtor relates to the Northern Ireland Housing Executive (NIHE) debt brought about by the
local government re-organisation in 1972 with establishment of the NIHE. However, the loans relating
to the assets transferred to the NIHE remain with the Council whilst interest and principal are received
annually from NIHE.
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17. Investments

17a) Long-Term Investments (more than 12 months)
There were no long-term investments in the reporting period.

17b)  Short-Term Investments (more than 3 months)
There were no short-term investments in the reporting period.
The Council also administers deposits held on behalf of third parties, namely the Ards and North
Down Mavyor's Charity Appeals, the Holywood District Nursing Society and the Blair Mayne
Bursary. The total balances held as at the 31 March 2022 amount to £11,633.

18. Borrowings

18a) Short-Term Borrowing

202122 2020/21
£ £
Loans re-payable within one year 3,135,428 6,170,269
Finance Lease Principal - -

Total Short-Term Borrowing 3,135,428 6,170,269

18b) Long-Term Borrowing

202122 2020/21
£ £
Between 1 and 2 years 4,073,849 3,135,428
Between 2 and 5 years 9,453,118 10,441,772

Between 5 and 10 years 15,330,647 15,986,188

In more than 10 years 34,866,933 37,296,584
Total Long-Term Borrowing 63,724,547 66,859,972
Total Borrowing 66,859,975 73,030,241

18c) Total Borrowing by Type

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Annuity Repayment 25,427,179 27,574,441
Equal Instalments of Principle Borrowings 25,747,124 26,770,128

Maturity Repayment 15,685,672 18,685,672
Total Borrowing 66,859,975 73,030,241

Interest rates on Government Loans range between 2.24% and 9.875%. The average interest
rate on all long-term barrowings is 3.9%.

102 p |



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

19. Creditors
19a) Short-Term Creditors

Government Departments

Other Councils

Public Corporations and Trading Funds
Bodies External to General Government
Remuneration due to employees
Accumulated Absences

Loan Interest Payable

Capital Creditors

Receipts in advance

Trade creditors

Other

Total Short Term Creditors

19b) Long-Term Creditors
Total Long-Term Creditors
Total Creditors

19c) Payment of Invoices

2021/22
£
765,664
68,987
105,222
20,995
164,568
694,824
118,194
336,844
877,609
2,554,163

5,707,070 7,300,996

2021/22
£

Back to Agenda

2020/21
£
1,432,636
316,338
105,222

17,383
98,235
758,767
118,548
1,059,515
767,924
2,626,428

2020/21
£

5,707,070 7,300,996

The Council has a target of paying supplier invoices within 30 calendar days. During the year

the Council paid 16,155 invoices totalling £46,176,600.
Invoices Paid
Within 30 calendar days
Within 10 working days
Outside the 30-day target

Average days to pay
Median days to pay

2021J22
No. %
15,826 98%
13,649 84%
329 2%
13.31
12

2020/21
%
96%
80%

4%

14.25
14
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20. Provisions

104

Current Year:

Insurance
Environmental
Legal

Other

Current Provisions
Long Term Provisions

Comparative Year:

Insurance
Environmental

Legal
Other

Current Provisions
Long Term Provisions

Insurance Provision

Back to Agenda

At 1 April ';‘r’;ﬁ‘l‘:ﬁ,;‘“ Utiised  Unused 3%
2021 during year during year Reversals 2022
£ £ £ £ £
333288 296,179  (168,871)  (36,696) 423,900
95,005 : - . 95,005
30,440 : : 30,440
681,100 : : : 681,100
1,139,833 296,179  (168,871)  (36,696) 1,230,445
776,105 i . i 776,105
363728 296,179  (168,871)  (36,696) 454,340
1,139,833 296,179  (168,871)  (36,696) 1,230,445

At 1 April
2020

£
351,853
95,005
30,440
635,600
1,112,898

730,605
382,293
1,112,898

Increase in
provision
during year
£

114,792

45,500
160,292

45,500
114,792
160,292

Utilised
during year

£
(122,556)

(122,556)

(122,556)
)

Unused
Reversals

£
(10,801)

(10,801)

(10,801)
(10,801)

At 31
March
2021
£
333,288
95,005
30,440

681,100
1,139,833

776,105
363,728
1,139,833

The Council operates a self-insurance scheme for public and employee liability insurance and
has a number of claims which require to be settled. A provision at 31 March 2022 has been

made on the basis of Council's experience of settlement rates over recent years.

Environmental Provision

This provision relates to the need for remedial works to be undertaken to address environmental
damage at two properties in the Council area. One relates to consultants’ fees associated with
the required, settled and contracted remedial work whilst the other is remediation work agreed
as part of the settlement to militate against future run-off of storm water from Council land into

a third party’s site.

Legal Provision

This provision relates to legal fees in relation to ongoing legal cases and potential contractual

obligations.
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Other

Court judgments have established the law as requiring employees to receive
acknowledgement of overtime payments as part of their holiday pay entitlement
calculations, which the Council acknowledges. The Northern Ireland Court of Appeal turned
down an appeal by the Police Service of Northern Ireland (PSNI) regarding the potential
liability arising to that organisation in this regard. This decision was appealed to the
Supreme Court. The Council has a signed agreement with the recognised trade unions,
however individual employees will also be required to sign compromise agreements before
receiving their payment.

However, as a consequence of a mediation process entered into between NIPSA and the
PSNI in relation to Agnew, NIPSA is no longer in a position, at this point, to enter into any
agreement which compromises the full extent of the law as determined by the Northern
Ireland Court of Appeal in Agnew. NIPSA's current position is therefore to pause any
current negotiations. The matter remains as a standing item on the Joint Forum agenda.

21. Financial Instruments

The Council has no material exposure to any of the risk types identified below in its dealings
with financial instruments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to the Council's customers. Authorised institutions for investments under the Council's
Treasury Policy are assessed for financial strength and risk exposure. The provision for bad
and doubtful debts reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non-payment by debtors and
as such, there is no additional estimated exposure to default and inability to collect.

Liquidity Risk

The Council's net operating costs are funded through district rates and government grants.
Capital expenditure is largely financed by borrowing from the Government Loans Fund. The
Council is not therefore exposed to significant liquidity risk. The analysis of financial liabilities

is included in notes 18 and 19. All trade and other payables are due for payment within one
year.

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

The Council finances capital expenditure in the longer term through fixed rate borrowings in line
its Treasury Management Strategy Statement and its Medium-Term Financial Plan. The Council
takes out short-term loans to benefit from the very low interest rates available. This strategy is
carried out with advice from the Council's treasury advisors and reviewed at the end of every
term to minimise risk. In addition, Council has a limit of 30% of borrowing to be short-term in
nature.
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Foreign Exchange Risk
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The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus
has no material exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

Employee Car Loans

The Council makes loans for car purchases to employees in the Council who are in posts that
require them to drive regularly on the Council's business. Currently there are 5 employees who

have loans which are reflected in Note 16.

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets as at 31 March 2022
Non-Current
Investments Debtors
£ £

Fair Value through
profit or loss

Amortised cost -

Fair Value through
other comprehensive
income - designated
equity instruments
Fair Value through
other comprehensive -
income - other

Current
Investments Debtors
£ £

9,000,000 416,463

Total

9,416,463

Total Financial
Assets
MNon-Financial Assets -

9,000,000 416,463

9,416,463

Total -

9,000,000 416,463

9,416,463

Financial Assets as at 31 March 2021
Non-Current

Investments Debtors
E £

Fair Value through
profit or loss

Amortised cost

Fair Value through
other comprehensive
income - designated
equity instruments
Fair Value through

other comprehensive
income - other

Total Financial
Assets
Non-Financial Assets
Total

Current
Investments Debtors
£ £

9,000,000

9,000,000 393,922

9,000,000 393,922

9,393,922

9,393,922

9,393,922
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Financial Liabilities as at 31 March 2022
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Non-Current Current Total
Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors
£ £ £ £ £
Fair Value through i ) i A
profit or loss
Amortised cost 63,724,547 - 3,135,428 2,629,427 69,489,402
Total financial 63,724,547 " 3,135,428 2,629,427 69,489,402
liabilities
Non-financial i ) ) )
liabilities
Total 63,724,547 - 3,135,428 2,629,427 69,489,402

Financial Liabilities as at 31 March 2021

Fair Value through
profit or loss
Amaortised cost
Total financial
liabilities
MNon-financial
hiabilities

Borrowings

Non-Current
Creditors
£ £

66,859,972
66,859,972

66,859,972

Current

Borrowings
£

6,170,269

6,170,269

- 6,170,269

Creditors
£

2,626,428

2,626,428

2,626,428

75,656,669
75,656,669

75,656,669

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not Measured at Fair
Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are Required).

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value (described in the table above) all other
financial liabilities and financial assets held by the authority are classified as loans and
receivables and long-term debtors and creditors and are carried in the Balance Sheet at
amortised cost. The fair values calculated are as follows.

31 March 2021

Carrying
amount

£

73,030,241

31 March 2022
. . Carrying
Financial Assets / 3
Liabilities amount Fair value
£ £
Financial liabilities
held at amortised 66,859,975 73,230,483
cost
Financial assets
held at amortised 9,000,000 8,999,596

cost

9,000,000 9,000,312

Fair value

£

87,451,579
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22. Retirement Benefits
22a) Participation in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its employees, the Council offers
retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire,
the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund
administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation Committee
(commonly known as NILGOSC). This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's
liabilities with investment assets.

22b) Transactions relating to Retirement Benefits — Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing
Operations when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually
paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Council is required to make against District rates is based on the cash
payable in the year, and the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the adjustments
between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under
regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year:

2021/22 2020/21
Net cost of services: £ £
Current service cost 10,565,000 7,652,000
Past service cost/(gain) 9,000 -

(Gains)/Losses on settlements and curtailments - -
Net operating expenditure:
Net Interest on the net defined liability (asset) 1,229,000 1,023,000

Total Post-Employment Benefits charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

11,803,000 8,675,000

Movement in Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made for retirement
benefits in accordance with IAS 19 and the Code
Actual amount charged against the general
fund balance for pensions in the year:

Employers' contributions payable to scheme 4,153,000 4,438,976

(11,803,000) EEEFENNN)

Net Adjustment to the General Fund (7,650,000) (4,236,024)

The service cost figures include an allowance for administration expenses of £0.104m or 0.98%
of current service cost.
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22c)

Re-measurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Liability gains/(losses) due to change in assumptions

Actuarial gains/(losses) due to changes in demographic
assumptions

Liability experience gains/(losses) arising in the year
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on plan assets

Other

Total Gainsl/(Losses) recognised in
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Other

Assets and Liabilities in relation to Retirement Benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme
liabilities:

Balance as at 1 April

Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by members

Re-measurement (gains) and losses:
Actuarial gains/losses arising on liabilities from changes
in financial assumptions

Actuarial gains/losses arising from demographic
changes

Actuarial gains/losses arising on liabilities from
experience

Other

Past Service Costs / (gains)
Losses/(gains) on curtailments
Liabilities extinguished on settlements
Estimated unfunded benefits paid
Estimated benefits paid

Balance as at 31 March

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme
assets:

Balance as at 1 April

Interest Income

Contributions by members

Contributions by employer

Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits
Re-measurement gains/(losses)

Assets distributed on settlements

Unfunded benefits paid

Benefits paid

Balance as at 31 March

2021/22
£

16,186,000
2,315,000

(525,000)
3,367,000

21,343,000

2021/22
£
234,223,000
10,565,000
4,889,000
1,320,000

(16,186,000)
(2,315,000)

525,000

9,000

(73,000)
(4,181,000)

228,776,000

2021/22
£
173,609,000
3,660,000
1,320,000
4,080,000
73,000
3,367,000

(73,000
(4,181,000)

Back to Agenda

2020/21
£

(41,874,000)

1,647,000
30,759,000

(9,468,000)

2020/21
£
184,474,170
7,652,000
4,223,000
1,314,000

41,874,000

(1.647,000)

(75,000)
(3,592,170)

234,223,000
[

2020/21
£
137,564,194
3,200,000
1,314,000

4,363,976
75,000
30,759,000

(75,000)
(3,592,170)
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The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest
investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected
returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective
markets. The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £7,027,000 (2020/21
gain of £33,959,000).

Fair Value of Plan Assets: 2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Equity investments 73,833,130 80,380,967
Bonds 47,100,445 61,978,413
Property 19,822,195 EENERAH-AN]
Cash 11,275,010 9,201,277
Other 29,824,220 6,597,142

181,855,000 iR vi-Rilv])

The above asset values are at bid value as required by IAS 19. The bid values were provided by
NILGOSC, the administering authority. The amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for
property occupied by the Council was £nil.

The Council's share of the Net Pension Liability (included

in the Balance Sheet): 2021/22 2020/21
£ £

Fair Value of Employer Assets 181,855,000 [irgcHc{elcRelelo
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (227,886,000) eckhaieRolole)]
Pension asset/(liability) of Funded Scheme (46,031,000) m(EENxleKel0[e)
Present Value of Unfunded defined benefit obligation (890,000) (1,004,000)
Net' A:"?setl(Llablllty) arising from the defined benefit (46,921,000) (60,614,000)
obligation
Amount in the Balance sheet:
Liabilities (228,776,000) QeEiBrkRie))
Assets 181,855,000 |ygeN{oicKeley
Net Asset/(Liability) (46,921,000)

=

22d) Scheme History

Analysis of scheme assets and liabilities 2021/22 2020/21
£ £

Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme 181,855,000 173,609,000

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (228,776,000) 234,223,000
Surplusli(deficit) in the Scheme (46,921,000) 60,614,000
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Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and 2021/22 2020/21
Expenditure: £ £

Actuarial gains/(losses) 17,976,000 (40,227,000)

Expected Return on Plan Assets 3,367,000 30,759.000

Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 21,343,000 (5:468,000)

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses 4,821,000 (16,522,000)

History of experience gains and losses: 1]
Experience gains and (losses) on assets 3,367,000 30,759,000
Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities (525,000) 1,647,000

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay
retirement benefits. The total liability of £228,776,000 has a substantial impact on the net worth
of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a net liability of £46,921,000.

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the
Council remains healthy. The deficit on the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension
Fund will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees,
assessed by the scheme actuary.

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for the year to 31 March 2023:

31/03/2023 31/03/2023

£ % of pay
Projected current cost 9,888,000 45.3
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 1,209,000 5.5
11,097,000 50.8

Allowance for administration expenses included in Current Service Cost £109,000 and estimated
pensionable payroll over the period £21,814,000.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'
Pension Fund by the Council in the year to 31 March 2023 is £4,254,000.

History of experience gains and losses

The actuarial gains/losses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2021/22 can be

analysed into the following categories, measure as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31
March 2022.

2021/22 2020/21
% %
Experience Gains and (losses) on Assets 1.85
Experience gains and (losses) on Liabilities 0.23
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22¢) Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in the future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Council's Fund liabilities have been assessed by Aon
Hewitt Ltd, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being based on data
pertaining to the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2019.

Mortality assumptions: 2021/22 2020/21
Longevity at 65 current pensioners:  Men 21.8 years 21.9 years
Women 25.0 years 25.1 years
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners: Men 23.2 years 23.3 years
Women 26.4 years 26.5 years
Inflation/Pension Increase Rate 3.00% 2.70%
Salary Increase Rate 4.50% 4.20%
Discount Rate 2.70% 2.10%

Pension Accounts Revaluation Rate 3.00% 2.70%

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into
retirement lump sum:

Service to April 2009 75%
Service post April 2009 75%

Pension Assumptions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions
used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined
benefit obligation as at 31 March 2022 is set out below.

In each case, only the assumption noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the same
and are summarised in the disclosure above.

Discount Rate Assumption

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of the total obligation (EMs) £223.556 £232.216
% change in the present value of the total obligation -1.90% 1.90%
Projected service cost (EMs) £9.562 £10.224
Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.30% 3.40%
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Rate of General Increase in Salaries

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of the total obligation (EMs) £228.798 £226.974
% change in the present value of the total obligation 0.40% -0.40%
Projected service cost (EMs) £9.888 £9.888
Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.00% 0.00%

Rate of Increase to Pensions in Payment, Deferred Pensions Increase Assumption and
rate of Revaluation of Pension Accounts Assumption

Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of the total obligation (EMs) £231.304 £224.468
% change in the present value of the total obligation 1.50% -1.50%
Projected service cost (EMs) £10.224 £9.562
Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.40% -3.30%

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption

Adjustment to the mortality age rating assumption * -1 Year +1 Year
Present value of the total obligation (EMs) £235.862 £219.910
% change in the present value of the total obligation 3.50% -3.50%
Projected service cost (EMs) £10.284 £9.502
Approximate % change in projected service cost 4.0% -3.90%

* A rating of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the
base table above for an individual that is 1 year older than them.

22f) Major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund's assets consist of the following
categories, by proportion of the total assets held:

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Equity investments 40.60% 46.30%
Bonds 25.90% 35.70%
Property 10.90% 8.90%
Cash 6.20% 5.30%

Other 16.40% 3.80%

100.00% 100.00%

22g) Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangement is an unfunded multi-employer
defined benefit schemes but the Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities and therefore has accounted for this scheme as a defined contribution scheme.
The most up to date actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2016. This valuation
is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolled
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forward to the reporting date of the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource
Accounts as at 31 March 2022.

23 Donated Assets Account

The Council does not have any donated assets for which conditions have not been met.

24 Capital Grants Received in Advance
There were no capital grants received in advance during 2021/22.
25 Contingencies

In accordance with the Code (and IAS 37), Councils should disclose by way of note if there is
a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the authority, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because:

a) itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation, or
b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

25a) Self-Insurance Scheme
The Council operates a self-insurance scheme for public and employee liability insurance. As
at 31 March 2022, claims with a total value of £1,022,610 had been lodged but continue to be
actively challenged. Whilst the Council continues to strongly contest liability in respect of
each of these claims, a provision has been made based on the Council's experience of
settlement rates over the previous years. Movement an the Insurance Provision during the
year is set out in note 20.

25b) Residual Waste Treatment Project

The arc21 Joint Committee has, with the approval of its participant Councils, entered into a
Contingent Liability Undertaking with the bidding consortium in the procurement for a
Residual Waste Treatment Project and Ards and North Down Borough Council has agreed
its share of the contingent liability. The risks of any potential financial penalties associated
with the procurement process are limited but payments, if any, become due in accordance
with this undertaking, they will be funded by the participant Councils. No further information
on this agreement can be disclosed due to the commercial sensitivity of the procurement
process.

25c) Special Legal Regime — VAT Tribunal

On 17 October 2020, the First-tier Tribunal issued its decision in relation to a dispute
concerning the VAT liability of charges paid by members of the public for access to sport and
leisure facilities provided by Mid-Ulster District Council. HMRC contended that the charges
should bear VAT at the standard rate, while Mid Ulster District Council contended that the
charges in dispute did not attract VAT as they were provided by the Council in its role as a
public authority acting under a special legal regime, within the meaning of the EU Principal
VAT Directive.

The appeal by Mid Ulster District Council was allowed and now the quantum has to be agreed
between both parties. However, pursuant to Rule 39 of the Tribunal Procedure (First-tier
Tribunal) (Tax Chamber) Rules 2009, any party dissatisfied with the decision has a right to
apply for permission to appeal not later than 56 days after the date of this decision. HMRC
appealed the decision. The hearing was held in May 2022 and the decision is still pending.
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25d)

26

26a)

General

Back to Agenda

The Council has a number of other general litigious matters ongoing. It is uncertain whether
these matters will proceed to court or if they do, whether the courts will have reached a
decision in relation to them before the Council’s financial statements have been certified and
published. Council is of the opinion that, in the majority of matters, it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the claim. Council is also of the opinion that, in
any event, it is not possible to make a sufficiently reliable financial estimate of potential

contingent liabilities for disclosure purposes.

Other Cash Flow Notes

Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of No
services for non-cash movements: tes

Depreciation 4
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale de- 4
recognitions)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors

Increasef/(Decrease) in impairment provision for bad debts
Increasef/(Decrease) in Creditors

Increasef/(Decrease) in Interest Creditors

Pension Fund Adjustments 22
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 4
AUC written off to Net Cost of Services

Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions

Movement in value of Investment Properties

Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 22

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, Investment Property and
Intangible Assets

2021/22
£

9,856,887
(964,648)

11,342
(2,759,900)
(74,250)
(406,398)
(24,846)
7,650,000
2,155,742
90,612

15,534,541

(1,850,159)

(1,850,159)

2020/21
£

9,956,491
798,188

57,138
(713,770)
(2,686)
56,486
(25,931)
4,236,024
138,785
26,935

14,527,660

(20,000)

(20,000)
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26b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
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For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand
and in bank and short-term deposits and investments (considered to be cash equivalents), net
of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the Balance

Sheet as follows:

Cash and Bank balances

Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents)
Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents)
Bank Overdraft

26¢c) Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

The cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received

Interest paid

26d) Cash flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible assets
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, Investment Property and
Intangible Assets

Capital Grants and contributions received

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities

26e) Cash flows from Financing Activities

Cash Receipts from Shaort and Long-Term Borrowing
Repayment of Short and Long-Term Borrowing

Net Cash flows from Financing Activities

116

31/03/2022
£
1,403,275
9,000,000

10,403,275

2021/22
£

51,040

2,677,964

2021/22
£
4,212,245

(1,850,159)
(1,578,403)

783,683

2021/22
£

(6,170,265)

(6,170,265)

31/03/2021
£

1,927,449

9,000,000

10,927,449

2020/21
£

50,785
2,884,790

2020/21
£
4,993,211

(20,000)
(396,012)

4,577,199

2020/21
£
6,000,000
(14,213,710)

(8,213,710)



Back to Agenda

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

27 Usable Reserves

27a) Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets which have
not yet been used to finance capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other
monies defined by statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain/loss on disposal and
posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Receipts Reserve. The
reserve is written down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set
aside to reduce an authority's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes
permitted by statute).

Notes  31/03/2022 gk VliEipdiril
£ £
At 1 April 1,619,304 2,056,161

Movement

Disposal of Non Current Assets/ Capital Sales 4,26 1,850,159

Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure  28a, 13

At 31 March 1,619,304

27b) Capital Grants Unapplied account

Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from
that grant or contribution has not been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or
contribution shall be transferred to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (within the usable
reserves section of the balance sheet), reflecting its status as a capital resource available to
finance expenditure. This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is
incurred, the grant or contribution (or part thereof) shall be transferred from the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjustment Account, reflecting the application of capital
resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported in the Movement in Reserves
Statement or in the notes to the accounts.

Notes 31/03/2022 g NliEIPArsD
£ E
At 1 April
Movement 2,739,841 2,143,177
Received in year 1,466,272 2,548,731
Transferred to CAA in year (1,706,072) 1,952,068
At 31 March 2,500,040
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27c¢) Revenue Grants Unapplied account

Where a revenue grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from
that grant or contribution has not been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or
contribution shall be transferred to the Revenue Grants Unapplied Account (within the usable
reserves section of the balance sheet), reflecting its status as a resource available to finance
expenditure. This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is
incurred, the grant or contribution (or part thereof) shall be transferred from the Revenue
Grants Unapplied Account to the General Fund, reflecting the application of revenue
resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported in the Movement in Reserves
Statement or in the notes to the accounts.

Notes 31/03/2022 EEsllix]pIirAs
£ £
At 1 April 279,305 400,503
Movement
Received in year 301,460 53,845

Released from reserve (279,305) ENENERER)
At 31 March 10b 301,460
[

27d) Earmarked Reserve

The Council has established an Earmarked Reserve under Section 9(1) of the Local
Government Finance Act (NI) 2011 for the purposes of setting aside funds required for future
purposes, for example to set up an innovation fund or to smooth the cost of elections.

Notes 31/03/2022 gEeiilikiFliral
£ £

At 1 April 10,812,488 EEERLYRIcE

Transfers between statutory & other reserves &
the General Fund

Transfers between Capital Fund, Renewal &
Repair Fund & CAA to finance capital 12 -
expenditure

At 31 March 13,426,200 EsLiR-5FN00:1

4b 2,613,712 EEEKGINVGE]

The Earmarked Fund balance has increased during the year as part of the Council's
arrangements to build resilience, for reform, for managing the financial impact of COVID-19
and managing the inflationary environment in the 2022/23 financial year and beyond. The
Council received COVID-19 Funding Support of £1.538M from the Department for
Communities. The amount of unspent funding at the end of 2021/22 which has been allocated
to Earmarked Reserves to provide support going forward is £1,752k.
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27e)

28

28a)

General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from District
Rates. Councils raise rates to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be
different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Notes 31/03j2022 31/03/2021
At 1 April 4.52?1365 3‘02;5,480
Applied Capital Grants 4,10c (455,971) (1,778,081)
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year 10d (1,466,272) (2,548,731)
Unapplied Revenue Grants rec'd in year (22,154) 121,198
Direct Revenue Financing 4, 13 (168,839) (468,790)
Depreciation and Impairment adjustment 4 8,892,239 10,754,679
Statutory Provision for financing Capital

2
Investment 4 (5,320,804) EENERASKREL)

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital
under statute 4,13 1,458,209 1,321,514

Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services CIES (7,234,177) 4,243,465

Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves
and the General Fund

Net movements on Pension Reserve 4, 22b 7,650,000 4,236,024

Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 4,8 305,583 118,785

Difference between finance and other costs and
income calculated on an accounting basis and
finance costs calculated in accordance with
statutory requirements

Other Movements = g

At 31 March 5,487,523 4,527,365

4 (2,613,712) IRERGNE)

28d (63,943) 225,824

Unusable Reserves
Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert
fair value figures to an historic cost basis.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council.
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The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2008, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £

At 1 April 81,805,589 80,874,228
Applied Capital Grants 4,10c 455,971 1,778,081
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred _

to CAA in year 27b 1,706,072 1,952,068
Direct Revenue Financing 4,13 168,839 468,790
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 12 (8,892,239) (10,754,679)

Statutory Provision for financing
Capital Investment

Net Revenue expenditure funded from
Capital under statute

Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital
Sales

Capltal Recmp_ts used to finance 13.27a 142,620 456,857
capital expenditure

Other Movements 4,486,887 3,236,594

Transfers between Capital Fund or
Repairs and Renewals Fund & CAA to 13 -
finance capital expenditure

At 31 March 81,580,592 81,805,589

4 5,320,804 5,253,949
4,13 (1,458,209) (1,321,514)

4,8 (2,155,742) (138,785)

28b) Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in

the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced
when assets with accumulated gains are:

« revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
« used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
« disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the
reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards or
downwards) of individual assets. All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses that have
been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services) are mirrored in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamental principle of this account that it
never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised, the balance
held on the Revaluation Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Notes  31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£ £
At 1 April 79,999,277 79,891,827
Revaluation & Impairment 12 10,675,518 3,344,044
Other Movements (4,486,887) 3,236,594
At 31 March 86,187,908
[

28c) Pension Reserve
Full details on the Pension Reserve are disclosed in Note 22.

Notes 31/03/2022 < Tlieipdirsl

£ £
At 1 April (60,614,000) EEIsReloleReNF{s))
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4, 22b (7,650,000) EEERLiHoRL)

Revaluation & Impairment 22b 21,343,000 [ERERER)
At 31 March (46,921,000) WCXFEN )]

28d) Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement from accruing for compensated
absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave entitlement carried forward
at the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements are in place to ensure that the impact
on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is neutralised by transfers to or
from this Accumulated Absences Account.

Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£ £
At 1 April (758,767) (532,943)
Adjustments in relation to short term
accumulated absences 4 63,943 (225,824

At 31 March (694,824) 758,767

29. Significant Trading Operations

The Council did not operate any significant trading operations during the 2021/22 financial
year.

30. Related Party Transactions

A related party is one that has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes
cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control but
excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and
Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition, where the

p | 121



Back to Agenda

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

relationship between the Council and the entity is solely an Agency agreement, this is not
deemed to be a Related Party Transaction.

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged. They exclude transactions with any other entity that
is a related party solely because of its economic dependence on the Council or the
Government of which it forms part.

All transactions detailed below have been entered into in full compliance with the Council's
Standing Orders.

Organisations in which Councillors have an interest

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. During the
year, the Council paid for works and services amounting to £1,559k (2020/21: £1,133k) from
organisations in which individual Councillors have an interest. In the majority of cases this
was not a personal interest, but rather they were representing Council. The main recipient
within this total is £1,545k (2020/21: £1,127k) to the Northern Community Leisure Trust.

The Council also paid grants and contributions of £679k (2020/21: £633k) to a number of
organisations in which Councillors represented the Council's interest. The main grants and
contributions were £457k paid to Community Advice Ards and North Down; £55k paid to the
Northern Ireland Local Government Association and £85k paid to Open House Festival Ltd.
These grants and contributions were made with proper consideration of declaration of
interests.

Joint Committees and Other Councils

The Council is a member of the arc21 Joint Committee which is established for the purposes
of managing waste. arc21 accounts for its funding by the provision of a statement of accounts
which is prepared under the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations 2015.
During the year the Council incurred expenditure of £6,700k (2020/21: £6,651k) and received
income of £169k (2020/21: £51k).

Council also received services amounting to £305k (2020/21: £320k) from other Councils and
provided services of £408k (2020/21: £325k) to other Councils.

Details of all amounts outstanding to Councils and Joint Committees at 31 March 2022 are
set out in notes 16 and 19.

During the year Council repaid a £3,000K short-term loan leaving no short-term loans
outstanding at the end of the financial year.

Other Public Bodies

In the course of the year, the Council incurred expenditure of £2,417k (2020/21: £1,986k) to
other public bodies. £597k (2020/21: £598k) was in respect of property rates; £91k (2021:
£84k) was in relation pension contributions. The balance of the amounts mainly relates to
services received and the Council contribution towards the development and configuration of
the regional planning IT system (£220K). The Council received other income of £670k
(2020/21: £578k) from other public bodies for services provided and £1,800K in relation to
the disposal of the former Ards Leisure Centre site under a vesting order by the Department
for Infrastructure - Roads.
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The Council made principal and interest loan repayments of £5,506k to the Department of
Finance. An analysis of amounts outstanding to both the Department and other institutions
at 31 March 2022 are set out in note 18b.

Details of amounts outstanding are set out in notes 16 and 19.

Council received grants from other public bodies of £5,371k (2020/21: £15,306k), including
Department for Communities £2,271k (2020/21: £9,297k).

31. Events after the Reporting Period

There were no events occurring after the 31 March 2022 which require adjustment to the
Council's financial statements or additional disclosures.

Accounts Authorised for Issue Certificate

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these for issue on 19 September 2022.
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Summary Status of the 2022/23 Plan
We have commenced delivery of our 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. An overview of our progress for the year to date (as at 12'" September 2022) is set out below:
Final Draft Fieldwork Yet to Cancelled/ | Total
Report Report Commence Deferred
2 - - 5 4 - 11
Further detail on reviews is provided in Appendix |.
Audit Committee Progress Update 4
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Final Report
Strategic Capital Development Service Review

B e L e L R
&

The scope of this internal audit included a review of the controls in place within the Strategic Capital :
Development Service to manage risks associated with Service planning, budgetary control, risk management R (N D ———
and performance monitoring/reporting. ’ z _‘ - :. 2 ‘
In order to complete this engagement, we used the following: As a result of our audit a Satisfactory assurance opinion was provided.

* Discussions with key members of the Service such as Head of Service and Service Unit Managers to

walkthrough key processes.

. , . " . L . Th Priority 1 or 2 findings identified duri iew.
* Review of key iterns of documentation such as policies and procedures, Service Plans, Service risk register SHEWEREND FRONLY % 0F 2 Migings kendlice udme our irview

d perf i t reports. g T i .
RPN TR R There were two Priority 3 findings identified during our review.

* Alimited programme of sample testing to assess control operating effectiveness, including:
Review of a sample of two monthly Strategic Capital Development manager detail reports from
Finance, to determine whether variances requiring clarification have completed accompanying
budget holder comments;
Review of a sample of five weekly Strategic Capital Development management meetings, to
determine whether Service level risk was adequately discussed and whether input was sought
from Service unit management to feed into the Strategic Capital Development Service Risk
Register;
Review of a sample of two quarterly Service assurance statements from the Head of Service to the
Risk Manager, to determine whether this is appropriate for escalating significant or emerging risks;
Review of a sample of two quarterly perfarmance review reports from the Head of Strategic
Capital Development Service to evidence reporting of performance against objectives within the
Service Plan, as well as evidence of reporting of these reports to the Corporate Services
Committee and to the Council, to evidence oversight of performance against objectives within the
Service Plan,

* Consideration of possible improvements or alternatives for the controls in place.

* Held a close out meeting with relevant stakeholders to discuss any review outcomes.

* Prepared a draft report, to report findings with practical recommendations for improvement where

appropriate.
* Prepared a final report, including management action plans in response to any recommendations

Audit Committee Progress Update [
@ 2022 Deloitte. All rights reserved September 2022
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New Ways of Working

Background

The scope of this advisory internal audit included a review of the Council's strategic planning for new ways of
working (e.g. hybrid working, remote working) in a post-Covid environment, including consideration of plans
for understanding workforce sentiment to new ways of working, creation of new HR policies and business
technology planning, including data and information management, and estates to support new ways of
working.

Overview of Approach

In order to complete this engagement, we used the following:

Review of Council’s documentation relating to strategic planning for new ways of working including the
issued Workforce Planning survey and Future Working Arrangements survey, interim Home Working
Policy, Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme progress reports, and meeting minutes from
HOST and from the Strategic Policy and Finance Group (SPFG);

Discussions with key stakeholders including the Chief Executive, Director of Finance and Performance,
Director of Organisational Development and Administration, Head of Finance, Head of Administration,
Head of HR and Organisational Development, Head of Strategic Transformation and Performance and the
Business Technology Manager;

* Consideration of approaches to new ways of warking being adopted in ather organisations which may
help inform the Council's position on new ways of working;

* Consideration of possible improvements or alternatives for the controls in place.
Held a close out meeting with relevant stakeholders to discuss any review outcomes.

Prepared a draft report, to report findings with practical recommendations for improvement where
appropriate.

Prepared a final report following management feedback.

@ 2022 Deloitte. All rights reserved
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High priority Medium Low priority
priority

Overall Opinion

As this was an advisory review, no level of assurance has been provided. The high, medium, low
grading is the rating system used for advisory reviews as apposed to the assurance ratings of priority
1,2 and 3,

Findings

There were three High priority findings identified during our review. They can be summarised as
follows;

* Governance and Establishing Direction — The risk of a lack of defined direction for HOST due to staff
having different views on what the future work strategy should look like.

* Stakeholder Engagement - Engagement with staff has primarily focused on those whase roles could
be carried out on a hybrid basis. How staff work when they are in the office will be equally

important,

* Information Management — There is currently no standardised approach to information and data
management across the Council

There was one Medium priority finding identified during our review. This can be summarised as
follows;

* Availability of technology and hybrid working facilities - Business technology and estates planning
should be strategically planned to support hybrid working,

There was also one Low priority finding identified during our review.

Audit Committee Progress Update 7
September 2022



Agenda 7 (a) / Item 7a - ANDBC 22-23 September Audit Committee Progress R... Back to Agenda

178

Appendix |

Progress to Date

Saptember 2022 Audit Committes Updmle g

O 2072 Daloilta. ANl nghis resorig



Progress to Date
Update on Annual Internal Audit Plan - 2022/23

Agenda 7 (a) / Item 7a - ANDBC 22-23 September Audit Committee Progress R...

In this section we have provided an overview of our progress regarding the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan as at 12/09/2022.

Quarter 1

Review Area

Sponsor

Planned
Days

Actual Days
to Date

Audit Status

Assurance Level

Planned Start
Date

Actual Start Date

Back to Agenda

ANDBC22/23-  Planning for new ways  Head of HR and 10 10 Final Draft Report ~ N/A - Advisory 13/06/2022 13/06/2022 Final Draft Report for Audit Committee issued
01 of working in post- Organisational for Audit 31/08/2022.
Covid environment Development, Committee
Business
Technology
Manager
ANDBC22/23-  Service Review — Head of Strategic 15 15 Final Draft Report  Satisfactory 27/06/2022 27/06/2022 Final Draft Report for Audit Committee issued
02 Strategic Capital Capital for Audit 08/09/2022.
Development Development Committee
ANDBC22/23- PCSP Head of 8 0.5 Terms of 12/09/2022 Final terms of reference issued 09/08/2022.
04 Community and reference agreed
Wellbeing
ANDBC 22/23-  Strategic financial Head of Finance 12 05 Terms of - 19/09/2022 Final terms of reference issued 05/09/2022.
05 planning reference agreed
ANDBC 22/23-  Treasury management Head of Finance 15 05 Terms of 26/09/2022 Final terms of reference issued 05/09/2022,
06 reference agreed

@ 2022 Deloitte. All rights reserved
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Ref Review Area Sponsor

Planned Days  Actual Days Audit Status Assurance Level Planned Start Date  Actual Start
to date Date

Quarter 3

@ 2022 Deloitte. All rights reserved

September 2022

ANDBC 22/23-  Procurement Head of Strategic 10 0.5 Terms of 14/11/2022 Final terms of reference issued 10/08/2022,
07 Transformation and reference agreed
Performance
ANDBC 22/23-  Waste Head of Waste 10 3 Terms of - 21/11/2022 Final terms of reference issued 16/06/2022.
03 Management Services reference agreed Fieldwork rescheduled to commence
21/11/2022 due to management request and
sickness absence of Council staff,
Quarter 4
ANDBC 22/23-  Lahour Market Head of Fconomic 10 0 Planning to - 09/01/2023 Planning to commence,
08 Partnership Development commence
ANDBC 22/23-  Strategic Head of 10 0 Planning to - 19/01/2023 Planning to commence.
09 environmental Administration commence
planning
ANDBC 22/23-  Service Review-  Head of 15 0 Planning to - 23/01/2023 Planning to commence.
10 Environmental Environmental commence
Health Health Protection
and Development
ANDBC22/23-  Cyber Security Business Technology 15 0 Planning to - 09/01/2023 Planning to commence.
11 Manager commence
Audit Committee Progress Update 10
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We have no other business to present however would be happy to discuss any other business that Ards and North Down Borough Council may wish to consider,

Audit Committee Progress Update 11
© 2022 Deloitte. All rights reserved September 2022
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At Deloitte, we make an impact that matters for our clients, our people, our profession, and in the wider society by delivering the solutions and
insights they need to address their most complex business challenges. As the largest global professional services and consulting network, with
over 312,000 professionals in more than 150 countries, we bring world-class capabilities and high-quality services to our clients. In Ireland,
Deloitte has over 3,000 people providing audit, tax, consulting, and corporate finance services to public and private clients spanning multiple
industries. Our people have the leadership capabilities, experience and insight to collaborate with clients so they can move forward with
confidence.

This publication has been written in general terms and we recommend that you obtain professional advice before acting or refraining from
action on any of the contents of this publication, Deloitte Ireland LLP accepts no liability for any loss occasioned to any person acting or
refraining from action as a result of any material in this publication.

Deloitte Ireland LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in Northern Ireland with registered number NC1499 and its registered office at

Lincoln Building, 27-45 Great Victoria Street, Belfast BT2 75L, Northern Ireland. MAKING AN
IMPACT THAT
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limited by guarantee ("DTTL"). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do R /

not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms.
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

This document is a draft report. This document is confidential and is issued to a limited circulation for discussion only. Matters
of fact and opinion have yet to be fully clarified and finalised. Details may change between this draft and the final report. Itis
not intended that management rely on the contents of this document until a final report is issued.

Matters noted in this draft report are only those, which came to our attention up to this point of our work and are not
necessarily a comprehensive statement of all issues that exist, or all actions that might be taken. This draft report is made
solely to Ards and North Down Borough Council for discussion purposes only.

We do not accept or assume responsibility for our work to anyone other than Ards and North Down Borough Council. This draft
document must not be circulated or referred to without our express written consent.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review — FINAL DRAFT REPORT

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person
or entity. .
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1. Overview

This assurance review was undertaken as part of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Operational Plan and focused on the key controls in place to manage risks
associated with Service planning, budgetary control, risk management and performance monitoring/reporting.

The purpose of the Strategic Capital Development Service is to support, advise and provide strategic direction across all Council directorates, to support
the successful delivery of Council’'s Capital Projects Portfolio in line with the Council’s PEOPLE focused priorities, the Council’s Community Plan, or “the Big
Plan” 2017-2032.

The Strategic Capital Development Service consists of the Capital Projects Service Unit. The Service comprises of a Head of Service, and two Service Unit
managers and is a part of the Finance and Performance Directorate. The Strategic Capital Development Service also has a small number of officers, as
well as two admin support staff.

The Strategic Capital Development Service provides support and insight to other Directorates within the Council, as well as engaging with other key
stakeholders such as Elected Members, consultants, contractors, funding bodies, operators, suppliers and Borough residents, to deliver the capital portfolio
of the organisation.

The scope of this internal audit included a review of the controls in place to manage risks associated with Service planning, budgetary control, risk
management and performance monitoring/reporting. The objectives of the Internal Audit review were to:

Gain an understanding of the Service planning and reporting process, including the processes to identify stakeholder analysis, PESTLE analysis and
future challenges.

Assess whether Service objectives are aligned to support the achievement of corporate objectives, and whether KPIs and measures to track
achievement of objective outcomes are reported to Management.

Determine how progress against objectives and outcomes are monitored and reported, including verifying that KPIs are set and monitored for
each.

Assess whether the impact of Covid-19 has been considered in designing the Service objectives for FY 2021/22.
Determine whether Service objectives remain relevant and aligned to corporate objectives as per the Corporate Plan 2020-2024.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review - FINAL DRAFT REPORT

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person
or entity. 3
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Determine whether the budget setting process is appropriately communicated to members of staff, including the use of documented policies and
procedures.

Determine how the Service identifies its annual budget needs and whether it aligns these to delivery of its annual objectives as expressed in the
Service Plan.

Determine if the Service identified the impact of Covid-19 on its annual budget needs and ascertain if this was considered during the budget setting
process for FY2021/22.

Assess whether actual Service performance is measured against the budget and ascertain whether variances in income and expenditure are
investigated (against clearly defined variance reporting levels) and reported to Management monthly.

Consider how risk management is embedded and communicated, across the Service and Service Units, including: assessing the process for
identifying, assessing, and monitoring risks facing the Service, and considering whether there are appropriate reporting structures for escalating
significant or emerging risks.

Gain an understanding of the process to set Service performance improvement objectives and how these differ from the Service objectives,
including verifying whether there is a clear understanding of what performance improvement looks like for the Service.

Consider how performance improvement is embedded and communicated within the Service and Service Units.
Assess whether the process for monitoring and reporting KPIs against Service performance improvement objectives is appropriate for determining
if the Service is meeting these.

In order to complete this engagement, we used the following:

Discussions with key members of the Service such as Head of Service and Service Unit Managers to walkthrough key processes.
Review of key items of documentation such as policies and procedures, Service Plans, Service risk register and performance improvement reports.
A limited programme of sample testing to assess control operating effectiveness, including:
o Review of a sample of two monthly Strategic Capital Development manager detail reports from Finance, to determine whether variances
requiring clarification have completed accompanying budget holder comments;
o Review of a sample of five weekly Strategic Capital Development management meetings, to determine whether Service level risk was
adequately discussed and whether input was sought from Service unit management to feed into the Strategic Capital Development Service
Risk Register;
o Review of a sample of two quarterly Service assurance statements from the Head of Service to the Risk Manager, to determine whether
this is appropriate for escalating significant or emerging risks;
o Review of a sample of two quarterly performance review reports from the Head of Strategic Capital Development Service to evidence

reporting of performance against objectives within the Service Plan, as well as evidence of reporting of these reports to the Corporate
Services Committee and to the Council, to evidence oversight of performance against objectives within the Service Plan.

Consideration of possible improvements or alternatives for the controls in place.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review - FINAL DRAFT REPORT

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person
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Held a close out meeting with relevant stakeholders to discuss any review cutcomes.
Prepared a draft report, to report findings with practical recommendations for improvement where appropriate.
Prepared a final report, including management action plans in response to any recommendations.

Our sole source for information has been management information and representations. We do not accept responsibility for such information and have not
performed any substantiation or external confirmation procedures to establish its accuracy.

Our work was performed in accordance with the Deloitte Internal Audit Methodology which is consistent with the standards of the Chartered Institute of
Internal Auditors. Our work was carried out remotely between June 2022 and August 2022.

In Section 2 we have set out our detailed findings and recommendations arising from our review. Our findings have been graded using the scale outlined
in Appendix 1. The number of findings by risk grade can be summarised as follows:

e E? 2
There were no Priority 1 findings identified during our review.
There were no Priority 2 finding identified during our review.
There were two Priority 3 findings identified during our review. These can be summarised as follows:
Service Risk Register Review (see Section 2.1);

Incomplete signatures on Service Plan and Risk Assurance Statement (see Section 2.2);

Full details of the issues may be found in Section 2 of this report

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review - FINAL DRAFT REPORT

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person
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Overall, there is a satisfactory system of governance, risk management and control in relation to the Strategic Capital Development Service. While there
may be some residual risk identified, this should not significantly impact on the achievement of system objectives.

Consequently, on the basis of the Internal Audit work undertaken, we have given a satisfactory level of assurance that the system objectives will be
achieved. Refer to Appendix I for a definition of the assurance level given.

In line with our commitment to adding value through our internal audit services, we have noted two minor observations relating to update of the Council’s
Budget Setting Procedure and Risk Management Strategy, in addition to the formal recommendations included in Section 2:

Update of Budget Setting Procedure

We identified that the process for moving funds between service units or releasing funds back to the Council budget has not been documented
within this procedure.

We also identified that the Budget Setting Procedure does not include detail on a variance threshold amount / criterion for a threshold to be
determined or calculated regarding variances highlighted by Finance through the monthly budget reporting process as requiring further explanation
from the budget holders. Additionally, we identified that there is no detail regarding the periodic monitoring of budgets and Service Unit Managers’
responsibilities for monitoring budgets in the procedure.

These areas were raised as findings in the prior year HR & OD Service Review report, therefore we have not raised this as a repeat formal
recommendation in this instance.

«+ Update of Performance Improvement Report

Council Services are required to provide a report to the Performance Improvement Manager on performance against Service Plan objectives on a
quarterly basis. This includes Service Plan KPI performance, and the report includes a traffic light rating system, with green items meaning a target
has been achieved, amber items are in progress and red items are not yet started.

Progress against Service Plan objectives within these quarterly reports are reviewed by the Corporate Service Committee and then presented to
the Council. Actions to be taken have been outlined in the performance improvement report summary to address the missed Service Plan targets.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review - FINAL DRAFT REPORT
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We identified that there is no requirement to specify due dates or assigned responsible owners for these actions to assist with tracking progress
within the quarterly performance improvement report.

These areas were raised as findings in the prior year HR & OD Service Review report, therefore we have not raised this as a repeat formal
recommendation in this instance.

Update of Risk Management Strategy

(i) The responsibility of the risk owner and the Head of Service (p5 and p6 of the Risk Strategy) is to "escalate risks where these exceed the
identified risk tolerance threshold." On review of the Risk Strategy, we identified there is no defined risk tolerance threshold which has been
referred to regarding the escalation of risks.

(ii) We identified that the "date of Council approval" has been recorded on the policy as 'Corporate Services Committee approval' instead of the
date on which the policy was approved by the Council.

These areas were raised as findings in the HR & OD Service Review, therefore we have not raised this as a repeat formal recommendation in this
instance.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review - FINAL DRAFT REPORT
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2. Detailed findings and recommendations

2.1. Service Risk Register Review

Recommendation

- The Risk Management Strategy requires that each Directorate should plan to §The Strategic Capital Development Service should
- review their Service Risk Register periodically, and at least quarterly, to ensure ensure that its Service risk register is reviewed |n
- that progress is being made towards controlling the risks and to identify any ' line with the frequency documented within the RlSk
- changes or emerging risks, for example those arising from new legislation or Management Strategy.

- brought about by unforeseen events. :

- We noted that during bi-weekly management meetings, risks relating to individual
~ capital projects are discussed. However, Management advised that there is no
- formalised process to review the Service risk register, as set out in the Service
" Plan, on a periodic basis, apart from during Service Planning each year. :

Potential Impact

- Where the focus is on individual project risks, a failure to periodically review the
- Service's risk register may lead to overall Service risks not being updated and °
- mitigated accordingly. It may also lead to new general Service risks not being
 identified and escalated appropriately. :

' Management response

E.ActlonPlan ' L Ry E.Own.er/.TitI.e - | 'E'll'argﬁl.!tDil-lteﬁfl
: = - Implementation

- 1. Head of Strategic Capital Development has requested a draft Governance Report - Head of Strategic Capital : Quarterly
: schedule from Performance Manager as it would be useful to have a record of | Development :

key dates and schedule in quarterly Service Risk Register reviews as :

recommended in this Audit, to comt:lde W|th other reportlng requlrernents :

- 2. Set up Risk Management Meetmgs quartErIy to review and update the Service : Head of Strategic Capital : Quarterly/ report as and when
: Risk Register. In the meantime, escalate any identified risk to senior : Development - required :
management (for example, Lack of resources due to illness, and the like) ; '

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review — FINAL DRAFT REPORT
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2.2. Incomplete signatures on Service Plan and Risk Assurance Statement

Recommendation

The Service should:

Priority
We reviewed Sfrafegic Capii:él'be'velopniéhi:'s Service Plan and identified that the

- Service Plan had not been signed off as peer reviewed by another Head of Service, : 1. Ensure that future Service Plans are peer
" however, signed by the Director of Finance and Performance. ensure the Service Plan meets all

requirements and will prove beneficial to
the Service.

We also noted that the Period 3-4 Risk Assurance Statement for Strategic Capital

- Development was not signed by the Director of Finance. This was signed by the ° 2. Ensure that all risk assurance statements :
- Head of Service; however, the Risk Management Strategy states risk assurance are signed by the appropriate Director, prior
- statements must be signed by both the Head of Service and Director. : to the Risk Manager receiving them.

Potential Impact

 Failure to receive appropriate review and approval may lead to a failure to include
- key areas and risks within the Service Plan and Risk Assurance Statement. :

Management response :
- Action Plan - Owner/ Title - Target Date of :
: : : Implementation -
Share Reporting Schedule with other Heads of Service to notify and allow them Head of Strategic Capital Quarterly
- the time to review and sign the report. - Development :

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review — FINAL DRAFT REPORT
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3. Statement of Responsibility

We take responsibility for this report, which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below.

The scope and objectives of this review are summarised in Section 1.3 of this report. This is not an attest engagement and the matters raised in this
report are only those which came to our attention during our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all weaknesses that exists, or
of all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvement should be assessed by Ards and North Down Borough Council for their full
implications before they are implemented. This report has been prepared solely for Ards and North Down Borough Council and should not be quoted or
referred to in whole or part without prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared and is not
intended, for any other purpose.

David Kinsella
For and on behalf of
Deloitte (NI} Ltd

Chartered Accountants

Deloitte N.I. Limited
Lincoln Building, 27-45 Great Victoria Street,

Belfast, BT2 75L
Date: 08/09/2022
Partner: David Kinsella
Manager: Camille McDermott
Auditors: Eddy Breslin, Niamh Sammon, Rory Garland

T: 028 9592 3616
E: cammcdermott@deloitte.ie

=
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Appendix I: Reporting Definitions

Assurance Opinion

For each report delivered in the annual Internal Audit Plan, we will provide one of three levels of assurance, ranging from satisfactory assurance to
unacceptable assurance. These assurance levels reflect the latest requirements of the Department of Finance (DAO (DoF) 07/16).

Assurance Level Evaluating and Testing Conclusion

Satisfactory Overall there is a satisfactory system of governance, risk management and control. While there may be some residual
: : risk identified, this should not significantly impact on the achievement of system objectives.

B There are significant weaknesses within the governance, risk management and control framework which, if not addressed,
Limited s - 5
could lead to the system objectives not being achieved.

The system of governance, risk management and control has failed or there is a real and substantial risk that the
system will fail to meet its objectives.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - Strategic Capital Development Service Review - FINAL DRAFT REPORT
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Recommendation Priorities

Failure to implement the recommendation is likely to result in a major failure of a key organisational objective, significant
damage to the reputation of the organisation or the misuse of public funds.

Priority 2 Failure to implement the recommendation could result in the failure of an important organisational objective or could have
some impact on a key organisational objective.

Priority 3 Failure to implement the recommendation could lead to an increased risk exposure.

These definitions of evaluations should be interpreted in conjunction with the scope of the audit work and in the overall context that our findings should
only be relied upon to be representative of the operation of control procedures at the time of discussion or observation of these control practices and in
relation to the transactions tested. Projection of evaluations of future periods is subject to the risk that the policies and procedures may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with these policies and procedures may deteriorate. The performance of Internal Audit
work should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the
responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by Internal Audit should not be relied upon to identify
all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should Internal Audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity should
there be any, although our audit procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound
systems of internal control may not be proof against collusive fraud. Internal audit procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by management
as being of greatest risk and significance. Effective implementation of our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable
internal control system.
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At Deloitte, we make an impact that matters for our clients, our people, our profession, and in the wider society by delivering the solutions and insights they need
to address their most complex business challenges. As the largest global professional services and consulting network, with over 312,000 professionals in more
than 150 countries, we bring world-class capabilities and high-quality services to our clients. In Ireland, Deloitte has over 3,000 people providing audit, tax,
consulting, and corporate finance services to public and private clients spanning multiple industries. Our people have the leadership capabilities, experience and
insight to collaborate with clients so they can move forward with confidence.

This publication has been written in general terms and we recommend that you obtain professional advice before acting or refraining from action on any of the
contents of this publication. Deloitte Ireland LLP accepts no liability for any loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action as a result of any
material in this publication.

Deloitte Ireland LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in Northern Ireland with registered number NC1499 and its registered office at Lincoln Building, 27-
45 Great Victoria Street, Belfast, BT2 75L, Northern Ireland.

Deloitte Ireland LLP is the Ireland affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by quarantee
("DTTL"). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide services to clients. Please
see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms.

© 2022 Deloitte Ireland LLP. All rights reserved.
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

This document is a draft report. This document is confidential and is issued to a limited circulation for discussion only. Matters of
fact and opinion have yet to be fully clarified and finalised. Details may change between this draft and the final report. It is not
intended that management rely on the contents of this document until a final report is issued.

Matters noted in this draft report are only those, which came to our attention up to this point of our work and are not necessarily
a comprehensive statement of all issues that exist, or all actions that might be taken. This draft report is made solely to Ards and
North Down Borough Council for discussion purposes only.

We do not accept or assume responsibility for our work to anyone other than Ards and North Down Borough Council. This draft
document must not be circulated or referred to without our express written consent.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person
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1. Overview

This advisory review was undertaken as part of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Operational Plan and focused on a review of the Council's strategic planning for
new ways of working (for example hybrid working, remote working) in a post-Covid environment, including consideration of plans for understanding
workforce sentiment to new ways of working, creation of new HR policies and business technology planning, including data and information management,
and estates to support new ways of working.

The Head of Service Team (HOST) are currently leading on the strategic planning for new ways of working in a post-Covid environment. In June 2022, the
Northern Ireland (NI} Executive lifted working from home guidance which had been issued during the Covid-19 pandemic. As a result, the Northern Ireland

Civil Service (NICS) completed a new hybrid working policy with plans to open 11 regional ‘Connect2’ hubs to support and facilitate the return of of civil
servants to offices and in-person working.

Given this public sector context, it is pertinent for organisations across NI to consider how remote and/or flexible new ways of working could be used
effectively in a way which meets business need.

Governance and guidance

The Council currently has an interim work from home policy, which will remain effective until the end of November 2022. The interim policy allows Council
staff to work either remotely or in-person dependent on management need and outlines the IT equipment available to employees while working from
home, for example, monitors and keyboards. Interim home working arrangements, including technology and equipment requirements for staff across the
Council have been governed and approved by the Corporate Services Committee and the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and throughout the internal Council pandemic recovery period.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review
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Stakeholder Engagement

At the time of our fieldwork, HOST had issued two formal surveys to two Council employee groups. The Future Working Arrangements survey had been
issued to all Council staff who are working, or whose role could work, remotely to determine equipment requirements and to gain perspective on workforce
sentiment with regards to new ways of working. The results of this survey will help inform the Council’s permanent work from home policy and will support
decision-making and business cases around strategic planning for new ways of working, including for additional equipment.

In addition to this, a Workforce Planning Survey has been issued to Service Unit Managers and HOST to impraove Council staff recruitment and retention
and to gain insight into current staff issues faced.

The Council has also engaged with external consultants for delivery of post pandemic recovery workshops in order to engage with staff in creating Service-
based action plans around staff management (‘Heads Together’ workshop) and performance improvement, which are areas which impact and are impacted
by new ways of working. We were advised that this is an optional activity for Service staff to engage in and that at the time of our fieldwork not all Services
have chosen to take up these sessions.

Employees are also engaged with through Pride in Performance conversations, and there are plans to engage focus groups to gain perspective on employee
aspirations and expectations with regards to remote and hybrid working as part of the Council's work in securing the Investors in People (IIP) accreditation.

Estates and Technology

Discussions are ongoing around the infrastructure required to support new ways of working. Given the historic status of much of the Council’s estate and
buildings, there is an awareness and understanding of the need for updated facilities to accommodate for example, hybrid meetings. Issues and
requirements such as these will be considered as part of wider discussions relating to the Council’s Civic and Office Rationalisation project which is being
considered to look at the future estate requirement.

The Business Technology department have upgraded the Council’s Virtual Private Network (VPN) in order to handle greater usage. In addition, HOST
carried out an assessment, as part of the Future Working Arrangements survey, to identify laptop requirements for teams across the Council. We were
advised by Business Technology at the time of our fieldwork, that the Council had issued approximately 140 new laptops to employees working remotely
or on a hybrid basis, 60 of these being in the last 10 months.

Strategic Transformation Projects

The Council have identified a number of projects to support its vision of strategic transformation, which are to be coordinated by the Head of Strategic
Transformation and Performance. Currently there are 23 established projects within the Council’s Transformation and Efficiency Programme covering a
number of areas such as strategic asset and estate reform, digitalisation, and workforce planning amongst other areas. Progress against project objectives
is overseen by the Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme Board and is also reported to the Council through the Strategic Corporate Services
Committee.

Achievement of the Council’s strategic transformation ambition requires collaboration and cohesion between multiple work streams across the organisation
and will progress interdependently alongside strategic planning around new ways of working.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review
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The scope of this advisory internal audit included a review of the Council's strategic planning for new ways of working (e.g. hybrid working, remote working)
in a post-Covid environment, including consideration of plans for understanding workforce sentiment to new ways of working, creation of new HR policies
and business technology planning, including data and information management, and estates to support new ways of working.

The audit focussed on the following areas:

— Determine whether there is a clear framework for the strategic planning for new ways of working, including the following key areas:
o a framework for developing a project or a plan for the Council’s move towards new ways of working;
o identified workstreams to include within the project or plan;
o plans for arriving at a Council position to support the strategic planning of new ways of working;
o definition of roles and responsibilities to drive strategic planning of new ways of working at a corporate level.
— For each identified workstream, including people, technology, data and information management, and estates and resourcing, determine whether
a project management approach is being followed including the following key areas:
o definition of roles and responsibilities within each workstream to drive strategic planning of new ways of working;
o clear aims and objectives including defined timescales for achievement of objectives, and translation of aims and objectives to action plans
within each workstream;
o engagement with stakeholders across the Council across all workstreams;
o processes to identify, consider and document risks and mitigating actions around new ways of working within each workstream.
— Determine whether there are data gathering processes in place to understand workforce sentiment on new ways of working, and whether there
are planning processes around the communication of the Council’s aims for new ways of working to staff and wider stakeholders.

In order to complete this engagement, we used the following:

Obtaining the Council’s documentation relating to strategic planning for new ways of working including the issued Workforce Planning survey and
Future Working Arrangements survey, interim Home Working Policy, Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme progress reports, and
meeting minutes from HOST and from the Strategic Policy and Finance Group (SPFG);

Discussions with key stakeholders including members of the Head of Service Team (HOST) and Corporate Leadership Team, including the Chief
Executive, Director of Finance and Performance, Director of Organisational Development and Administration, Head of Finance, Head of
Administration, Head of HR and Organisational Development, Head of Strategic Transformation and Performance and the Business Technology
Manager;

Consideration of approaches to new ways of working being adopted in other organisations which may help inform the Council’s position on new
ways of working;

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review
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Consideration of possible improvements or alternatives for the controls in place.

Held a close out meeting with relevant stakeholders to discuss any review outcomes.

Prepared a draft report, to report findings with practical recommendations for improvement where appropriate.
Prepared a final report, including management action plans in response to any recommendations.

Our sole source for information has been management information and representations. We do not accept responsibility for such information and have not
performed any substantiation or external confirmation procedures to establish its accuracy.

Our work was performed in accordance with the Deloitte Internal Audit Methodology which is consistent with the standards of the Chartered Institute of
Internal Auditors. Our work was carried out remotely between June and July 2022.

In Section 2 we have set out our detailed findings and recommendations arising from our review. To support management’s continuation of strategic
planning processes around new ways of working, we have graded these recommendations as High, Medium or Low priority for action. The number of
findings can be summarised as follows:

We have also noted in Appendix I, some other approaches to hybrid working policy development we have identified from our research that the Council
may wish to consider in its work.

As this was an advisory review, no level of assurance has been provided.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review
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2. Detailed Findings and Recommendations

New ways of working will mean different things to different people. Some organisations
have moved to being able to facilitate fully remote working for some of their staff, whilst
others have adopted a more fixed approach where staff work from the office two days per
week and from home the rest of the time (if they wish). Some, such as NICS, have also
taken the opportunity to think about working in a more agile way; thinking about the use of
their estate to create hubs that facilitate staff to be in the ‘office’ rather than at home, but
at a location that may be more convenient to their home or for other meetings they may
have that day.

As outlined in Section 1.2, there have been a number of actions taken which will inform
strategic planning for new ways of working such as distribution of surveys to employees
with the intention to collate and analyse feedback imminently. The Council has an interim
work from home policy, effective until the end of November 2022 and work is ongoing to
update this guidance to outline the Council’s policy towards new ways of working. At the
time of this review, the Council had not communicated a final position in relation to remote
or hybrid working to employees, although staff working from home had been asked by the
Chief Executive to return to the office two days a week from July 2022.

During discussions, the risk of a lack of defined direction for HOST was expressed, primarily
due to the fact that staff may have different views on what the future work strategy should
look like. This also impacts on structures to deliver and we noted that there is currently no
overarching formal framework and/or workstreams in place to bring together all the
elements that will require to be considered in terms of new ways of working: for example
regarding estates, information management, business technology, and workforce planning.
Many of the actions or workstreams will relate to aspects of the Strategic Transformation
and Efficiency projects already identified but consideration of new ways of working as a
formal theme or element within each of these projects or the overall programme has not
been formally established.

1. The Council should continue to work High

towards establishing a formal agreed
position with respect to new ways of
working, including hybrid and remote
working, as a starting point. This
corporate position can then be used to
drive and inform the update and
communication of the Council’s formal
policy to new ways of working and will
feed directly into the Council’s strategic
transformation ambition.

. As the Council progresses in its

strategic planning around new ways of
working, the Council should consider
the need and value which may be added
in establishing an overarching formal
framework and/or workstreams to unite
all the elements of new ways of working
planning that are currently being taken
or planned in areas of estates, business
technology, workforce planning. From
review of the September 2021
Transformation Programme progress
report, we identified a number of key
Strategic Transformation and Efficiency
Programme projects which could be
considered relevant for the Council's
strategic planning around new ways of
working. Therefore, the Council may
wish to consider formally linking these
projects with strategic planning for new
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It is also important to ensure that delivery of the Strategic Transformation and Efficiency
programme and workstreams, and any associated strategic planning for new ways of
working, is appropriately resourced from a personnel perspective. We noted from our
discussions that staff highlighted significant workloads already, in particular in areas where
there have been challenges for recruitment on large-scale projects. We were also advised
that the Workforce Strategy will not be completed until April 2023 - there may be a need
for interim direction regarding workforce so as to inform estates and business technology
planning.

Potential impact

There is a risk that if not appropriately resourced, planning for new ways of working
becomes piecemeal rather than as part of a joined-up approach.

Defining the direction of travel or ambition for new ways of working will be important
in ensuring that actions to deliver against it can be appropriately taken and to reduce
any risk of ineffective use of resources in estates or business technology planning.
Being clear about ambition for the future of work will be important in supporting the
Council to recruit and retain staff and also for the public to understand how Council
will plan to work with them in future. We noted from our discussions that some staff
had already faced instances where interviewees or potential candidates wanted a
firm commitment to hybrid or remote working and there may be a risk that, if
Council does not move pace with other public and private sector organisations,
recruitment and retention of staff may become more challenging.

i Recommendation
ways of working, particularly in the

areas of workforce planning,
estates/facilities planning and
management, internal and external
communications and information and
data management.
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2.2 Stakeholder Engagement

Finding Recommendation :[ Priority

Engagement with staff regarding new ways of working has primarily consisted of the Future In formalising its strategic planning High
Working Arrangements Survey and Workforce Planning Survey. These have primarily approach to new ways of working, the
focused on those whose roles could be carried out on a hybrid basis. How staff work when Council should finalise collation and
they are in the office will be equally important; for example, how frequently do staff want analysis of feedback from both surveys
to come together with their whole team, how do they envisage working when in the office issued at the time of fieldwork. In addition
(e.g. primarily for meetings or for team interaction), what kind of spaces will teams need to this, the Council should consider
for working together, what would help them to engage effectively with people (eitherinternal additional ways to collect data and engage
or external) who are working remotely? with staff across the Council and at all
levels to understand how they wish to work
as teams (both in person and engaging
with people virtually) and support
decisions/business cases around new ways
of working.

Potential impact
s« There is a risk that by not engaging staff more broadly creates a perception of
inequality or that new ways of working are only for those who can work from home.
» Additionally, there may be a lack of data to support decisions around new ways of
working and to create a business case for any particular direction of travel,

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review
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2.3 Information Management

Findin : Recommendation

Having effective digital information management systems is the primary enabler for being The Council should implement a High
able to effectively work outside the office, or from another location that is not an individual’'s standardised approach to information and
normal office base. data management across the organisation
and consider the need for procuring an
organisational information management
system to ensure consistent use of
collaboration/information sharing tools and
that storage of documentation across
Services is standardised.

We noted from our discussions that some staff (for example, administrative staff) are

required to work in the office full time while other staff in similar roles work from home -

primarily because much of the data they work with is not digitised.

There is currently no standardised approach to information and data management across
the Council, or a digital information management system in place, resulting in Services
adopting their own individual approaches for electronic and hard copy file management.

Potential impact

o Lack of standardised approach to information management is likely to lead to
inconsistent use of collaboration/information sharing tools. It may also impede the
Council’s ability to identify where documentation is stored and could lead to issues
around succession planning where knowledge is not shared. There are also broader
questions related to digital data management such as confidentiality and data
privacy.

= A perceived difference between home and office-based staff, may lead to a risk of
low staff morale and a sense of division within teams. This could also lead to a risk
of division in the employee and management relationship, for example, if
management are working remotely whilst admin staff are in the office full time.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review
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Throughout interviews with key stakeholders for this review, lack of suitable office-space, facilities and

technology within the Council to support hybrid working was raised as an issue which would impede an
immediate transition to effective hybrid working. For example, we were advised that there is facility in
one room of the Town Hall in Bangor for a screen to be brought in so that those in the room can connect
with others outside the building. However, if there is to be a higher level of hybrid working, staff may
need mare office space with the capability for video conferencing as well as smaller, private spaces where
staff could take part in video calls (for example, if they are in the office but all those they are speaking
to are connecting remotely). Issues such as room acoustics were also highlighted in discussions - for
example, where a team had removed files from their offices as they were digitised, the room acoustics
changed so calls had a greater echo.

There are also other considerations for new ways of working in terms of maximising the Council’s estate:

Prior to the pandemic all staff worked in the office and, as such, there was no need for *hot-
desking’ (where staff are not allocated a permanent desk but may use a pool of desks available
when they are in). For staff in the office, the Council may need to consider therefore the number
of desks needed and also whether to introduce, for example, a booking system for desk space.
The business technology provided to staff — both built in to office design and staff computers -
will be important to successful hybrid working. For staff to work effectively in a hybrid way, they
will require access to laptops and therefore may also need larger monitors at the office / home,
as well as headset devices.

Business technology and estates planning are areas which should therefore be strategically planned for
in conjunction with the Council's Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme and the Council’s
new Civic and Office Rationalisation project. As outlined above, the NICS have introduced a number of
Connect2 hubs to support agile working which enable eligible employees to work in locations closer to
home, based on the nature and suitability of their role.

» Lack of technology or office space to manage video conferencing or hybrid meetings will impact
on staff effectiveness and could lead to dissatisfaction for those involved in such meetings/calls.
« Without clear planning regarding office usage, the Council estate risks being larger than needed
as more staff work from home (resulting in poor value for money), or that there is insufficient

or unsuitable office/desk space for teams to come together,

ai>

The Council should formally

assess its current business
technology and estates
capabilities to facilitate remote
and hybrid working, for
example, to conduct hybrid
meetings or maximise office
space through hot-desking, in
alignment with its prospective
agreed corporate position to
new ways of working. As part
of this, the Council may wish
to consider the longer-term
establishment of ‘hubs’ to
allow employees to work in a
more agile way.

Medium

Back to Agenda

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person

ar entity.

11



Agenda ii / Item 7aii - ANDBC New Ways of Working Final Draft for AC.pdf

Deloitte.

2.5 Policy development and training

In addition to the above findings, we also noted the following for consideration in the hybrid
working policy that is being developed:

It will be important for the policy to include information and clarification in relation
to staff members’ ability to work from different locations; for example, working
outside the UK, to limit possible tax obligations.

The policy or associated resources may need to provide guidance to teams as to
how they can consider how they work practically together. During the pandemic
many staff have been able to reset their daily routines - for example,
taking/collecting children to/from school. Staff may be reluctant to give up these
new routines and teams may therefore have to agree on when they will expect staff
to be available for meetings, in line with the Council’s Flexi Working Policy (update
of which was postponed due to Covid) and core hours.

Additionally, managers across the Council may require training in the new policy or support
in being able to manage their remote and hybrid teams; for example, adapting management
styles to maximise effectiveness and productivity of remote and hybrid working teams,
conducting hybrid meetings and performance management of remote and hybrid
employees.

Potential impact

Lack of clarity within any new hybrid working policy could lead to inconsistent
approaches being taken across the Council resulting in liabilities for the Council/staff
and a sense of inequality between teams.

If managers are not equipped to lead teams in new ways of working, there is a risk
of poor people development and performance management.

! Recommendation

1.

The Council should consider the points
noted in the finding regarding guidance
within the hybrid working policy
planned to be developed.

The Council should consider how
training and development needs may
differ in any new working arrangement,
e.g. training for managers in managing
hybrid teams.

The Council should continue with this
policy update and consider further
required updates as a result of
strategic planning around future new
ways of working arrangements.

Low

Back to Agenda
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3. Statement of Responsibility

We take responsibility for this report, which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below.

The scope and objectives of this review are summarised in Section 1.3 of this report. This is not an attest engagement and the matters raised in this
report are only those which came to our attention during our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all weaknesses that exists, or
of all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvement should be assessed by Ards and North Down Borough Council for their full
implications before they are implemented. This report has been prepared solely for Ards and North Down Borough Council and should not be quoted or
referred to in whole or part without prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared and is not
intended, for any other purpose.

David Kinsella
For and on behalf of
Deloitte (NI} Ltd

Chartered Accountants

Deloitte N.I. Limited
Lincoln Building, 27-45 Great Victoria Street,

Belfast, BT2 75L
Date: 31/08/2022
Partner: David Kinsella
Senior Manager: Camille McDermott
Auditors: Niamh Sammaon, Una McGarry, Rory Garland

T: 028 9592 3616
E: cammcdermott@deloitte.ie
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Appendix I - New Ways of Working: Other Approaches

We reviewed publicly available information on approaches to new ways of working for seven Councils across the UK and identified four Councils which had
introduced or are planning to introduce remote/hybrid working. The Councils we identified as having a remote/hybrid policy in place all stated that the
hours worked at home by employees were based on the requirements of the team and had to be pre-approved.

We also reviewed the publicly available NHS Hybrid Working policy and identified the following areas the Council may wish to review to determine if similar
such guidance would be helpful to include in any Council policy:

A flowchart for assessing an employee’s suitability for home / hybrid working based on their role and responsibilities;
A home/ hybrid working agreement form;

A feedback checklist for home and hybrid workers;

An audit checklist for home or hybrid workers.

i e

In consideration of the work being currently undertaken by the Council to update its interim Home Working Policy, we have also set out below points that
were included in policies we reviewed (both in local government and private sector) that Council may wish to consider in its policy development:

Section Contents/Information that could be included

The Council may wish to consider highlighting the benefits and opportunities which are typically

Reaaans fok refmote working associated with hybrid working.

Council employees may be advised in this section to speak to the team lead (for example, through Pride

Raising hybrid working preferences i Perfornimance corversations),

Provide links to Council intranet resources to support hybrid working (training, technology guides etc).

Outline which policies and practices are in place to support flexible working e.g. reduced contractual
hours, flexi-time, personal leave, special leave.

Qutline of arrangements to support flexible
working and hours of work Qutline of normal Council working hours as well as reference to any arrangements for reduced hours
and flexibility.

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person
or entity. 14
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Section Contents/Information that could be included
Provide links to Council Flexi and Overtime policies, and other HR policies related to the Council’s
working practices.

Outline individual employees have a normal place of work set within their contract of employment (if
applicable).

Place of work and tax implications
Include guidance that working from outside this jurisdiction gives rise to personal and Council tax
obligations and legal implications, linking further Council and external (for example, HMRC) guidance.
Note that individuals are responsible for ensuring their workspace, when working remotely, is
appropriate and safe with a list of requirements to facilitate an appropriate and safe workplace included.

Workspace Link to DSE (Workstation) Assessment tool to assess employees’ current workstation.

Outline of services/equipment Council provides (e.g. headsets, monitors) and a link to where to access
these.

Reminder that employees should ensure that they have adequate fixed broadband to carry out virtual
working effectively and securely.

; ; ; Reminder to ensure that workspaces and Council documentation are secured and data

f
Technology and information security confidentiality/protection is maintained if working from home or at a location that is not the office base.
Link to further Council guidance and policies related to business technology, infermation security and
data protection.

Provide a link to Council expenses policy (if applicable) and guidance on what/how expenses can be
claimed as outlined below:
» guidance on travel and other related expenses i.e. can only be claimed from the normal place of
work to destination e.g. client premises;
« outline of standard equipment provided by Council for remote working;
« disclaimer that the Council is not responsible for additional costs that may result when working
from home such as internet / connectivity, heating or electrical costs etc;
» guidance for individual employees around making claim for tax relief where they work from
home for substantial periods on a full or part-time basis, guidance around qualifying for this tax
relief and link to further government guidance.

Expenses

Ards and North Down Borough Council - New Ways of Working Review

This report is intended solely for the information and internal use of Ards and North Down Borough Council, and should not be used or relied upon by any other person
or entity. 15
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| Attachments Corporate Risk Register

Draft2

- version 20, September 2022

As members will be aware, the Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is a live document
which is amended as required to reflect new or changing risk factors. The CRR is
currently being revised to facilitate improved reporting on risks and progress on risk
improvements, and to bring it in line with the revised Risk Strategy. The reformatting

of the CRR is currently being tested. The format
before being finalised in October.

The outworking of the CRR aims to:

and the CRR.

and content will be consulted on

Ensure substantial risks are reflected in both Service Risk Registers (SRR)

Improve on the identification and recording of risks, controls and actions.

Risks identified in Service Risk Registers are now aligned with CRR risks and
the current review will ensure that risk improvements, made or required, are
clearly recorded in the SRR with target completion dates, where applicable.
Whilst the SRRs will not be directly reported to Council, the risks and actions
detail will facilitate improved reporting of the CRR to Audit Committee.

Assign Risk Owners, for each risk in the C

RR. The Risk Owner will be a

Director who will be responsible for an identified risk through all the stages of
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the risk methodology, including reporting and escalation. A Head of Service
lead will also be identified to support the Risk Owner.

e Assign a Risk Appetite for each CRR Risk. This will ensure that risks
exceeding the tolerance threshold identified are escalated for review.

e Ensure CRR risk descriptions remain relevant.

In the current review of risks, the removal of COVID-19 as a stand-alone risk (CR14)
is recommended however this risk will remain to be identified within CR6, Health and
Safety, to ensure that this risk continues to be appropriately assessed, monitored
and controlled.

Two new temporary risks are being considered for addition due to potential financial
and reputational impacts:

e The integration of legacy North Down sporting facilities through the insourcing
project.
e Aurora defects.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the report be noted.
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Risk

Gross Risk Risk Status | 2ptimal
Ref Risk Description Current Controls Tok 7 - Further Action Required
L |R L IR Acti m‘.a:
Community plan published March 2017 followed by Delivery Plans in Work with Strategic Partners to agree data lo be shared to produce
December 2017 better Scorecards
Revise Performance Scorecards to better demonstrate "golden
Review of Community Plan started in November 2019, thread” between PG, the Big Plan through to delivery of Service
Plans identified
Refined list of 10 priorities identified based on evidence and Work with planning to ensure spatial aspects of the Big Plan are
potential for collaboration. reflected in the Local Development Plan
Prionties agreed by Strategic Partnership and then updated to reflect Keep 'live’ delivery plans updated and relevant (include actions
the impacts of Covid-19 and new timeline for publication of review specific to recovery from Covid-13) and report to Council's Strategic
outcomes agreed. Covid-18 Recovery Group.
Ineffective implementation of . - . ) -
b ¥ = Work with Department for Communities to influence official reporting
MNovember 1 1 n Pr | 8
CR1 the Co_mmumly I'T‘Ia.n_ leading 5 3 |is o¥ember202E denons S me Rt el Frogrese pUiehed 4 2|8 Action requirements on Community Planning implementation
to failure to deliver on the
e o
aucomes:identified 4" Progress Report focusing on refined list of 10 priorities and Work with NISRA and other community planning partners to create
workstreams presented to Strategic Partnership in October 2021, a reliable evidence base
AMNDBC's Corporate Plan aligned with community plan outcomes all
Council activities therefore contribute to the cutcomes set out in the Publish Assessment of Wellbeing and develop mechanism to report
Communihflan. on whole population indicators to show progress.
Data and Evidence Analyst appointed by Council and Assessment Publication of performance update reports for each Big Plan
of Wellbeing under development Qutcome and Partnership Scorecard
Integrated Tourism, Regeneration and Development Strategy and
the Arts and Heritage Strategy demonstrate how they will help Increase meetings from 2 to 3 per annum
achieve the outcomes of the Big Plan
Formalised structure of partnership to ensure the correct people Link Big Plan Performance Retlurmns to Council's internal
engage at the correct level performance management software
Risk Owner (Director) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
Optimal Target Risk level
Key paolicies and procedures in place, fair and consistent and non ; : o :
diseriminatory Continue review of all HR policies for best fit
Service Plans are in place. Further HR&OD Policy development and training for all managers
Staff Consultative Committee established Implementation of any remaining Service Transformation Models
AND Update produced on a monthly basis (cumently on hold due to 5
3 = F t b h.
staff shorlages, aimed to mmence April 2022) urther steps to embed Behaviour Charter
§ . Review Communication and Engagement methods with staff to
I . : A
;g;;s_gnr::rzi Z{r;g%lng for the:now OurFpapic: Pl f'cover Ap address perceived lack of engagement. Continue with regular team
meetings and better interdepartmental working procedures.
Focus needed to pricritise work and adjust staff levels to meet work
Mews and info staff bulletin produced fortnightly. load requirements = a growing issue across the organisations
compounded by current difficulties with recruitment
2 Ongoing COVID welfare and recovery meassages through ANDi, Training programme recommenced but now at reduced level due to
CR2 'i)::';:;:fem;r:l;::;’i:g lo s|als Employee Portal. emails, News and Info, CX emails 3|2 Action pandemic limitations
very Positive feedback, customer comments, etc to staff. News and Info . 2 P =
and poor staff well-being / ANDI Review ways o recognise staff for going "above and beyond”.
Introduction of workforce planning (transformation initiative),
including understanding of why staff leave the organisation
(resigning or secondment)
Pride in Performance Conversations in place for all staff (amended Ensure job descriptions are up 1o date.
cantent to suit COVID context)
Learning and Development Strategy in Plan Continue regualr meetings with staff.
Elearning modules in place (and under development)




Plan for Training in place

Staff Welfare Group has been established

PERFORM performance framework in place

Behaviour Charter agreed, training delivered and guidance
produced

Implemented high pricrity recommendations from IP assessors
report following accreditation in December 2019

Coaching and mentoring programme reintroduced in 2022

Customer Service criteria, in line with Customer Service Excellence
standards, reviewed and updated annually.

Implementation of Heads Together sessions - hybrid working and
communication facilitated sessions for leams/services

Customer services sirategy being produced

Customer exoell_gnoe working group back in operation

|Risk Owner (Directar)

Head of Service Lead:

Risk Appetite

CR3

Inadequate controls over
financial management and
resource planning resulting in
poor service delivery and
financial loss to the Council

Corporate Plan.

Medium term financial strategy agreed

Medium term financial Plan and Capital Investment plan reviewed
ragularly.

Use of business cases to underpin decision making

Professionally qualified finance staff with integrity and segregation of
duties in a robust hierarchy of management and supervision.

Oversight by audit committee.

Internal audit arrangements in place.

Fixed assets register.

Capital Projects Portfolio Board and Capital Projects Advisory Group
established and routinely meeting.

Service Unit budgets are regularly monitored.

Council Grants Policy implementation with staff training for grant
management and verification

DAERA and DIC Plans agreed for 3™ party funding eg Rural
Development and Urban Regeneration. Working with these
agencies and DF| to obtain extension to current deadiines.

Service Plans and Service Risk Registers developed in line with
Corporate Plan.

Annual Performance Improvement Flan in place

Alignment of Service Planning and Budget Setting

Estates Management Strategy and Estates Management Plan
agreed

City Deal - established internal and external work groups and
project boards with OBCs under development in line with City Deal
fimeline

Business Case training held and available on demand, new
business case templates based on Department of Finance
proformas.

Revised supplier paymenis guidance emphasising the importance of
maintaining internal controls

\ehicle, plant and machinery strategy now in place

Action

Estates Development Programme Board to be ratified by Council
Management Plan

Development of Financial Assistance Policy

Development of other Finance policies

Recruit additional qualified accountants o increase capacity and
resilience.

Complete implementation of Core 2 system.

Further alignment of City Deal financing to realise full potential of
projects against funding secured.

Introduction of Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme

Consider acquisition of new financial management system and
consider dashboard style reporting across ‘corporate’ services

Review user processing and file maintenance rights

Appropriately test Strategic Need and Economic Viability at an early
stage for capital projects

Rizk Owner (Director)

Head of Service Lead:

Rigk Appetite




CR4

Lack of adequate and
effective business continuity,
disaster recovery and
emergency planning
processes leading to inability
of the Council to deliver on its
care functions.

Legacy Business Continuity plans

AMDBC First Steps Document regularly reviewed and
updated, refresher training with HOST/CLT carried out in
January 2022

Revised Emergency Plan in place, activated March 2020 (Live
Testing)

COVID 19 - Regional arrangements for monitoring, ensuring a
consistent co-ordinated approach and escalation of issues to
the Hub / TEQ

COVID 19 - Amended Regional Emergency Support Centre
plans and grab bags

COVID 19 Business Continuity Plan in place

Business Continuity training through the Emergency Planning
College

Coronavirus sub-groups set-up lo assist with response

COVID 19 specific risk assessments camed out and controls,
mitigations and other measures in place

COVID 19 Staff awarenaess raised through emails, News and
Info, SMS texts, signage and instruction / discussion, in
addition a centralised email contact for Coronavirus advice and
guidance has been established,

Southermn Emergency Preparedness Group established from
January 2018

Other well established multi-agency, mutual aid groups

Strong communications links and mutual aids arrangements in
placa via EPG PlMedia WG

Agreed communications plans and protocaols for emergency
and business continuity situations,

Trained staff

New Regional emergency planning arrangements in place.

Emergency Planning Officer in place (part time)

Emergency Planning implementation Group established
(internal)

hulti-agency responses and debrief sessions following severe
weaather incidents

Disaster Recovery/ICT Plan (ext/Cloud based)

SAG training (EPC multi-agency SAG training delivered 2018)

SAG established for Major 3rd Party events on Council land.

Insurance cover in place fer main risks

Regular Deskiop EP Exercises carried out

Elected Member training provided in November 2017

Provision of sandbag containers by Rivers Agency at
Groomsport, Ballywaller, Portavogie and Portaferry.

Community Engagement with Street Pastors and other groups

EMT and Control Room set up complete

Resilience Direct resources and guidance and JESIP toolkits

Business Continuity strategy and policy in place

12

Action

Manitor for potential impacts of Russia’s invasion in Ukraine
(the Ukraine Crisis) — consider supply chain checks and any

other polential impacts.

Give effect to any actions deemed necessary to maintain
services following the monitoring and review of the Ukraine
Crisis.

Mew Emergency Plan being tested in real time (COVID 18
response)

Full roll out of development of Business Impact Analysis (B1A)
for Business Continuity {commenced February 2022)

Overarching Business Continuity Plan {in development)

Review and update business confinuity plans in line with mew
overarching plan / template.

Review of Business Continuity Policy and Strategy.

Further Community engagement with relevant
interest/community

Development of Policy to encourage volunteer civil
contingency support

Identify and address inhibitors to staff engagement in civil
contingancy response,

Continue to carry out EP f BC Activation Exercises and
systems lesting

Capacity Building Programme

Identify Procurement Frameworks for Contractors for
contingency use

CCGNI Protocols are not in embedded within the region

Updated prolocols required

Clarity regarding funding required

Lobbying for appropriate legislation and clarity with regard to
the role of Council in emergency response and recovery.

Establish if there are lessons from other national disasters that
may be useful to AMDBC's planning and capital projects

Dewvelop and establish a Safety Advisory Group (SAG) for
Major or significant Events held within the borough, to
include Council run events.

Muilti-agency Regional Reservoir Safety Group to Meet
(recently set up)

Cloud based customer systems (Leisure)

Comgplete implementation of cloud based HR and Employee
payments system (Cora2)

Consideration of acquisition of cloud based financial software.

Consideration to cloud based EDRMS

Review of remote working arrangements (HR, Business
Technology).




Regional EP awareness training for Elected Members provided
by NIEPG

Use of Signal as a back-up processing location for transactions

Patential further strike action by UNITE causing complete
disruption o kerbside collection and street litter bins plus
closure of some HRCs

Potential mitigation from my side would be that management
continues to talk to all 3 recognised trade unions on a regular basis
to attempt to resolve the issue. Howewver it should be noted that this
is a regional dispute.

Risk Owner (Director)

Head of Service Lead:

Risk Appetite

CRS

Failure to effectively and
consistently engage with
residents, service users and
partners leading to inability to
meet expectations and
reputational damage

12

Corporate Plan in place and shared with intermal and external
partners.

Service specific strategies and plans in place to help inform
and engage residents/ partners with key areas of the Council's
work

Regular update meetings with service areas to plan pro-active
and reactive comms around service developments.

Ongoing corporate and service level communications via
traditional channels and onling

Proaclive media relations management at a local and regional
level

Management of social media channels to share information,
promote engagement and answer customer care querneas

The Big Conversation Panel

Youth Voice established in partnership with Education Authority

Residents Survey and focus groups

Service consultation as required

Stakeholder/partnership groups established

MNew Town Advisory Groups have been formed with elected 3
members and social partners. Defined terms of reference in
place for each group aqnd appropriate administration,

Internal and External Equality Screening Panel

Complaints Procedure and Customer Care Standards

Use of CRMS (TeCare) in some sections

Positive Behaviour Training provided fo staff

Statement of Community Involvement for Planning

Residents encouraged to submit performance improvement
ideas through Your Opinion Matters via multiple channels

Elected Members' Charter

Committee/ Council agenda/reports/minutes/audio available
online (subject to change)

Protocols agreed for communications team to identify and
respond to identified critical issues out of hours

New Intranet in place for internal knowledge sharing

Development and introduction of Customer Service Excellence
Strategy and Action Plan

Annual Business Survey conducted and ongoing feedback
from evenis

Aetion

Introduce greater consistency of service level customer satisfaction
measures

Roll out of TeCare across service units

Ongeing management of agreed working groups to deliver ITRDS

Review Council's approach to engagement including use of
advanced digital channels and Big Data.

Consult with communities on the Big Plan priorities identified by the
review

Customer Service Excellence Strategy to be created.

Events Panel to be reinfroduced (paused due to Covid 18).

Customer service / complaints training to be included in new start
Induction,

ELearning medule in under development (lraining module for all
staff).

Risk Owner {Director)

Head of Service Lead:

Risk Appetite

Corporate H&S Policy and Procedures in place with specific plans
were required

Rolling Training programme

External - Occupational heaith and welfare provision in place,
including Health Surveillance were need identified.

Service area review and update of risk assessments (rolling
programme)

Review of Confractor monitoring arrangemenis

Ongoing audits & review meetings




Failure to protect the health,
safety and welfare of
employees and others
affected by the Council's
undertakings, leading to death

Internal - Wellbeing Group

H&S Monitoring, including inspections and audits.

Incident reparting and investigation

Events Risk Management

Corporate & Directorate H&S Committees.

Complementary policies and procedures and review, eg HR&D,
Corporate Risk Strategy and Customer care standards

Dirugs and Alcohol at Work policy implemented and training provided

Formalisation of home and agile working arrangements (HR
and Business Technology)

Review COVID 19 Health, Safety & Welfare arrangements

Review retum to office arrangements due o ongoing
pandeamic

Implementation of new Incident management software in
progress.

Investigate introduction of mobile inspection software for
reporting of defects

CRG6 or injury or well-being :a all i;np:yee;ﬂznd managers. 15 Action
and resulting in claims against ALUB LY oy
the Council and significant Contractor competency assessments at procurement stage
I'CEDLIlﬂliUI‘ta| damage to the Regular updates on H&S/working practices in regard to COVID 19
ouncil.
COVID 19 specific assessments, instructions and guidance for staff
and public
COVID 19 specific measures in place, eg signage, instructions,
barriers, PPE, sanitiser, re-organisation of the workplace or how
work is performed eg additional drivers for refuse collection, home
working, external site meeting protocol, etc.
Intraduction of Interim Homewaorking Arrangements policy in
MNovemnber 2021.
Inspection of playgrounds and lifebelts on a weekly basis to ansure
suitability for users
Implementation of a Port Marine Safety System for Council
harbours addressing all risks and demaonstrating compliance with the
PMEC
Use of technological 2ids to assist LGV drivers
Risk Owner (Director) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
Schemes of Delegation Mandatory training on Council precurement
B Adhere o procurement/funding requirements of lead partner
Code of Conduct — Officers and Members organisations
Report writing protocol Audit full implementation of GDPR requirements
Policies and procedures reviewed Consider upskilling of Key Staff via formal gualification
3 3 ot Review of Information Security Systems, Contracts, Practices
Strategies and action plans-lo meet statutory obligations and Procadures and Associatad Staff Training
Maintenance, training and audit programmaes to ensure compliance ”
with regulations {eq Fleet / Driver) Further process to scope out requirements for EDRMS
Report template to be reviewed to include whether subject
Equality and Disability Action Plans matiers is ‘in plan’ | ‘in budgel’, has been screenad and ensure
accessibility
GDPR Officer Post — Cyber Security Action Flan to be approved
DPO recruitment exercise initiated following current position
. ) holder departure. HOS assumed role during vacancy, agency
Infeymgtaon: Aeaits Registar chopiet position in meantime. Previous DPO on call as backup if
required and will provide training fo new DPOC.
Failure o comply with GDPR statements developed according applicable to service needs Review of training needs, eg screening.
statutory obligations and good Agreed protocols for responding to requests for information under —— ’ ;
CRT7 praciice leading fo financial 4 the FOIA, DPA or EIR 12| Action AN I CETY and Stevaiihcs Polcy:

penalties and damage to the
Council's reputation.

Policy on land and property, including strategy for Disposal of
Surplus assets  (under review)

Corporate Policies

Corporate Retumns

Finalise the Lands Policy.

Finalise the Information Access Policy.

Finalise the Data and Retention Schedule.




External Scrutiny by statutory bodies

Internal assurance processes

Business case to be developed in relation to consideration of
EDRMS.

Governance and Scrutiny Group, with cross partnership
rapresentation established to review the outputs of the Community
Planning Partnership

Check thal contractors are on record as licensed waste carrier

Baseline and timetable for Local Development Plan

Professional Officer Groups

Equality and Disability Training delivered across Council

Estimates and Financial reporting deadlines met

EDRMS Project initiation Document complete

Checks on contractors to ensure that all waste is disposed of in
accordance with legislation

Procurement/funding requirements of lead partner organisations
defined

Data Sharing Agreements put in place as required

[Risk Owner (Director)

Head of Service Lead:

Risk Appetite

The failure to transfer
envisaged and future powers
and budgets to Council
impacting negatively on
Council's ability to deliver its
corporate plan and failure to
deliver projects through lack
of funding from Central
Government.

Lobbying of government

Working in partnership with relevant departments and agencies

Report to Committee a status report on all central Govemment
funding sources and ensure Council is not spending money
where there is a potential of it not ultimately receiving itself

Capital Programme list and Prioritisation process agreed

Review projects to establish priority.

Investigate altemnative funding streams

Capital Programme list to be reviewed and Prioritisation
process o be implemented in line with the Corporate Plan
2020-2024

Risk Owner (Director)

Head of Service Lead:

Risk Appetite

Decisions being made outside
of the planning and budgeting
process, leading to financial
shortfall, inability to deliver the
corporate plan and failure to
meet stakeholder
expectations

Strategic Finance and Palicy Group established

Officer recommendations

Develop govermnance arrangemeant to produce and ablain
commitment to medium to long term Strategic Capital
Investment Flan

Training needs analysis for members

Develop medium to long term financial plans informed by
Council appetite on affordability

Party Leaders meetings

Increase rigour to the challenge of proposals that are not
budgeted for

Corporate Planning and Service Planning Process

Encourage consistent use of business cases on any significant
expenditure

Budgetary control process

Capital Investment Programme list to be reviewed and
Prioritisation process to be implementad in line with the
Corporate Plan 2020-2024

Corporate Projects Portfolio, plus governance (including CPP Board)
and commiltee visibility of same

Review the Report template to establish if greater clarity can
be provided to highlight any financial or other corporate risk
implicatons of the matters under consideration within the
report.

Business Cases cesses in place

Capital Programmae list and Prioritisation process agreed

Corporate Plan in place

Risk Owner (Director)

Head of Service Lead:

Risk Appetite

Inability to prepare and deliver
the local development plan,

Legacy DOE development plans (nofional end dates for plans
exceeded)

LDP workshops successfully undertaken with elected members,
culminating in options being agreed for testing through Sustainability
Appraisal in 2018.

Ongoing engagement with Dfl and Planning Appeals
Commission regarding ad hoc processes being progressed
outside of legislation

Approval of business cases for studies and related
procurement




leading to non-compliance

Preferred Options Paper on the LOP published in March 2019

Ongoing liaison with cross-council LDP Teams through

CR10 with the Planning (Northern professional working group
Ireland) Act 2011 and Engagement sessions with elected members and officers to
negative impact on consider planning policy review for Draft Flan Strategy commenced
development decisions Septembar 2019
Business Cases prepared for ad hoc studies required by regional
planning policy i.e. Landscape Character Assessment, Retail Study,
and Open Space Strategy — to commence in Q4 of 2019/20
Risk Owner (Director) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
Seek clanfication via Dl regarding Stalus of ‘Plan once
Failure of Dfi to produce a Attendance of Head of Planning on BMTP Project Board and published, integrity of data and details regarding 'hosting’ as
Draft Belfast Metropolitan updates from Dfl to SOLACE evidence and confirmation that Dfl will defend at Independent
Transport Strategy in line with Examination
CR10{a) |Council's timetable for Dfl now terming as ‘Plan’ as opposed to 'Strategy’.
publication of its Draft Plan Revision of Draft Local Transport Siudies
Strategy, leading to the LDP
being found unsound Retained as Risk on Strategic Planning Group Issues Log
Risk Owner {Directar) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
: Contact key suppliers to check likely impact of BREXIT on
Day One Working Group set u R H
i oo el their abilty to supply goods and services
5 — = : . Work in partnership with the PSNI and other agencies 1o
Review of local legislation in relation to statutory delivery of services minimise potential impact within our communities
. _ J Review service income projections, and likely effect on ability
CR11 Impact of BREXIT on Council See departmental risk registers for details to deliver outcomes.
to deliver services Review carried out on aclivities, projects and plans against current : i z : =
knowledge to identify the potential threats (including conflicing 1%’;:2;1‘:‘;5:{“'9:':? t:’ Bs;’;z:d‘;::‘a"::vif;“::; &
prioriies) or opportunities which may affect Council services, funding raorpned P ¥
activities or future plans
Emergency planning and business continuity arrangements reviewed
in light of available information
Risk Owner (Director) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
Failure of Dfl to have
implemented replacement of . £ : - Ongoing updates to SOLACE and Planning Portal
Planning Portal replacement gll;?:::-bg ETQ%ET:;::CEE:;: DG {serince provda ) Miravgh Governance Board in respect of timetabling of implementation
within ANMDBC by early 2022 L across councils
CR12 with no secure contract to
zi:;?;g:iﬁr;::lﬁ:g Extension of current contract with minimum upgrades secured until
end of December 2021
beyond 31 December 2021, - ~ — —-
leading to inability to deliver DAl business case on the Planning F'_DrtaF and Councll§ l::u_r!tnbuhan
Planning Services raxme has been agreed by Council.  Procurement timelines are on
Rizk Owner (Director) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
~ ; n Cyber security action plan to be agreed and actions (o
et ganaration:jiswall witiwveb Hllering integrate cyber security across the organisation
E-Mail filtering Multi-factor authentication in progress.
’ Review training and awarenass sassions for stafl following
Anlihdansre role out of ELeaming module
Anti-Spam Review pmcesses_. I.D.ensure sensilive data is accessible only
to those who require it
Breach of Cyber Security. Anti-Spoofing Testing / exercising for incidents and responses
Damage to systems, or theft, . ~ HR and Business Technology Services to implement and
leading to a failure to deliver Advanced Threat Protection (safe links and aftachments) maonitor security awareness initiatives
services, financial loss, legal Anti-Vi Review potential sources of risk across the organisation, eg
CR13 action, or regulatory action Bl security of Point of Sale devices

due to non-compliance with

information management

Mobile Device Management

Review technical solutions and develop “play books” to
manage incidents.




legislation (including GDPR
and Data Protection Act
2018).

VPN to facilitate working from home during COVID19

Client Machines and Servers on new AND domain receive monthly
security patches

Organisational and Data Breach Incident Management plan has
been developed.

E-learning module rolled out to all staff

Protection Our Data working group sef up

Assess and mitigate risk potentially created with the
implementation of agile working in the medium to long term
{includes consideraltion of equipment provision).

Fut program in place to remove remaining cld/llegacy servers
running 2003/2008 and pattch other vulnerable client software

Risk Owner (Director)

Head of Service Lead:

Risk Appetite

CR13 (a)

Dalta Breach Response &
Recovery

Inadequate response (speed
siatutory compliance /
inadequate controls / process
[/ risk mitigation & provision /
reputation / resourcing)

As above

Internal data breach management team in place (to be reviewed
according to incident

Staff Confidentiality Agreements in place

5 1CO notification process in place

" i party specialist investigative and response provider

PSNI natification

Communications plan — notification to affected, media response and
staff

Call handling plan / training

Review of systems to identify gaps

Development of a Critical Incident policy and process (generic
document to deal with range of risks but including specific
section on Data Breach)

Data breach section to include sections on Response and
Recovery

Development of risk register to identify and capture risk —
perceived risk and risk assessment template for breach

Review of Cyber risks

Review of cumrent systems in place, including escalation
{GDPR, Business Technology, Corporate Communications,
Risk Management)

Staff training — minimising, identification of, and responding to
potential incident. Response team — eg investigation and call
handling

Implementation of NCSC and Microsoft 'Good'
recommendations to secure the Microsoft 365 environment

Risk Owner {Directar) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
Impact of excessive inflation
on Council Operations leading i
GR1g to an inability of Council to ko
perform it's functions
Risk Owner (Director) Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite
Multi-disciplinary working group within Council working on the
insourcing exercise
Failure of Council to
succesfully integrate the Morth
CR16 Clown Leisure facilities and Consullants appeinted (V4 Services) lo provide assistance wilh this Action
staff into the Council by way exercise
of insourcing
Head of Service Lead: Risk Appetite

|Eisk Owner (Director)
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